
 
County Offices 

Newland 
Lincoln 

LN1 1YL 
 

18 July 2013 
 

Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 
 

A meeting of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee will be held on 
Friday, 26 July 2013 at 10.00 am in Committee Room One, County Offices, 
Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL for the transaction of the business set out on the attached 
Agenda.  
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Tony McArdle 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee (19 Members 
of the Council and 6 Added Members) 
 
Councillors J D Hough (Chairman), B Adams (Vice-Chairman), W J Aron, 
J P Churchill, S R Dodds, A G Hagues, J R Hicks, R J Hunter-Clarke, B W Keimach, 
P J O'Connor, C R Oxby, Mrs S Ransome, Mrs N J Smith, Mrs C A Talbot, 
S M Tweedale, L Wootten, R Wootten and Mrs S M Wray 
 
Added Members 
 
Church Representatives: Mr S C Rudman, Mr P Thompson and Mrs G Wright 
 
Parent Representatives: Mr C V Miller, Mrs E Olivier-Townrow and Dr E van der Zee 
 

Public Document Pack





CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA 
FRIDAY, 26 JULY 2013 

 
 
Item Title 

 
Pages 

1  Apologies for Absence / Replacement Members  
 

 

2  Declaration of Members' Interest  
 

 

3  Minutes of the meeting of the Children and Young People 
Scrutiny Committee held on 14 June 2013  
 

1 - 8 

4  Children's Centres Progress and Successes  
(To receive a report from Stuart Carlton, Assistant Director of 
Children's Services, which provides the Committee with an 
update regarding Lincolnshire Children’s Centres, 
demonstrating outcomes for Lincolnshire children and their 
families and identifying areas for development to ensure all 
centres are delivering quality services) 
 

9 - 32 

5  Youth Housing Strategy  
(To receive a report from Philip Taylor, which asks the 
Committee to consider the Youth Housing Strategy, which sets 
out the strategic vision of youth housing services in Lincolnshire 
for the next 5 years) 
 

33 - 76 

6  Proposal to revoke the decision taken in May 2012 to expand 
Spalding Primary School  
(To receive a report from Michelle Andrews, Interim Head of 
Property and Technology Management, which invites the 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee to consider a 
report on the proposal to revoke the decision taken in May 2012 
to expand Spalding Primary School) 
 

77 - 92 

7  Proposal for a new primary Academy in Spalding 
(submission to Secretary of State of results and evaluation 
of process to identify an operator)  
(To receive a report from Michelle Andrews, Interim Head of 
Property and Technology Management, which invites the 
Committee to consider a report on the proposal for a new primary 
Academy in Spalding (submission to Secretary of State of results 
and evaluation of process to identify an operator)) 
 

93 - 122 

8  Related Proposals to Amend the Age Range and Expand the 
Capacity at Grantham The Isaac Newton Primary School 
(Final Decision)  
(To receive a report from Michelle Andrews, Interim Head of 
Property and Technology Management, which invites the Scrutiny 
Committee to consider a report on the related proposals to 
amend the age range and expand the capacity at Grantham The 
Isaac Newton Primary School (Final decision)) 
 

123 - 148 



9  Improving Access to Post-16 Learning Provision in 
Lincolnshire Action Plan (Second Monitoring Update)  
(To receive a report from Maggie Freeman, Head of Service 11-
19, which invites the Committee to consider the 
actions/progress of the action plan resulting from the Access to 
Post 16 Learning Provision review undertaken in 2011) 
 
 

149 - 170 

10  Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee Work 
Programme 2013/14  
(To receive a report by Tracy Johnson, Scrutiny Officer, which 
provides the Committee with an opportunity to consider its work 
programme) 
 

171 - 186 

 

 
 
 

Democratic Services Officer Contact Details  
 
Name: Andrea Brown 

 
Direct Dial 01522 553787 

 
E Mail Address andrea.brown@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting 
 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
 
Contact details set out above. 
 
All papers for council meetings are available on: 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords 
 

 



1 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

14 JUNE 2013

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR J D HOUGH (CHAIRMAN) 

Councillors W J Aron, J P Churchill, S R Dodds, A G Hagues, J R Hicks,  
R J Hunter-Clarke, B W Keimach, C R Oxby, Mrs S Ransome, Mrs N J Smith,  
T M Trollope-Bellew, A H Turner MBE JP, S M Tweedale, L Wootten, R Wootten and 
Mrs S  M Wray. 

Added Members: Mrs E Olivier-Townrow, Mr S C Rudman, Mr P Thompson and 
Mrs G Wright. 

Councillor D Brailsford (Executive Support Councillor for Children's Services) was 
also in attendance. 

Councillor R G Davies attended the meeting as an observer 

Officers in attendance: Michelle Andrews (Interim Head of Property and 
Technology Management), Debbie Barnes (Director of Children's Services), Keith 
Batty (Assistant Director, CfBT Education Services), Andrea Brown (Democratic 
Services Officer), Matt Clayton (School Organisation Planning Manager), Linda 
Duffield (School Organisation Planning Officer), Tracy Johnson (Scrutiny Officer) and 
Janice Spencer (Assistant Director for Children's Services) 

1     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE / REPLACEMENT MEMBERS 

Apologies were received from Councillors B Adams (Vice-Chairman) and Mrs P A 
Bradwell (Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health Services and Children's 
Services). 

Mr Miller and Dr van der Zee (Added Members) also submitted apologies for 
absence. 

Councillors C R Oxby, T M Trollope-Bellew, A H Turner MBE JP and R Wootten 
attended as Replacement Members in place of four of the five vacancies. 

2     DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' INTEREST 

In respect of Agenda Item 6 – Proposal to Expand Kirton Primary School (Final 
Decision), Councillor Mrs S Ransome advised the Committee that she was a 
Governor of Kirton Primary School and would, therefore, take part in the debate but 
would abstain from voting. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



2 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
14 JUNE 2013 

3     MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD ON 1 MARCH 2013 

RESOLVED 

 That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Committee, held on 1 March 
2013, be agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

4     FUTURE PRIORITIES FOR THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

The Chairman explained that he would like to ascertain the views of new Members 
prior to receiving a presentation from officers introducing the work of the Children's 
Services Directorate. 

Members were asked to complete a form with what they felt should be the main three 
priorities of the Committee.  Following this exercise, the Chairman asked that 
Members discuss their suggestions in groups of three, agreeing on the top three 
priorities for their individual groups. 

The Chairman thanked Members for their participation and advised that an analysis 
of the suggestions would be undertaken following the meeting and compared with the 
views of officers.   

RESOLVED 

1. That an analysis of the suggested future priorities be undertaken and presented 
at the next meeting of the Committee. 

5     INTRODUCTION TO CHILDREN'S SERVICES 

The Chairman invited Debbie Barnes, Director of Children's Services, to give an 
introduction to Children's Services.   

The presentation provided an overview of the Children's Services Directorate, the 
vision of the team, principles followed, services provided, previous achievements and 
future priorities.  An explanation of resources within the department was also given. 

During discussion, the following points were noted:- 

•  It was explained that the target set in relation to Child Protection Plans was to 
be able to monitor, in future, that the early intervention measures implemented 
were appropriate and successful.  Although it was a target, this particular 
target was used more as a measure. 

•  Operational and strategic discussions, with schools, continued in relation to 
Pupil Premium and how this could be best utilised.  Not all those eligible for 
this had signed up resulting in schools being unable to access the funding.  In 
order to promote the availability of Pupil Premium to parents, the School's 

Page 2



3 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

14 JUNE 2013 

Forum had requested that posters and leaflets be provided to schools 
explaining the benefits. 

•  In relation to Troubled Families, a minimum of two indicators had to be met to 
be identified as a Troubled Family.  It was expected that the target figure of 
400 families would be reached by the end of the year.  Significant numbers of 
families had made considerable progress but had not yet met the threshold for 
officers to be able to remove them as a troubled family.  An update was 
requested at a future meeting of the Committee. 

•  Lincolnshire reported low numbers of children based in secure 
accommodation, although guidance and funding arrangements had recently 
changed.  LCC had proactively responded to the Government's shift in 
priorities and now have four approved foster carers who would accept children 
on remand. 

•  Children placed in out-of-county facilities are generally those with complex or 
unique needs and require specialist skills to meet their needs, for example 
severe autism.   It was, therefore, need rather than cost when a decision was 
made to place a child out-of-county. 

•  The number of children being placed in Lincolnshire special schools (Bourne 
specifically) from out-of-county was unavailable but officers agreed to provide 
this to Members at a future meeting. 

RESOLVED 

1. That Special School Placements, including the number of children placed 
in Lincolnshire from out-of-county, be added to the Work Programme for a 
future meeting; 

2. That a Troubled Families Update be added to the Work Programme for a 
future meeting of the Committee;  

3. That a workshop be arranged for the Committee to provide greater detail 
of the performance targets covered by Children's Services. 

6     PROPOSAL TO EXPAND KIRTON PRIMARY SCHOOL (FINAL DECISION) 

Michelle Andrews, Interim Head of Service – Property and Technology Management, 
introduced the report which invited the Committee to consider a report on the 
proposal to expand Kirton Primary School, due to be considered by the Executive 
Councillor for Adult Care, Health Services and Children's Services on 28 June 2013. 

During discussion, the following points were noted:- 

•  The proposed expansion was in conjunction with the capital process to ensure 
minimal disruption to the school by undertaking all the works together. 

•  Members were reassured that the expansion of the school was to 
accommodate 630 existing pupils living in the area and would not destabilise 
any other schools in the vicinity as there was a need for that number of school 
places. 

•  Sufficiency of school places remained a national strategic challenge which 
would eventually filter into secondary schools.  The main challenge for Local 

Page 3



4 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
14 JUNE 2013 

Authorities would be to find sufficient funds to be able to build enough 
secondary school places for the future. 

•  School transport and travel to school were a concern for the Committee, 
although it was confirmed that eight miles was the maximum expected for any 
child to travel at primary level, although children may travel longer due to 
specific circumstances (i.e. special needs).  Measures were also being 
considered to limit parental travel by car and to encourage pupils to walk or 
cycle to school.  The Committee encouraged officers to include these 
proposals in the school travel plan. 

RESOLVED 

1.  That the Committee support the recommendation to the Executive Councillor 
for Adult Care, Health Services and Children's Services as set out in Appendix 
1 of agenda item 6; 

2.  That the comments of the Committee in relation to school transport be relayed 
to the Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health Services and Children' 
Services for their consideration. 

7     PROPOSAL TO EXPAND CONINGSBY ST MICHAEL'S CHURCH OF 
ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL (FINAL DECISION) 

Michelle Andrews, Interim Head of Service – Property and Technology Management, 
introduced the report which invited the Committee to consider a report on the 
proposal to expand Coningsby St Michael's Church of England Primary School due 
to be considered by the Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health Services and 
Children's Services on 28 June 2013. 

During discussion the following points were noted:-

•  Reassurance was given that work had been undertaken in close liaison with 
the leadership team in the school.  As the school had a new Headteacher, it 
was felt they would be focussing on school standards as well as the 
expansion. 

•  When considering the Needs Analysis a balance to increase numbers to 
Coningsby and Tattershall without destabilising other schools in the area had 
to be achieved.  The proposal was to increase places within that community 
and, although parental concerns had been raised around building at 
Coningsby only, the Council had responded to these concerns and were 
progressing an expansion at Tattershall as well. 

•   The numbers quoted within the proposal were based on the demographic 
currently based in the area. 

•  The new Headteacher and their team had been working closely with the 
parents who had expressed concerns to explain the future plans going 
forward.  All concerns or objections made during the consultation had been 
considered, however. 

•  The Committee were content with the proposals and confirmed that they had 
no comments for consideration by the Executive Councillor. 

Page 4



5 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

14 JUNE 2013 

RESOLVED 

3.  That the Committee support the recommendation to the Executive Councillor 
for Adult Care, Health Services and Children's Services as set out in Appendix 
1 of agenda item 7. 

11.30am – Councillor S Ransome left the meeting at this point and did not return. 

8     PROPOSAL FOR A NEW PRIMARY ACADEMY IN BOURNE 
(SUBMISSION TO SECRETARY OF STATE OF RESULTS AND 
EVALUATION OF PROCESS TO IDENTIFY AN OPERATOR) 

The Chairman welcomed Mrs C A Edwards (Headteacher), Mr Kirkman (Chair of 
Governors) and Mr D Pickering (Vice-Chair of Governors), of Bourne Primary 
Academy, to the meeting. 

Michelle Andrews, Interim Head of Service – Property and Technology Management, 
introduced the report which invited the Committee to consider a report on the 
proposal for a new Primary Academy in Bourne due to be considered by the 
Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health Services and Children's Services on 28 
June 2013. 

The Chairman then invited Mrs Edwards to address the Committee. 

During discussion the following points were noted:-

•  The Committee received confirmation that the school would provide an 
inclusive environment, welcoming children with varying religious beliefs as well 
as those with none.   

•  The impact on secondary schools as a result of increasing capacity in primary 
schools was discussed.  It was expected that secondary school pressure 
would be reached by 2016 and, although Further Education Colleges could 
take pupils from the age of 14, further consideration on the impact on 
secondary school places would have to be given. 

•  Mrs Edwards confirmed that they were working with all primary schools in 
Bourne to develop joint training.  They were also providing some informal 
support to another Primary Academy in Bourne, including their school council. 

• The Committee were content with the proposals and confirmed that they had no 
comments for consideration by the Executive Councillor. 

RESOLVED 

4.  That the Committee support the recommendation to the Executive Councillor 
for Adult Care, Health Services and Children's Services as set out in Appendix 
1 of agenda item 8. 

Page 5



6 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
14 JUNE 2013 

9     PERFORMANCE - QUARTER 4 2012/13 

Debbie Barnes, Director of Children's Services, introduced the report which provided 
the Committee with a summary of Quarter 4 2012/13 performance for Children and 
Young People, following which Members were offered the opportunity to attend a 
workshop which would explain, in detail, the performance indicators included within 
the report, prior to the next meeting. 

12.30pm – Councillors L Wootten, R Wootten and Mrs Olivier-Townrow left the 
meeting at this point and did not return. 

During discussion the following points were noted:-

• It was explained that, although not statistically significant, certain targets 
were set at 100% to ensure that the team strives to reach them as they are 
extremely significant in children's services and the support provided to 
children.  For other targets, a wider variation of target range was set. 

• Indicator CS117 (% 16-19 teenage mothers in EET) – officers were 
generally made aware of teenagers in this group being mothers through 
conversation.  As this particular indicator was 'owned' by Public Health, it 
was suggested that they be engaged to clarify the position and to invite 
them to a future meeting. 

• Information relating to the comparisons of permanent exclusions in 
academies against maintained schools was requested.  The outcome of 
the recent review had resulted in 15 recommendations.  It had been 
agreed that a review of these recommendations would be brought to the 
Committee in September/October 2013. 

• Following discussion it was agreed to add the issue of pupils eligible for 
Free School Meals to the Work Programme. 

RESOLVED 

1. That the content of the Performance Report be noted; 
2. That a workshop be arranged to provide the Committee with further 

information around the Performance Indicators; 
3. That Free School Meals/Pupil Premium be added to the Work Programme 

for a future meeting. 

At 12.50pm Councillors B W Keimach and J R Hicks left the meeting and did not 
return. 

10     CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL UPDATE 

The Assistant Director for Children's Services, Janice Spencer, introduced the report 
which provided the Committee with the previous minutes of the Corporate Parenting 
Panel.  It was explained that the prime responsibility of the Corporate Parenting 
Panel was to work with foster carers, adoptive parents and relevant officers in order 
to ensure that arrangements for the safety and welfare of looked after children and 

Page 6



7 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

14 JUNE 2013 

care leavers were in accordance with what any good parent would want for their own 
child. 

It was proposed that a workshop be held, for the new members of the Corporate 
Parenting Panel and all members of the Children & Young People Scrutiny 
Committee, which would cover fostering, adoption, Looked After Children (LAC), 
visiting members, private fostering and residential accommodation.  It was planned to 
hold this workshop prior to the next meeting of the Corporate Parenting Panel, 
scheduled for Thursday 18th July 2013. 

Committee members were asked to advise their Group Leaders if they would be 
interested in sitting on the Corporate Parenting Panel.  The Clerk to the Committee 
would then contact Group Leaders asking for their nominations. 

RESOLVED 

1. That the report be noted; 
2. That Members contact their Group Leader to express their interest in 

becoming a member of the Corporate Parenting Panel.

11     SAFEGUARDING BOARDS SCRUTINY SUB-GROUP - INTRODUCTORY 
ITEM 

Tracy Johnson, Scrutiny Officer, introduced the report which provided the Committee 
with the previous minutes of the Safeguarding Boards Scrutiny Sub-Group.  Members 
of this sub-group also attended the Strategic Safeguarding Adults Board and 
Safeguarding Children Board on a rotational basis. 

Committee members were asked to advise their Group Leaders if they would be 
interested in sitting on the Safeguarding Boards Scrutiny Sub-Group.  Democratic 
Services would then contact Group Leaders asking for their nominations. 

RESOLVED 

3. That the report be noted; 
4. That Members contact their Group Leader to express their interest in 

becoming a member of the Safeguarding Boards Scrutiny Sub-Group. 

12     CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 2013 

Tracy Johnson, Scrutiny Officer, presented the Committee's work programme for 
2013 and advised that this would be amended to reflect the priorities of the 
Committee from the exercise undertaken at the beginning of this meeting. 

At the next meeting, the Committee would be asked to consider three pre-decision 
scrutiny items. 

Page 7



8 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
14 JUNE 2013 

RESOLVED 

1. That the contents of the work programme be noted. 

The meeting closed at 1.00 pm 

Page 8



Policy and Scrutiny

Open Report on behalf of Stuart Carlton, Assistant Director for Children's 
Services 

Report to: Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee

Date: 26 July 2013 

Subject: Children’s Centres Progress and Successes  

Decision Reference:Key decision? No

Summary:  

This report provides the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 
(CYPSC) with an update regarding Lincolnshire Children’s Centres, 
demonstrating outcomes for Lincolnshire children and their families and 
identifying areas for development to ensure all centres are delivering quality 
services. 

Actions Required: 

The Committee is invited to comment on the contents of the report and make 
any further recommendations as they see fit for the continued development of 
Children's Centres in Lincolnshire. 

1. Background

The attached report gives an overview of changes, progress, successes and 
development areas in Children's Centres in Lincolnshire.   

2. Conclusion

Lincolnshire Children’s Centres have undergone some changes in the last year in 
line with changes in legislation and inspection arrangements.  

Children Centre performance data shows that we have mostly met or exceeded our 
targets and have improved outcomes for young children and their families In 
Lincolnshire, with a particular focus on the most disadvantaged.  

The outcomes achieved for Lincolnshire children provide evidence about 
effectiveness of Children’s Centres in making a difference for children and their 
families. However, there is still work to do in development areas and we have clear 
improvement plans in place.   

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



3. Consultation

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required

N/A 

4. Appendices

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Children's Centres Progress and Successes 

5. Background Papers 

The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 
were relied upon in the writing of this report. 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Sure Start children’s centres 
statutory guidance April 2013 

http://www.education.gov.uk/aboutdfe/statutory/
g00224078/sure-start-statutory-guidance  

The framework for children's 
centre inspection from April 
2013 

http://www.ofsted.gov.uk/resources/framework-
for-childrens-centre-inspection-april-2013  

This report was written by Cornelia Andrecut, who can be contacted on 
01522555020 or cornelia.andrecut@lincolnshire.gov.uk . 

Page 10



�

��������	
�������
�

�����

����������

�
�

�
�����������	
�������������������������������

	���������
�

�
������������������	
�������������������������������	����������	���	��

���
���������������������������
����	
��������	������ ��������������

���������������������
�����
����������
�������������������������������������

�����������������������������������������������!����������������

������������	�
��������������������������
���	���
���������
�����������������

����������������������

������������������

Page 11



1 

�

���������
�

	��������""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�#�

��������"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�$�

������������
���������"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�%�

&��'������(�	����)��"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�%�

��������
����	
��������	�������*��
��+�������������
�������#$�����
��"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�%�

�
��,������	�������������""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�%�

-���������
����������,������	�������������"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�.�

/��'�����������������������"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�.�

����'����,�������������""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�0�

	
�������������������"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�0�

	
�����1��	������	�������������"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�2�

/���������3���������4��������"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�#5�

-�����������6������������������������-�6�����������""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�##�

&������6������������"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�#7�

	
���48������"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�#7�

9���������������������""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�#%�

	
��������	����������
�""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�#.�

	
�����������:����""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�#;�

����������������������"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�#;�

	
��������	������������������������"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�#0�

<�)��������"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�$5�

,���������""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�$##�

	
��������	������=������<���3����������,������������""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�$##�

	
��������	������������������6�������'�"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�$##�

�

�

�

Page 12



2 

�	

���
�

�������
�������������	
�������
����������������
����������
����������
������������������
�

�
����������������������������������������������������
��%0�����������
��������������


����8������������������;�=���������.�	����8�������� ����8���������������������������

��������� ����������������
����������� �������������8�������������������#$�"�>��
����

����
�����������������8��������������������������
����%0���������������"�

�

�������������
�����
������
����������������������
����	
��������	�������8�������

������8������<����8���$5#$�������������
��9�������,��������������������������������

��������'"��
������������
�����������
�����������������������
����8����������������

��������������������������������	
��������	���������������������������
���"��
�������

�
��������?�

�

� /��'�����������������������

� ����'����,��������������

� 	
�������������������

� 	
�����1��	������	����������������

�

���
������������������������
����������������
�����������������������
�����
���������

�
������������������8���������
���������
����8������� �������������������������������
�

���4���������-6������ ������8��'�������������������������@���������������3���������

�@�3����������������������������������
���������������"��
����������������������
�������

������������
����������������
���������������������������������������������������������

�����������������
��������������������?�

�

� -�����������6������������������������-�6�����������

� &������6������������

� 	
���48������

� 9����������������������

Page 13



3 

� ����
����,����������

� 	
���������������

	
������	�����������������������
�����
������
�������������������)���������������� �


������ ��
����������������'�������������������������"��
�������������
���������

��������
�����
����������������������8���������������������	
��������	������������'������

���������������
����������
������������"��

�

������������
���������

4�A������������������������������������������������'������������������������
������������

�������������������
�����
�������������������"�,������
���������������������������������

8����������'������'�����
������������
���������(������������
�����������
���
����
�����
�

	
��������	������"��

�

���������������
�������
�������������������
���

	
����������
����������������������������'�
��������������
�����
���������
��������

,��
����������
����������8���8�������	
��������	�����������
�����������
�����������������

�����������������"�4�
����
������������������
�@��������A�����
��������
���������������

���
�������������������8���������
�����
��������������
����������8������������"�>��
����

B���������������
�����������������������������������
��
�������������������������'"�>��


����������������������������
�����������������	
��������	�������������������������� ����

���
�����������������
������������
����������8���������������������"���

�

 �!������
�

�
����������������������������������������
����
���������
����	
���������������
��
�

������
�����������
����������������"�>���������'����������������������������������������

���
����"�,�����������
�������������������������������������
����������������������

��������������"�

Page 14



4 

�	���������������������
�

����������	
�������������������������������	����������	���	�����
����������

�����������������
����	
��������	������ �����������������������������������
�����
������

����
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

!���������������"�

�

�������	�������������
�

����������������������������������������	����� ������������!"�
������
�

3����������
��
�������������	
��������	�����������������=��������,�����$5#7������
��

�
����������
��	
��������	������4����������������������������������,�����$5#7 ����

��������
�����
��	
�����1��	�������
�������������������
����������
����������������
��

%0�����������
��������������
����8������������������;�=���������.�	����8�������� �

���8�������������������������������������������������������
����������� ����#$��������

�����������"�

�

,�������������
����$.�C/�����	
��������	����������
����
��
��������4�����D�< ����
�

��
��������������C���'��������������,�����)�#�"��>��
��������
�����������������8�������E�

���������������
����%0���������������"�

�

����#��	������ �����������
�

,�������������������������
����������������������
����	
��������	�������8�������

������8������<����8���$5#$�������������
��9�������,��������������������������������

��������'������,�����)�$�"��

�

�
��������������
��C,������	������������������?�

� ��������)��������������������
���������������A�������������������

Page 15



5 

� �����������������������������������������������������������������������8������

���������������������
��������������
�����������������
��������������������

�
����������
������������ ��

� ���������������������'����
�����������������
����
��	
��������	����������������

�������������������������������������������

� -�������
������������C46��-:�������

�

,�����������������������
�����8���
�����������F�����������������������8���
��9�������

,����/����������-�����3������������4����������
���������������/��������(�	�������������

�������������������������������"��:���������������������
����������������C����
����!��������

���������������
��������������
����������������'���������
�����������������"�	������������

��������������
������'�����������
���������������������8����� �����������������'������?���

�

� F��������������������������������G�

� F�������������������G�

� F�����������������
��������
����������������G�

� >
�������
�����������������������������������G�

� F�����������������
�����������������

�

�
��������
�����������
�����������������������
����8����������������������������������

��������������	
��������	���������������������������
���"��

�

$
����������
������
�#��	������ ����������

�

%���������������������������
�

-������������'���������	
��������	�������
���8�����������������������������������������

������������������������������
�����
�������������������������������������������������

����������
������"�>����������
�����
�����������������
���
���������������������


��������������������8������������������"���

Page 16



6 

�

>��'�
���8����������'������
�F����
������
��������������������������������������������

���������������������������
������8������������	
������	���������������"��������������

������
���������������������������������"�F����������������������������������

�������������������'���������8������������'���	
��������	������������������"�

�

3��$5#$($5#7�������������������������������C�����������������-�������������������

��������8�����������������	
��������	������������������������������"������������������

������������������������������������������������6������(�,�������&���� �������������

��������������������
��������������������
��������������������������������������

��������������,����������������-������8�����"�F������ ����������������������������

���������������������������������
�����
������������������������������������������������

���������������
��
������
������������������������"�6������������������������������������

�����������
�������������
������"��

�

��������	
��
������

	�������������������
��8�������������
�����A�������������������������������

��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

-�
�����	
��������	������"��
����������������������,���������������������������������

-��������������������"��,��������C6��)�8���6�������
���8����������������
�������������

���8�����������������������8��������"��

�

@�������������������������������������-�����������	��������
����8����������������

���������������������--�������8��������������������
��������������������������������������

���-������������������������--���������
��
���������������������������������������������

���
���������"�

�

�
����
�����
��,������	���������������$5#$������������������!����������������������������

�����������
��
�����������!����������'���������������������������������������

���
���������"��6���8��'���������
������������������������������������
���"�>��
��
������

	
��������	������������������� ��
�����������������������'������
����������� �������

Page 17



7 

�������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������

��������������8�������"�

�

��������	
��
������

�

,����'���������������
�����������������������������������
���8����������������8����


��������������/��'���������������$5#7A#%"��
���		���8��������������	
��������	������

������������
���8����������������������
�������
��������������������������������

��������������������������A������������ �������������������8�������C�
���������

�����������"���

�

6���
������'������������������
����8����������������������������������������������������

������������������"�	������������������
����
��
��3��������������������8�������������


������������'�������������������!����������������8����'����8���������������)��������"��

�

<������������
������'������������
�	�������	��������/������������������������������
��

�)�������D@�����
�	
����������������
���	
��������	������"��H������������������������������

�������������������������������������������--� ���������6����� �F����
�	�����������������8��

�
�����������������
����������������������
����F����
���������������� �,�������������

�����������������>�������&�������������������"�H����������8��������&��*����
��"��

�

�������������������������

� :����������������	
��������	������,��������������8��'����������"��

� ������������������������������������'�������"�"�������������������������������"�

� ������������
����������������	
��������	������������� �������������������������"��

� �������������������������-����������(�	
��������	����������
���������������

� ��������������!���������������
��	
��������	������������������
���		���8A��������

��������������������������� ���������������������"��

�

� �

Page 18



8 

���������#�	�������������
�

�
��������'����������������������������������
���8�������������8��46��-:����������������

����������"���
��������������������������$5#$($5#7����������	
��������	������������

8��������������
�����������������������������������������������������������������8���
��
���

�)��������������������'����'� ��
�����������������������������������������������
��������

�
������������8����������������"���

�

��������	
��
�����

�

,��,�������������<����,����������
���8����������������$5#$(�$5#7"��
����������

�������������8����������������'�����������	
��������	����������
����������
���8��������

��������������8���������������
�������������������������������	
��������	������"�

�

�
��,�������������<����,���������������������8��������
������������������
��

���������������	
��������	������"�,������������������$.������	
��������	����������
�������

�����8��������"�

�

�����������	���������
�

���������������
����
��
���
��������A������������������������!��������
������ ��
��A

�����������I�
������������"��

�

���������
��
�����

�

&���
����6�����������������������������������������A������������������
�������������������

�������������������������8�������46��-:�+�������������
�����������������
��'�"���

�

�
����
��
�����������8�������I�
�����������������
�������������
������
����������8�������

	
������	������������������
����
��
����������8��������������������"��	�I�
�������

!�������������������������
������������������
��)��������������8������������"��

�

Page 19



9 

�
����
�	
������	������������������������������������
������������������������������

�
������������"��

�

,���������������
���8��������������8����������������������������(���������������

����������
����'��������$��������������������"��

�

��������&�����������

�������������
�

>��
����������������������������������������������������	
��������	��������
��
���������

����
��	
��������	������������������
���������������������������������������������'����8����

�������������������������"���

�

,����������������8�����������������������������8��������
���8�������������

�������������������������������������
���������
��8������������������������������������

���
���������������������������������������"��

�

	������������������
���������������������������������������?�

� -�������������������*�����������--���

� 6������,������*�6����������������������

� F����
����/��������

� F���������*�F����H������������������������

� :��������,8����

� @3:��A�	>:���I�
���

� <�,�A��
������������������

�

6���
���������������������8����������������������������������������������������������

�����������������-�������������,�������������������������������������������
���������
��

������"��

�

�

�

Page 20



10 

��������	
��
�����

�

	�������������������
����8�������������������������������
���8������
��������
�����

���������������������������8��J����$5#7"��,����������������������������������������������

-�������������,�������������,����������(���������"��
�������������������������������������

,�������8��������.5K�����
���
���8�������"�-�����:��������
�����������������

�����������������-�������������������
�������������
��,�������8�����	
�����1��	������

��������
����"�

%���	�����'
���������(	���
���
�

:������������������8�������������8�������������
��
�����8��������������������8�������

	
��������	������������������)����������������
��������������������������������������������

�����������������������
����������������������������
����������������� �8����������

����������������"��

�

�
��:�-�
���8����������������������8������������8�������	
��������	��������
��
�����������

/���
�$5#7"�/���������
�������������C�
����������������8���������������������
�����������

���������
��8���������������������8�����	
��������	��������
����
��
����������
�����"��

�
���������������,�������������������������������������������8��������������������
������

��������8�����������������������������������"���������������������� ���!���"�"����

-�����������������
��$;�������������8����8���
���
���������"�

�

	�������� ������8���������
�������������8���������8�����������
�����������'�������

����������������� �������������������������������
����4���������-6������ ������8��'���

����������������������@���������������3����������@�3�������������������������������

���
���������������"��@�3������������������������������������������
��������������

���������������8���������
����
�������������������'���������������8�������������������
��

	
��������	������"�>
������������������������������� ���������8�������������������@�3��

�������������������
��������������	
��������	�������������� �
������ ��
�����������������

8���
���'�����
�������������
�������������������������������������������������������

��������������������������
��������������������"��

Page 21



11 

$����)�����*�	����������������������+$)*��,��������
�

4�������
��'�����������������������
����	
��������	���������������������C�������������

��
��������C<����������
��=�����
��
�����8�����������
����
�����������������������

-�����������6������������������������-�6������������K��
��������
�������	��L���-:�BL����

6���;0L�"���
����8����8������
���
�����������
������������
����������������.;";K����

$5#5����;5"7K����$5#$"��
����
������#$"BK����������������$5#5��
��
����##"7K��8����

��������
����������������B"7K��8����<����������������"�

�

<����������
��=����<3;$����������������
����)���������������������������������

��
��������������."#K����������������������$5#5��
��
����7"2K�8�������������
�����������

���7K�8������
��<������������������"��

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 22



12 

����������������������$5#$������
����8����?�

�

�

6���
�����������������������
��������������������
����
��
�����������������4�����

��������������������
����-�����������������������
�0#K������
���������C=�������

C4����������"�

�

	������������������������������������
���������������������������������������������

-�6������<����������
��=�����������������������
��F-������+�����-��������������

<���
�F�'�
�������	
������/�������������������=�����"�����8��������C3������������������

��'��������&������
���	
��������	�������-6������
��,������	�����������?�

�

C#
��
������	�
����$%�	�������%��������%
��
�
���������
&��
�������
%
���'������
���������

���
���('��)�*�%���%+��,����-���������������.�%�����
�-
���%�����%�������'�����/���%�
��


����%
�������
�����+���0����1�%��-���
%�����&�%�������
����
%�
���
����������������!�'��

���
����%���%�.
���������23������
�����&�
���.
��
������&��������3�.
�������%����

���.
�����������&��.����������.�%�����
�-
���
������!�'��+�(#
��
������4������%���������

�!'�����)�

������������%�����
&�������.��%�
����%
����������&�������
��������
�-
���567���
��%�


�� !�'�� ���� ��3� (���8)� ��� 663� (����)+� � ���� ������ ��%� .�9��� .
��� #
��� ��� '
-� � ������

Page 23



13 

��-
��%���������%������������.��������+�#
��
�������
�����������.���.
��
�����������2�

%�����%� ��� ����� ���� '��� �%���% � ��.�-�� ������� �� %���
�
�� ��/���� ���� �%���%� ��-��


���-�������3�����&��.����������.�%�����
�-
�������6�3�
�����8 ������3�
�����������3�


������:$�

�

�
������������������������������������'�����������
����	
��������	�������������������

�
��-�����������6�������������������������������������������
�����
�������������������������


����
��������������
����
��������
��������������������	
��������	���������������������������

������������������������
�����"���
������'������������������������������8������
������������������

���8������'��������������������������������������������������	
��������	���������������"�

�

�
��	
��������	�������������������������������������@�3��������������������?���

�

�������*�������-��������������������
�

&������6������������
����������8�������7B�A�%$".K�������
�������7����������
������������

��������$5#$����72".K"��
�����������8������
�������������%;K�����-�������
��
�
���

������������������"�	
�����1��	����������'�+����������
�F����
�������������8������������

�����'�������������������8����������
��
����
��������������������"�/����	
������	�������


����8�����������������������
����������������E����������������������������������
����

�
����������
��
�����������������8���������
����8�8�(8�8���"��

�

������(.��������������������
�

	
���48�����������������������������������������
����	
��������	�������������8�����

��������
����
�������������������������������
��C	
��������	������	
�������
���

�����������-������������
��
�8���������
�������������
��4�����������
�������'����8�����"�

4�������
�����������
��-�������������������������'������8�������������������
������������

�
�����������������������������
������������"��/�����������������������������������
����

8������������������	
�����1��	��������
�����8������
���8���������������������������

�
����
��
���������������������"��

Page 24



14 

48���������������������
���������
����������A���������2"%K����$5##������������������

�����������
�2"BK����$550��
��
�������������
�����������-�����������
��������������2"%K�

���2"BK�"��
�������������������8����	
��������	���������������������������������������������


��
���������"��>����������������8����� �&����� �����
 ������������&�����"��

�

�

�

/	������� ��������������
�

	�������������
������������������!����������������������������������������� ����8��' �

���������+������� ��8���������������
������������
���
������
������������
�������������

	
��������	����������������'���������������������
����������
������������"�������)�������

�����
����8����"��

�

3������ ���������� ��'��� ����� �� ������� ����� 8�� �� ���
��� ��������� /��'��� :������� :����

�����?�

;4� ��������%�����������������%����%��� �����������4��������
�������.
�������������.
���

��+�<�-����
���� 
�%
���� 
�����������%����� ����.��� %��� ���9%���� ����.���+� �=%��� �%���� 4�

��-�� 
����%��� ����
������ 
�� ��� �&
�
��� ��� ������ ��� ��
��� ���� ���� ���
�� .���� ��� �����

������.
������������������4�.���������9��.�.���������+�������%�
�������.����������%�

����%� �����%� .����� �
��� ���� %������ ��� ��������� ����� ��� &�� &����� �����%� ����

Page 25



15 

���
�
����� ���� 
�� ���
� ��
����$%� �
-�%+$� 6��
���� ����� ��� 8��'� �
���� ��������� �8����

������������
���������������������*������������ � �
�������������������������������������

����-)�����������
���������������
������
�
����
�����������"�

�

,� �������� ����� ����� ������������ 
��� �� ������� ���
��� ��������� 8�� >������� ,��

�������
� ���'��� ���� �8��� ��� 8���� 
��� ����A������� ��� ������� ��� ��������E� ������'����

����������������������������"���������
������������
������������������8�������
�����������


���#0�����
�����
������������
�����������������������������������
���
���������������

��������������������"���
����
���8��������������������������
����������������A8��������

�
��� �
��� ��� �� ������� ��� 8��
� ���
����� �8������ ��� ������� ��� ��������� ��� 
��� ��� �����

������������

�

������������������-�����
�

	
��������	�������
����������������������C����
����,�������������
�����������
��:�-�

������������������������������������
������������������������
������������������
�

	
��������	��������������������8�������"����

�

D�������������
���������
����������������������������
���������
����������������
�

����������������.BK�������������
�����������������������������������������������
���

	
��������	���������:���$5#5����BB"7K����:���$5#$����B;K����/���$5#7?��

District 
Dec-
10 

Dec-
11 

Feb-
12 

Apr-
12 

Jun-
12 

Aug
-12 

Oct-
12 

Dec-
12 

Jan-
13 

Feb-
13 

Mar-
13 

Apr-
13 

May
-13 

Boston CCs 
Average 

62% 64% 64% 64% 64% 62% 62% 62% 62% 62% 61% 62% 61%

East Lindsey CCs 
Average 

65% 73% 75% 76% 76% 77% 77% 78% 79% 79% 79% 80% 80%

Lincoln CCs 
Average 

70% 70% 70% 70% 70% 71% 72% 71% 72% 71% 71% 71% 72%

North Kesteven 
CCs Average 

45% 53% 54% 54% 55% 56% 57% 57% 58% 58% 57% 58% 59%

South Holland CCs 
Average 

44% 52% 53% 53% 55% 56% 57% 58% 59% 59% 59% 58% 59%

South Kesteven 
CCs Average 

47% 48% 49% 49% 50% 51% 52% 52% 52% 53% 52% 52% 53%

West Lindsey CCs 
Average 

63% 69% 71% 72% 73% 73% 74% 74% 75% 75% 74% 74% 74%

Lincolnshire CCs 
Average 

56% 62% 63% 64% 64% 65% 66% 66% 67% 67% 66% 67% 67%

Page 26



16 

,��3������������
������,����������������������������8�����F����
�������������������

���������������������������8���
�����������������
��
�����������.��
������������

��������
���"��
�������������������������,�����$5#7����������������������������������
"�

�

������������
������������.BK����J����$5#$�
���������������;%K����J�������$5#7��	������

�������M�;5K���
���������������
���	
��������	���������������������������������
������������

����������������������������
��������8�����������"��

�

����
����,������������	
����������������	����*�	
�������������������������������������


�������������������������������������8���������������
��������������������������������������

��������������	
��������	�����������
�����������������8���
���������������������������

�����������.;"2K����J�������$5#$����B0"BK����J�������$5#7"��

�

F�����������������������������������
���
�����������������
��
����8����������������8����

���������������������'���������������������������������������������
�������������

�����#7"BK����J�������$5#$����$5"BK�3��J�������$5#$����75"#K����/���$5#7������
���������

�����������?�

�

Page 27



17 

� � � � �

� "� � �

��
������ #$�%&'%(')��

�������

���*'%�

�������

���*')( �"�����+�� ���*')�

�������

,�
���� -&"-.� )/"&.� 0-� -1"&.�

$�
������
��� )1"%.� %%"-.� %/� '1"0.�

�������� %-"-.� '2"0.� 1/� )1"&.�

 �����3�
������ %4"&.� -"4.� 1� ''"2.�

�������������� %4").� 4"/.� )� 2"%.�

������3�
������ %0"4.� ''"&.� %%� %1"4.�

5�
������
��� )2"0.� %)"&.� %2� )&"&.�

�������������(� ���

6��������

&"&.� ')"%.� &� &"&.�

7�����8����� )/").� '-").� %%)� )&"'.�

�

�����������������	�
����������2������������
���	�������*��
%����������	�
����>%�	�����.�������������������
�������

��-
��%������������������

�

�������� ����0�����
�

	
��������	����������������	
�����������������������������������������������
���������

�������������������������������������"��

�

>��
��
���
���������8�������������������
��>���������������
��������'��������������'�����

	
��������	��������
��
�������������8���
��,�������������<����,��������������������

������������������������"�6���
��������������������8����,�����������������	
��������

	����������������������������������������������'������������������������������
����

�
��������������������������������"��

�����������������������
�

,������
���������������������������������8����������'���8������
����� ��
��������������

�
��	����������������	�����"��
�����������������(����������������
����������'��
����������

����
�����������
���
����
�����
�	
��������	������"�3��������������������
��������������

������
��������������
��������������������������������������"���

�

����������
�� ��
����������������������������
��
����'����������/���
�$5##����
�#%..�

��������������������$#7���������������������
��
������������8����������������������

#$�����
���
����
��
����������������������������"��

Page 28



18 

�

3�������������
��������������������	
������	�������������'���
����������A������

���������������������������������������'�����
���������������������
������������

�������������������
�����
�������������������"�������)��������������������8����?�

�

,��,�����	
��������	�������
��6����������������������������������,��������������������

������1��������*������
���1�����#5����'�"�6��8��'������������������������
�������������

���
���A��
������������!�������
�����������������������������������
�����������

������������"��
���
���8��������������"���������
��������������������
�������������$�������

���
������������������$�!������������"��
����������
����8���������������������������

������
��6��������������������������������������
��
�������������������������������
��

	
�����1��	�����"��

�

6��8��'�����������������������
���������
����������������	������N���������������

F���������	����	
��������	������������������������������
������������������
�����������

�
�������������
�������
���8����������������"��
��	����������������������'�������
��
��

�������������������
�������������"��
����������
���������������������������������'�

����J����75
�


�������������������������������������
����������������
����������������

������'��8��������������'�"�4��������������
���������������������������������������

�����
����������
�����������������������������������
��"�

�

��������
����������������������������������	
�����1��	������=������&������
�� �

	���
���� �F��'������ �,����������8��������������������������������������������
��������

�
�����"���
���
����8���������������������������
������������������
����������������

�
����
���������������"��

�

��������������������	�����������������
�

�
��������
����������
����������������������������'������
��������������
���������
��

������,��
����������
����������8���8�������	
��������	�����������
�����������������

���
����������������������������������"��
�����������������'��������������
��	������

Page 29



19 

���������������
���������������������O�
��	
������	������������������������
��3����������

����P������������������4�����������������������
����!���������������������
�����������

���������������"�J������8���������� ����������'�����������������������������A����������

������������������������
����������
���
����8�������������8���
��������������'"�

�

�
��	������������8����������+������������
��������������������������8����'���������������

�����������������?��

� ,������������������8���������
����������
������������"�

� �
��!����������������������������������������"�

� �
�������������������������
�� �������������������������"�

� 4��������������������"�

�

>
�������
������+�������������������������������
������������������������������?��

�

9��������������������������
���������

F�����������������������������������������������

>
��
������������������������������������������������������������
����

�

�
����������������������+���������

• 4����������

• =���

• ��!������3�����������

• 3���!�����

�

4������$.�C/�����	�������#2�
����8����������������
��
��������������������?��

%�4���������?��'������ ������8� ���������	������ �=����8�����
�

#$����?�&����� �/�8���
���� �>�������� �,88�� �&���
��� �>��
�� �������� ���������

<���
 �=����8�����
�-�		 �=����
���&���������� �=����
��������8���� �>������

7�����������������������8����!�����������������������
��������������'�?�������� �

F��8���
 �/��'�������������

�

Page 30



20 

4�
����
������������������
�@��������A�����
��������
������������������
��������������

�����8���������
�����
��������������
����������8������������"�>��
����B��������������

�
�����������������������������������
��
�������������������������'?���������� �����
 ����

=���� �>������������� �������� �����
�>��
��"���

�

>��
����������������������������
�����������������	
��������	�������������������������� �

������
�����������������
������������
����������8���������������������"���

�

��������	
��
�����

�

���������
���8�������������������������������������������'�
����
����8���������������

���'�����������������
�	
��������	��������������		�����
��
�������������)������������

4���������������"���
����		���������������8������)���������	�����������"��

�

,�!�������������������������'�����	
���������������������8��������8��������8���$5#7 ����

��������������������������		����������������8��������������
��������!����������������"���

�

1�����������
�

������������������������������������������������4��������	
��������	�������������
����

8�������������������������"��

�

,���������������
����	
��������	����������������������?��

• ��������
������'�������������8�������������������������������� ����������

����������'�������
��������	��������� ��

• ������������������������������������������������������������

• ���������8�����������
�����������������
�������������

• �������������
������������������

• 8�������������������������������������������������"��

�

Page 31



21 

,�����������
�������������������������������������
�������������������������������

�����"��
�������������������������������
����
��
���
�����������
�����������������

�������������4����"���
����������?�

• ,��������������

• ��A��������������
�������
�F����
�H��������������� �/�����������J�8�	������������

• ���'���������������
���
������

• !�����������������

• �
������������

• ���'�����������������������

• 6���
�����������������	�������������<�����'��

�

�

�

#����������
�

������������������2��	���1�3�'����������#������
�����

��������	
������

����	
���
��	������
�����������	���	

�

�

������������������������
�����*��
�3����

�������

����������
�����������

��

�

Page 32



Policy and Scrutiny

Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Director of Children's Services 

Report to: Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee

Date: 26 July 2013 

Subject: Youth Housing Strategy  

Decision Reference:Key decision? No

Summary:  

The Youth Housing Strategy seeks to set out the strategic vision for delivery of 
youth housing services in Lincolnshire for the next 5 years. The Strategy has 
been developed jointly between Children's Services, Public Health and the 7 
District Housing Authorities as well as with input from young people and our key 
partners and stakeholders. 

Actions Required: 

That the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee consider the 
document as part of the consultation process and feed back any comments and 
recommendations. Subsequent to any suggested changes being included, the 
Strategy will then be brought back to the next Scrutiny Committee in September 
for final ratification. 

1. Background

Over the past year Children’s Services, the seven District Housing Authorities and 
Public Health have worked together to develop this Strategy which seeks to outline 
how agencies will work together to create a co-ordinated approach to meeting the 
needs of young people who experience difficulties with housing. The Strategy has 
a particular focus on young people aged 16 – 25. 

This Strategy provides a framework for all relevant agencies and partners to 
develop services which focus on early intervention, prevention and assistance for 
young people to remain at home for as long as possible where it is safe to do so. 
This Strategy also provides that where prevention is not possible we will ensure we 
can provide accommodation that is appropriate and suitable to young people’s 
individual needs and that is able to support them to have the skills and means to 
live independently. 

The Strategy builds on Lincolnshire’s long history of good partnership working and 
will bring partners together in a strategic and coordinated way to create efficiencies 

Agenda Item 5

Page 33



across our teams and make best use of our collective resources as well as 
improving services for young people. 

The consultation for this Strategy began on 10th June 2013 and is due to conclude 
on 26th July 2013. The Strategy has been sent out to key partners, stakeholders 
and to young people. We have tried to reach as wide an audience as possible by 
using other strategy groups and their members including the Children and Young 
People Strategic Partnership, the Lincolnshire Homeless Strategy Group, the 
Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Board, the District Housing Network and Public 
Health’s network of Support Providers. The Strategy was sent with a covering letter 
sent jointly by Debbie Barnes and Rachel North, Director of Communities at West 
Lindsey District Council. The Strategy has also been published on Local Authority 
websites. 

Consultation events providing an overview and workshops on the Strategy which 
have been delivered to Young People and Supported Accommodation Providers as 
well as some of the groups mentioned above. 

2. Conclusion

This Strategy provides the opportunity for Children’s Services to provide 
outstanding services to young people that are homeless or at risk of homelessness 
across Lincolnshire.  

This overarching and inclusive Strategic overview ensures that Children’s Services, 
along with other key partners and stakeholders, are working in a joined up and 
complimentary way. 

3. Consultation

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required

n/a 

4. Appendices

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Lincolnshire Youth Housing Strategy 

5. Background Papers 

No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 

This report was written by Phil Taylor, who can be contacted on 07775026264 or 
phil.taylor@lincolnshire.gov.uk . 

Page 34



L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 

2
0

1
3

 –
 2

0
1

8

Page 35



F
o

re
w

o
rd

1
. 

 
In

tr
o

d
u
ct

io
n
  

 
 

 
 

 

1
.1

. 
 

V
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 O

b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5
 

1
.2

. 
 

St
ra

te
gy

 C
o

n
te

n
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5
 

1
.3

. 
 

E
q
u
al

iti
e
s 

an
d
 D

iv
e
rs

ity
 I
m

p
ac

t 
A

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
t 

 
 

 
 

6
1

.3
.1

. 
R

e
co

gn
is

in
g 

E
q
u
al

ity
 a

n
d
 D

iv
e
rs

ity
 

 
 

 
 

6

1
.3

.2
. 

E
q
u
al

iti
e
s 

Im
p
ac

t 
A

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
t 

 
 

 
 

6

2
. 

 
B

ac
k
gr

o
u
n
d

  
 

 
 

 
 

7
 

3
. 

 
P

o
lic

y 
C

o
n
te

x
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

3
.1

. 
 

N
at

io
n
al

 P
o

lic
y 

an
d
 C

o
n
te

xt
 

 
 

 
 

8
3

.2
  

 
Lo

ca
l P

o
lic

y 
an

d
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 R
e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

tie
s 

 
 

 
9

3
.3

. 
C

u
rr

e
n
t 

Jo
in

t 
W

o
rk

in
g 

A
rr

an
ge

m
e
n
ts

 
 

 
 

1
0

3
.3

.1
. 

P
ro

to
co

l a
n
d
 P

ra
ct

ic
e
 G

u
id

an
ce

 
 

 
 

 
1

0
3

.3
.2

. 
Yo

u
th

 H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 M
an

ag
e
m

e
n
t 

Pa
n
e
ls

 
 

 
 

1
0

3
.4

. 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

L
in

ks
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

1

4
. 

 
R

e
vi

e
w

 o
f 

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 in
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 

 
 

4
.1

. 
 

T
h
e
 S

ca
le

 a
n
d
 N

at
u
re

 o
f Y

o
u
th

 H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 
 

 
 

1
2

4
.1

.1
. 

A
p
p
ro

ac
h
e
s 

 
 

 
 

 
1

2
4

.1
.2

. 
To

ta
l N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f Y

o
u
n
g 

Pe
o

p
le

 
 

 
 

 
1

2
4

.1
.3

. 
R

e
p
e
at

 A
p
p
ro

ac
h
e
s 

 
 

 
 

 
1

3
4

.1
.4

. 
D

u
p
lic

at
io

n
s 

 
 

 
 

 
1

4
4

.1
.5

. 
R

e
as

o
n
s 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 
 

 
 

 
1

5
 -

 1
9

4
.1

.6
. 

O
u
tc

o
m

e
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
0

 -
 2

2
4

.1
.7

. 
A

ge
 D

is
tr

ib
u
tio

n
 o

f H
o

u
si

n
g 

D
at

a 
 

 
 

 
2

3
4

.1
.8

. 
G

e
o

gr
ap

h
ic

al
 D

is
tr

ib
u
tio

n
 o

f A
p
p
ro

ac
h
e
s 

 
 

 
2

3
 -

 2
4

4
.1

.9
. 

L
in

ks
 w

ith
 T

ro
u
b
le

d
 F

am
ili

e
s 

 
 

 
 

2
5

4
.2

. 
 

A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 O

p
tio

n
s 

fo
r 

Yo
u
n
g 

Pe
o

p
le

 
 

 
 

2
6

 
4

.2
.1

. 
Ty

p
e
s 

o
f A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 fo

r 
Yo

u
n
g 

Pe
o

p
le

 
 

 
 

2
6

 -
 2

7
4

.2
.2

. 
C

u
rr

e
n
t 

A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 P

ro
vi

si
o

n
 in

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 

 
 

2
8

4
.3

. 
U

se
 o

f A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 C

u
rr

e
n
tly

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n
e
d
 b

y 
Lo

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

tie
s 

2
9

4
.3

.1
. 

M
e
th

o
d
o

lo
gy

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
9

4
.3

.2
. 

O
ve

ra
ll 

N
u
m

b
e
rs

 
 

 
 

 
 

2
9

4
.3

.3
. 

A
ge

 R
an

ge
  

 
 

 
 

 
3

0
4

.3
.4

. 
Le

n
gt

h
 o

f S
ta

y 
 

 
 

 
 

3
0

4
.3

.5
. 

R
e
fe

rr
al

 R
o

u
te

s 
 

 
 

 
 

3
1

4
.3

.6
. 

Lo
ca

l A
u
th

o
ri

ty
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

1
4

.3
.7

. 
N

e
e
d
s 

H
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

2
4

.4
. 

 
In

vo
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f S

ta
ke

h
o

ld
e
rs

 
 

 
 

 
3

2
 

4
.5

. 
 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
an

d
 C

o
n
cl

u
si

o
n
s 

 
  

 
 

3
3

 -
 3

4
 

5
. 

 
G

o
o

d
 P

ra
ct

ic
e
 a

n
d

 C
as

e
 S

tu
d

ie
s 

  
 

 

5
.1

. 
 

G
o

o
d
 P

ra
ct

ic
e
 

 
 

 
 

 
3

5
5

.2
. 

C
as

e
 S

tu
d
ie

s 
 

 
 

 
 

3
5

5
.2

.1
. 

M
r 

B
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
5

 -
 3

6

5
.2

.2
. 

M
is

s 
P
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
6

 -
 3

7

6
. 

W
ay

 F
o

rw
ar

d
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

6
.1

. 
 

D
e
liv

e
ri

n
g 

Se
rv

ic
e
s 

A
lo

n
g 

T
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

Pa
th

w
ay

 
 

 
3

8
 

6
.2

. 
 

K
e
y 

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
9

6
.2

.1
. 

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
 A

: 
U

n
d
e
rp

in
n
in

g 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

P
ri

o
ri

tie
s 

 
 

 
3

9
6

.2
.2

. 
O

b
je

ct
iv

e
 B

: 
P
re

ve
n
tio

n
 a

n
d
 E

ar
ly

 I
n
te

rv
e
n
tio

n
  

 
 

3
9

6
.2

.3
. 

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
 C

: 
P
re

ve
n
tio

n
 a

t 
th

e
 P

o
in

t 
o

f C
ri

si
s 

 
 

 
3

9
6

.2
.4

. 
O

b
je

ct
iv

e
 D

: 
Su

p
p
o

rt
 a

n
d
 S

ta
b
ili

sa
tio

n
 

 
 

 
4

0
6

.2
.5

. 
O

b
je

ct
iv

e
 E

: 
R

e
se

tt
le

m
e
n
t 

 
 

 
 

4
0

6
.3

. 
 

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

in
 P

ra
ct

ic
e
 –

 T
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
ct

io
n
 P

la
n
 

 
 

4
0

 -
 4

6
6

.4
. 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n
in

g 
P
la

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
4

7

C
o

n
te

n
ts

Page 36



W
e
lc

o
m

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 Y

o
u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 w
h
ic

h
 

se
e
k
s 

to
 o

u
tl

in
e
 h

o
w

 a
ge

n
ci

e
s 

w
ill

 w
o

rk
 t

o
ge

th
e
r 

to
 c

re
at

e
 a

 
co

-o
rd

in
at

e
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h
 t

o
 m

e
e
ti

n
g 

th
e
 n

e
e
d

s 
o

f 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 
w

h
o

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n
ce

 d
if
fi
cu

lt
ie

s 
w

it
h
 h

o
u
si

n
g.

  
 I
 t

ak
e
 g

re
at

 p
le

as
u
re

 in
 

p
re

se
n
ti

n
g 

th
is

 s
tr

at
e
gy

 a
s 

it
 p

ro
vi

d
e
s 

an
 o

ve
rs

ig
h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 h

o
u
si

n
g 

is
su

e
s 

fa
ci

n
g 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

d
ay

 a
n
d

 a
 v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

ta
ck

lin
g 

th
e
m

. 
I 

w
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 li

k
e
 t

o
 t

ak
e
 t

h
is

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it

y 
to

 t
h
an

k
 t

h
o

se
 w

h
o

 h
av

e
 

co
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 it

s 
cr

e
at

io
n
, 

e
sp

e
ci

al
ly

 t
h
e
 s

e
ve

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n
ci

l 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s,

 r
e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
ve

s 
fr

o
m

 P
u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th
 a

n
d

 a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

k
e
y 

st
ak

e
h
o

ld
e
rs

.

Y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 r
e
p

re
se

n
t 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 o

f 
o

u
r 

so
ci

e
ty

. 
If

 w
e
 f

ai
l t

o
 

e
n
ab

le
 t

h
e
m

, 
th

ro
u
gh

 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

ad
vi

ce
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
, 

to
 m

ak
e
 t

h
e
 

tr
an

si
ti

o
n
 t

o
 a

d
u
lt

h
o

o
d

 a
n
d

 in
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
ce

, 
th

e
n
 w

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

cr
e
at

in
g 

d
ys

fu
n
ct

io
n
al

 c
o

m
m

u
n
it

ie
s.

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 a

ge
n
ci

e
s 

w
h
o

 
se

rv
e
 t

h
e
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 o
f 

th
is

 C
o

u
n
ty

 a
ck

n
o

w
le

d
ge

 t
h
e
 

im
p

o
rt

an
ce

 o
f 

e
ar

ly
 in

te
rv

e
n
ti

o
n
 t

o
 p

re
ve

n
t 

yo
u
th

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

, 
w

h
e
re

ve
r 

p
o

ss
ib

le
, 

b
u
t 

al
so

 r
e
co

gn
is

e
 t

h
at

 s
u
it

ab
le

 
ac

co
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
, 

su
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
d

vi
ce

 m
u
st

 b
e
 in

 p
la

ce
 w

h
e
n
 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 c
an

n
o

t 
b

e
 a

vo
id

e
d

. 

W
e
 a

re
 li

vi
n
g 

in
 a

n
 u

n
p

re
d

ic
ta

b
le

 e
co

n
o

m
ic

 c
lim

at
e
, 

b
o

th
 

gl
o

b
al

ly
 a

n
d

 n
at

io
n
al

ly
. 

If
 w

e
 f

ai
l o

u
r 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

, 
th

e
n
 s

o
ci

e
ty

 
w

ill
 f

e
e
l t

h
e
 im

p
ac

t.
 M

o
st

 e
sp

e
ci

al
ly

 it
 w

ill
 a

p
p

ly
 t

o
 t

h
o

se
 w

h
o

 a
re

 
ill

 e
q

u
ip

p
e
d

 f
o

r 
in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

liv
in

g 
an

d
 la

ck
 t

h
e
 li

fe
 s

k
ill

s 
to

 s
u
st

ai
n
 

a 
te

n
an

cy
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
m

se
lv

e
s 

fi
n
an

ci
al

ly
 a

n
d

 e
m

o
ti

o
n
al

ly
; 

th
e
y 

ar
e
 t

h
e
 o

n
e
s 

w
h
o

 a
re

 m
o

st
 li

k
e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 a

d
ve

rs
e
ly

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

 
an

d
 t

h
u
s 

re
d

u
ce

 t
h
e
ir

 c
h
an

ce
s 

o
f 

liv
in

g 
a 

h
ap

p
y 

an
d

 f
u
lfi

lle
d

 li
fe

.

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 u

se
 o

f 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
 

fo
r 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 is
 n

o
t 

ju
st

 a
 “

h
o

u
si

n
g 

p
ro

b
le

m
” 

–
 y

o
u
th

 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 is
 t

h
e
 e

n
d

 p
ro

d
u
ct

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

fa
ct

o
rs

, 
si

tu
at

io
n
s 

an
d

 
cr

is
e
s 

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n
ce

d
 b

y 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

. 
M

o
st

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h
o

 
b

e
co

m
e
 h

o
m

e
le

ss
 o

r 
at

 r
is

k
 o

f 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 h
av

e
 n

e
e
d

s 
w

h
ic

h
 

co
u
ld

 h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d

re
ss

e
d

 b
e
fo

re
 e

sc
al

at
io

n
.

W
e
 w

an
t 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

si
tu

at
io

n
. 

T
h
is

 S
tr

at
e
gy

 is
 

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 a
s 

a 
fr

am
e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
al

l r
e
le

va
n
t 

ag
e
n
ci

e
s 

&
 p

ar
tn

e
rs

 t
o

 
d

e
ve

lo
p

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

w
h
ic

h
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 e

ar
ly

 in
te

rv
e
n
ti

o
n
, 

p
re

ve
n
ti

o
n
 

an
d

 a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 f
o

r 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 r
e
m

ai
n
 a

t 
h
o

m
e
 f

o
r 

as
 lo

n
g 

as
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 (
w

h
e
re

 s
af

e
 t

o
 d

o
 s

o
).

  
In

 c
ir

cu
m

st
an

ce
s 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
is

 
is

 n
o

t 
p

o
ss

ib
le

, 
w

e
 n

e
e
d

 a
 li

st
 o

f 
su

p
p

o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

to
 a

ss
is

t 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 g
ai

n
 t

h
e
 s

k
ill

s 
to

 e
n
ab

le
 t

h
e
m

 t
o

 b
e
 in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

an
d

 t
o

 
h
av

e
 t

h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 m

ai
n
ta

in
 a

 t
e
n
an

cy
 in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
tl

y.
L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 h

as
 a

 lo
n
g 

h
is

to
ry

 o
f 

go
o

d
 p

ar
tn

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g,
 

w
h
ic

h
 h

as
 n

e
ve

r 
b

e
e
n
 m

o
re

 im
p

o
rt

an
t 

th
an

 t
o

d
ay

. 
T

h
ro

u
gh

 
th

is
 s

tr
at

e
gy

 o
u
r 

ai
m

 is
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 t
h
e
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 o
f 

L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 w

h
o

 fi
n
d

 t
h
e
m

se
lv

e
s 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
 o

r 
th

re
at

e
n
e
d

 w
it

h
 h

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
re

 g
iv

e
n
 t

h
e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

an
d

 a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 f
o

r 
th

e
m

 t
o

 r
e
m

ai
n
 a

t 
h
o

m
e
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it

y 
to

 d
e
ve

lo
p

 s
e
lf
 w

o
rt

h
, 

o
b

ta
in

 o
r 

su
st

ai
n
 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t,

 a
n
d

 g
ro

w
 s

af
e
ly

 t
o

w
ar

d
s 

e
m

o
ti

o
n
al

 
m

at
u
ri

ty
.

F
o

re
w

o
rd

D
e
b

b
ie

 B
ar

n
e
s,

 
D

ir
e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s,

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
ci

l  

R
ac

h
e
l N

o
rt

h
, 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n
it

ie
s 

an
d

 L
o

ca
lis

m
, 

W
e
st

 L
in

d
se

y 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n
ci

l

Page 37



1
.1

. 
V

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e
s 

T
h
e
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 Y

o
u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 s
e
e
k
s 

to
 b

ri
n
g 

k
e
y 

p
ar

tn
e
rs

 a
n
d

 s
ta

k
e
h
o

ld
e
rs

 t
o

ge
th

e
r 

to
 c

re
at

e
 c

o
o

rd
in

at
e
d

 a
n
d

 
jo

in
e
d

 u
p

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

fo
r 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
cr

o
ss

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 w

h
o

 
e
x
p

e
ri

e
n
ce

 d
if
fi
cu

lt
ie

s 
w

it
h
 h

o
u
si

n
g.

A
ll 

L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 p

ar
tn

e
rs

 a
cr

o
ss

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
it

te
d

 
to

 e
n
su

ri
n
g 

th
at

 a
ll 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n
ci

n
g 

d
if
fi
cu

lt
ie

s 
w

it
h
 

h
o

u
si

n
g 

re
ce

iv
e
 t

h
e
 h

e
lp

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
at

 t
h
e
y 

n
e
e
d

.

T
h
is

 S
tr

at
e
gy

 c
o

n
si

d
e
rs

 t
h
e
 w

h
o

le
 y

o
u
th

 h
o

u
si

n
g 

p
at

h
w

ay
 a

n
d

 
id

e
n
ti

fi
e
s 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 r
ig

h
t 

fr
o

m
 

ar
e
as

 o
f 

e
ar

ly
 in

te
rv

e
n
ti

o
n
 a

n
d

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 t
o

 
in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
ce

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 s

u
cc

e
e
d

.

T
h
e
re

 h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 m

an
y 

su
cc

e
ss

e
s 

an
d

 e
x
am

p
le

s 
o

f 
b

e
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 

ac
ro

ss
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
. 

It
 is

 h
o

p
e
d

 t
h
at

 t
h
is

 S
tr

at
e
gy

 w
ill

 p
u
ll 

th
o

se
 

to
ge

th
e
r,

 in
co

rp
o

ra
ti

n
g 

b
o

th
 t

h
e
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n
ce

s 
o

f 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 
an

d
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

s,
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 c

o
n
si

st
e
n
t 

an
d

 o
u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e
s.

 

O
u
r 

vi
si

o
n
 is

 t
o

 e
n
su

re
 t

h
at

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
h
e
ir

 p
o

te
n
ti

al
.

O
u
r 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
o

b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

th
ro

u
gh

 t
h
is

 s
tr

at
e
gy

 a
re

 t
o

: 

  
 s

tr
at

e
gi

c 
w

ay
.

  
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n
 h

o
u
si

n
g 

an
d

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 

  
 m

ax
im

u
m

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 a
ss

is
te

d
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

  
  

 t
o

 r
e
m

ai
n
 w

it
h
in

 f
am

ily
 a

n
d

 k
in

sh
ip

 a
rr

an
ge

m
e
n
ts

.

  
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

le
ve

l o
f 

d
e
m

an
d

 r
e
fl
e
ct

in
g 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

s  
   

  
 n

e
e
d

s.

  
 t

h
at

 h
av

e
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n
ce

d
 h

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
n
d

 f
o

r 
C

ar
e
 L

e
av

e
rs

 t
o

  
  

 f
ac

ili
ta

te
 in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
ce

.

  1
. 
In

tr
o

d
u
ct

io
n 1

.2
. 
St

ra
te

gy
 C

o
n
te

n
t

T
h
e
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 Y

o
u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 h
as

 b
e
e
n
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 in
 

p
ar

tn
e
rs

h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
ci

l’s
 C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

Te
am

, 
L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
’s

 s
e
ve

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s,

 
L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
ci

l’s
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th
 D

ir
e
ct

o
ra

te
 a

n
d

 a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

k
e
y 

st
ak

e
h
o

ld
e
rs

.

T
h
e
 s

tr
at

e
gy

 h
as

 b
e
e
n
 in

fo
rm

e
d

 b
y 

co
n
su

lt
at

io
n
 a

n
d

 t
h
ro

u
gh

 a
 

th
o

ro
u
gh

 r
e
vi

e
w

 o
f 

yo
u
th

 h
o

u
si

n
g 

an
d

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

. 
T

h
is

 h
as

 
gi

ve
n
 u

s 
a 

so
u
n
d

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g 

o
f 

th
e
 is

su
e
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 u
s 

d
e
ve

lo
p

 
an

d
 t

ar
ge

t 
fu

tu
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

.

O
u
r 

fi
n
d

in
gs

 h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 i
n
to

 a
n
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n
 t

h
at

 
fo

llo
w

s 
fo

u
r 

cl
e
ar

 s
ta

ge
s 

o
f 

a 
p

at
h
w

ay
 a

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
rs

o
n
 m

ay
 t

ak
e
 

aw
ay

 f
ro

m
 h

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

. 
T

h
is

 A
ct

io
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 p

ar
tn

e
rs

h
ip

 
gr

o
u
p

 t
h
at

 o
ve

rs
e
e
s 

it
s 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 w
ill

 b
e
 t

h
e
 d

ri
vi

n
g 

fo
rc

e
 b

e
h
in

d
 

d
e
ve

lo
p

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

fo
r 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n
ci

n
g 

h
o

u
si

n
g 

d
if
fi
cu

lt
ie

s.
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T

h
e
 lo

ca
l a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

in
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 a

ll 
h
av

e
 e

q
u
al

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it

ie
s 

p
o

lic
ie

s 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n
ta

in
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g 
k
e
y 

co
m

m
it

m
e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 lo

ca
l 

au
th

o
ri

ti
e
s:

 
L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 a

n
d

 in
te

n
d

 t
h
at

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
vi

si
o

n
  

 
 

p
o

lic
y 

re
fl
e
ct

 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d

s 
an

d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s 

o
f 

an
 in

cr
e
as

in
gl

y 
 

 
d

iv
e
rs

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
.

 
re

so
u
rc

e
s 

o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 d
is

cr
im

in
at

e
d

 a
ga

in
st

 in
 s

o
ci

e
ty

. 
 

 
 

N
o

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

se
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 d

is
cr

im
in

at
e
d

 a
ga

in
st

, 
d

ir
e
ct

ly
 o

r 
 

 
in

d
ir

e
ct

ly
, 

h
ar

as
se

d
 o

r 
re

ce
iv

e
 le

ss
 f

av
o

u
ra

b
le

 
 

tr
e
at

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d

s 
o

f 
ge

n
d

e
r,

 r
ac

e
, 
co

lo
u
r,

 e
th

n
ic

  
 

o
r 

n
at

io
n
al

 o
ri

gi
n
, 

d
is

ab
ili

ty
, 

m
ar

it
al

 s
ta

tu
s,

 f
am

ily
 

 
co

m
m

it
m

e
n
ts

, 
se

x
u
al

 o
ri

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
, 

ag
e
, 

H
IV

 s
ta

tu
s,

 
 

re
lig

io
u
s 

o
r 

p
o

lit
ic

al
 b

e
lie

fs
, 

so
ci

al
 c

la
ss

, 
o

r 
ir

re
le

va
n
t 

  
 

sp
e
n
t 

co
n
vi

ct
io

n
.

 
re

la
ti

o
n
s 

an
d

 w
ill

 w
o

rk
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 t
h
e
ir

 o
w

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

an
d

  
 

th
e
 p

ar
tn

e
rs

h
ip

s 
th

e
y 

ar
e
 i
n
vo

lv
e
d

 i
n
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 
 

e
q

u
al

it
y 

o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it

y 
to

 a
ll.

 
to

 a
ll.

 
te

rm
s 

o
f 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

w
e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 o
ff

e
r.

A
n
 I
m

p
ac

t 
A

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
t 

h
as

 b
e
e
n
 c

ar
ri

e
d

 o
u
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 
H

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 S
tr

at
e
gy

 t
o

 e
n
su

re
 i
t 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d

s 
o

f 
d

iv
e
rs

e
 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it

y.
 T

h
e
 I
A

 i
n
cl

u
d

e
s 

se
ct

io
n
s 

e
x
p

la
in

in
g 

h
o

w
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

k
in

d
s 

o
f 

is
su

e
s 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 b
e
in

g 
ta

k
e
n
 i
n
to

 a
cc

o
u
n
t.

 T
h
e
se

 i
n
cl

u
d

e
:

 
tr

av
e
lle

rs
.

 
in

cl
u
d

in
g 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
al

th
, 

le
ar

n
in

g/
 b

e
h
av

io
u
ra

l/
 

im
p

ai
rm

e
n
t,

 m
o

b
ili

ty
, 

au
d

io
/ 

vi
su

al
 a

n
d

 l
im

it
in

g 
lo

n
g 

 
te

rm
 i
lln

e
ss

e
s.

W
e
 h

av
e
 r

e
co

gn
is

e
d

 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti

n
u
al

ly
 c

o
n
su

lt
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 o
u
r 

p
ar

tn
e
rs

, 
an

d
 t

o
 a

sk
 h

o
w

 o
u
r 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

im
p

ac
t 

o
n
 

th
e
m

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

 p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

is
 s

tr
at

e
gy

. 
W

e
 a

ls
o

 r
e
co

gn
is

e
 

th
at

 a
s 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
is

 s
tr

at
e
gy

 c
au

se
s 

u
s 

to
 a

m
e
n
d

 a
n
d

 a
d

ap
t 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

an
d

 h
o

w
 w

e
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
m

, 
th

at
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 i
m

p
ac

t 
as

se
ss

m
e
n
ts

 m
ay

 n
e
e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 t

ak
e
n
. 

 

Page 38



Page 39



T
h
is

 S
tr

at
e
gy

 w
as

 p
re

ce
d

e
d

 b
y 

th
e
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 Y

o
u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 2
0

0
5

 –
 2

0
1

0
. 

U
p

o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 t

h
at

 d
o

cu
m

e
n
t 

w
as

 
re

vi
e
w

e
d

 a
n
d

 it
s 

su
cc

e
ss

e
s 

m
e
as

u
re

d
. 

R
e
co

m
m

e
n
d

at
io

n
s

 in
cl

u
d

e
d

 t
h
e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

a 
n
e
w

 fi
ve

 y
e
ar

 s
tr

at
e
gy

. 

In
 p

ra
ct

ic
e
 t

h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 o
p

e
ra

te
d

 a
s 

a 
su

b
-g

ro
u
p

 
o

f 
th

e
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 H

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 S
tr

at
e
gy

 G
ro

u
p

, 
a 

gr
o

u
p

 w
h
ic

h
 

m
e
e
ts

 m
o

n
th

ly
 a

n
d

 h
as

 a
 ‘
yo

u
th

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

’ 
th

e
m

e
 t

h
re

e
 

ti
m

e
s 

a 
ye

ar
. 

T
h
e
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 H

o
m

e
le

ss
 S

tr
at

e
gy

 G
ro

u
p

 c
o

n
si

st
s 

o
f 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
ve

s 
fr

o
m

 a
cr

o
ss

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s,

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 

C
o

u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
ci

l, 
Su

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s,

 A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 P

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 
an

d
 o

th
e
r 

k
e
y 

ag
e
n
ci

e
s 

th
at

 h
av

e
 a

 r
o

le
 in

 p
re

ve
n
ti

n
g 

an
d

 
ad

d
re

ss
in

g 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

. 
T

h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 h
as

 p
ro

ve
d

 a
 p

o
si

ti
ve

 f
o

ru
m

 
fo

r 
C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
ci

l a
n
d

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

to
 m

e
e
t 

an
d

 
d

e
ve

lo
p

 j
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g.

T
h
ro

u
gh

o
u
t 

th
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

o
f 

2
0

1
1

 t
h
e
 L

o
ca

l A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

ac
ro

ss
 

L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
e
d

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

tr
ai

n
in

g 
an

d
 

w
o

rk
sh

o
p

s 
to

 a
ll 

fr
o

n
t 

lin
e
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

A
d

vi
so

rs
 a

n
d

 S
o

ci
al

 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 o
n
 r

e
le

va
n
t 

p
ie

ce
s 

o
f 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n
, 

ca
se

-l
aw

 a
n
d

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
 a

ro
u
n
d

 y
o

u
th

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

. 
T

h
e
 fi

n
al

 s
e
ss

io
n
s 

w
e
re

 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 m

an
ag

e
rs

 a
n
d

 a
ls

o
 g

av
e
 f

e
e
d

b
ac

k
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

re
vi

o
u
s 

se
ss

io
n
s.

T
h
e
 f

e
e
d

b
ac

k
 s

e
t 

th
e
se

 r
e
co

m
m

e
n
d

at
io

n
s 

in
to

 a
 Y

o
u
th

 
H

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 P
at

h
w

ay
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
ve

rs
 f

o
u
r 

k
e
y 

st
ag

e
s 

at
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
e
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 o

u
r 

se
rv

ic
e
s.

T
h
is

 f
e
e
d

b
ac

k
 h

as
 b

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 s

ta
rt

in
g 

p
o

in
t 

fo
r 

d
e
ve

lo
p

in
g 

an
 

ac
ti

o
n
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
vi

n
g 

an
d

 d
e
liv

e
ri

n
g 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

to
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 
e
x
p

e
ri

e
n
ci

n
g 

h
o

u
si

n
g 

d
if
fi
cu

lt
ie

s.

2
. 
B

ac
k
gr

o
u
n
d

Page 40



Page 41



3
.1

 N
at

io
n
al

 P
o

lic
y 

an
d

 C
o

n
te

x
t

N
at

io
n
al

 p
o

lic
y 

o
n
 t

h
e
 s

p
e
ci

fi
c 

ar
e
a 

o
f 

yo
u
th

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 
w

as
 m

o
st

 r
e
ce

n
tl

y 
se

t 
o

u
t 

in
  

gu
id

an
ce

 j
o

in
tl

y 
p

re
p

ar
e
d

 b
y 

th
e
 

D
e
p

ar
tm

e
n
t 

fo
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n
it

ie
s 

an
d

 L
o

ca
l G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

an
d

 t
h
e
 

D
e
p

ar
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

Sc
h
o

o
ls

 a
n
d

 F
am

ili
e
s 

‘J
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g 
b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

–
 P

re
ve

n
ti

n
g 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
n
d

 t
ac

k
lin

g 
it

s 
e
ff

e
ct

s 
o

n
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

, 
(M

ay
 2

0
0

8
)’

. 

It
s 

p
u
rp

o
se

 is
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
 s

tr
at

e
gi

c 
m

an
ag

e
rs

 o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

an
d

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

Se
rv

ic
e
s,

 in
 b

o
th

 u
n
it

ar
y 

an
d

 t
w

o
-t

ie
r 

au
th

o
ri

ti
e
s,

 t
o

 p
la

n
 a

n
d

 d
e
liv

e
r 

ch
an

ge
 t

o
 a

ch
ie

ve
 t

h
re

e
 t

h
in

gs
 f

o
r 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 c
h
ild

re
n
 li

vi
n
g 

w
it

h
 t

h
e
ir

 f
am

ili
e
s:

 
liv

e
s 

an
d

 li
fe

 c
h
an

ce
s.

 
su

p
p

o
rt

 t
h
e
y 

n
e
e
d

 t
o

 r
e
co

ve
r 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e
 im

p
ac

t 
o

f 
 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
n
d

 g
e
t 

th
e
ir

 li
ve

s 
b

ac
k
 o

n
 t

ra
ck

, 
in

cl
u
d

in
g 

 
 

m
ai

n
ta

in
in

g 
o

r 
re

tu
rn

in
g 

to
 -

 le
ar

n
in

g 
o

r 
w

o
rk

.

T
h
e
 c

h
al

le
n
ge

 f
o

r 
C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

an
d

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

Se
rv

ic
e
s 

is
 t

o
 

e
n
su

re
 t

h
at

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 g
ap

s 
b

e
tw

e
e
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s,

 a
n
d

 t
h
at

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 c
h
ild

re
n
 li

vi
n
g 

in
 f

am
ili

e
s 

ge
t 

q
u
ic

k
 a

cc
e
ss

 t
o

 t
h
e
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

th
e
y 

n
e
e
d

 r
e
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
e
y 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
 

fi
rs

t 
fo

r 
h
e
lp

.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
ct

o
rs

 a
ff

e
ct

in
g 

yo
u
th

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 
n
at

io
n
al

ly
. 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

e
co

n
o

m
ic

 c
lim

at
e
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
th

 
u
n
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

ar
e
 k

e
y 

fa
ct

o
rs

 c
au

si
n
g 

te
n
si

o
n
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
fl
ic

t 
w

it
h
in

 
fa

m
ili

e
s 

an
d

 a
re

 li
m

it
in

g 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

’s
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 t

ak
e
 t

h
e
ir

 o
w

n
 

st
e
p

s 
in

to
 in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
ce

 a
n
d

 a
d

u
lt

h
o

o
d

. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 li
k
e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 im

p
ac

ts
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

e
lf
ar

e
 r

e
fo

rm
 c

h
an

ge
s 

to
o

. 
Sp

e
ci

fi
c 

re
fo

rm
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 N

o
n
-d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

ar
e
 m

ak
in

g 
it

 h
ar

d
e
r 

fi
n
an

ci
al

ly
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s 

to
 c

o
n
ti

n
u
e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
in

 t
h
e
 f

am
ily

 h
o

m
e
.

R
e
d

u
ct

io
n
s 

in
 p

u
b

lic
 s

p
e
n
d

in
g 

h
av

e
 a

ff
e
ct

e
d

 m
o

st
 a

re
as

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 e
it

h
e
r 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 o

r 
in

d
ir

e
ct

ly
. 

So
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 

lo
st

 a
n
d

 o
th

e
rs

 h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
st

ru
ct

u
re

d
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
ce

d
. 

3
. 
P

o
lic

y 
C

o
n
te

x
t

3
.2

 L
o

ca
l P

o
lic

y 
an

d
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 
R

e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ti
e
s

T
h
e
 n

e
e
d

s 
o

f 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 is

su
e
s 

o
f 

h
o

u
si

n
g 

an
d

 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl

y 
b

e
in

g 
m

e
t 

b
y 

a 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ar

tn
e
rs

 
ac

ro
ss

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

.

A
lt

h
o

u
gh

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

ar
e
 c

o
n
si

st
e
n
tl

y 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
 h

ig
h
 c

lie
n
t 

fo
cu

s,
 d

e
d

ic
at

io
n
 a

n
d

 s
k
ill

, 
h
is

to
ri

ca
lly

 w
e
 h

av
e
 l
ac

k
e
d

 t
h
e
 

n
e
ce

ss
ar

y 
co

o
rd

in
at

io
n
 a

n
d

 s
h
ar

e
d

 g
o

al
s 

to
 m

ak
e
 t

h
e
 b

e
st

 u
se

 o
f 

o
u
r 

co
lle

ct
iv

e
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
 a

n
d

 t
o

 e
n
su

re
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

s 
o

f 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 
ar

e
 b

e
in

g 
m

e
t.

L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 i
s 

a 
tw

o
 t

ie
r 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

b
e
in

g 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

b
y 

b
o

th
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

an
d

 b
y 

L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 
C

o
u
n
ci

l.

Y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 c
an

 g
e
t 

h
e
lp

 a
n
d

 a
d

vi
ce

 w
it

h
 h

o
u
si

n
g 

an
d

 h
o

m
e
-

le
ss

n
e
ss

 is
su

e
s 

fr
o

m
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

in
 li

n
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir

 
st

at
u
to

ry
 r

e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ti
e
s 

u
n
d

e
r 

th
e
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
ct

 1
9

9
6

 P
ar

t 
V

II
. 

L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

ar
e
 v

e
ry

 f
o

cu
ss

e
d

 o
n
 p

re
ve

n
ti

n
g 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 
an

d
 h

av
e
 a

 h
o

st
 o

f 
in

it
ia

ti
ve

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
h
is

 in
cl

u
d

in
g 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

m
e
d

ia
ti

o
n
, 

p
ri

va
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 s

e
ct

o
r 

ac
ce

ss
 s

ch
e
m

e
s 

an
d

 a
d

vi
ce

 o
n
 

h
o

u
si

n
g 

ri
gh

ts
, 

as
 w

e
ll 

as
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
ad

vi
ce

 o
n
 h

o
u
si

n
g 

o
p

ti
o

n
s.

F
o

r 
ca

se
s 

w
h
e
re

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 c
an

n
o

t 
b

e
 p

re
ve

n
te

d
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

ca
n
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

o
th

e
r 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
cy

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
, 

su
p

p
o

rt
in

g 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 o

r 
p

e
rm

an
e
n
t 

so
lu

ti
o

n
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

so
ci

al
 h

o
u
si

n
g.

Y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 c
an

 a
ls

o
 g

e
t 

h
e
lp

 a
n
d

 a
d

vi
ce

 f
ro

m
 C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

in
 li

n
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ti
e
s 

u
n
d

e
r 

T
h
e
 

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
A

ct
 1

9
8

9
. 

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

al
so

 h
av

e
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g 

fo
cu

s 
o

n
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
h
e
lp

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
ir

 f
am

ili
e
s 

to
 p

re
ve

n
t 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 w
h
e
re

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e
 t

o
 d

o
 

so
. 

T
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
A

ct
 c

o
n
si

d
e
rs

 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

n
e
e
d

s 
o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n
, 

n
o

t 
ju

st
 t

h
e
ir

 h
o

u
si

n
g 

n
e
e
d

s,
 e

n
su

ri
n
g 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 s
af

e
 a

n
d

 w
e
ll 

an
d

 a
re

 a
ch

ie
vi

n
g 

d
e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
ta

l m
ile

st
o

n
e
s 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
ar

e
as

 o
f 

th
e
ir

 li
ve

s.

W
h
e
re

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

s 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 c
an

n
o

t 
b

e
 p

re
ve

n
te

d
 

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

ca
n
 a

ls
o

 c
o

n
si

d
e
r 

o
th

e
r 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
cy

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
in

g 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 i
n
 fi

n
d

in
g 

p
e
rm

an
e
n
t 

so
lu

ti
o

n
s.

L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
ci

l 
al

so
 p

ro
vi

d
e
s 

h
e
lp

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

to
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
h
ro

u
gh

 i
ts

 P
u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th
 D

ir
e
ct

o
ra

te
. 

P
u
b

lic
 

H
e
al

th
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 p

ar
tn

e
rs

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 
A

cc
o

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
 t

o
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

vi
d

e
rs

 a
cr

o
ss

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
d

if
fe

ri
n
g 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
su

p
p

o
rt

. 
Y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 c
an

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 

p
ro

vi
d

e
rs

 d
ir

e
ct

ly
 a

n
d

 s
o

m
e
 p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 w
ill

 c
ar

ry
 o

u
t 

p
re

ve
n
ti

o
n
 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 h
e
lp

 t
h
e
m

 r
e
m

ai
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir

 f
am

ili
e
s 

o
r 

w
ill

 s
ig

n
p

o
st

 t
h
e
m

 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

th
at

 o
ff

e
r 

th
is

 k
in

d
 o

f 
h
e
lp

.

Page 42



3
.3

 C
u
rr

e
n
t 

Jo
in

t 
W

o
rk

in
g 

A
rr

an
ge

m
e
n
ts

3
.3

.1
 P

ro
to

co
l a

n
d

 P
ra

ct
ic

e
 G

u
id

an
ce

T
h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ti
e
s 

o
f 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

ac
ro

ss
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 

o
ve

rl
ap

 a
n
d

 it
 is

 im
p

o
rt

an
t 

th
at

 o
u
r 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g 

p
ro

to
co

ls
 a

re
 

ro
b

u
st

ly
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
si

st
e
n
tl

y 
ap

p
lie

d
 a

n
d

 t
h
at

 w
e
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
e
y 

ar
e
 fi

t 
fo

r 
p

u
rp

o
se

.

A
 p

ro
to

co
l f

o
r 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
 1

6
 &

 1
7

 y
e
ar

 o
ld

s 
h
as

 b
e
e
n
 a

gr
e
e
d

 
b

e
tw

e
e
n
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

an
d

 is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl

y 
in

 p
la

ce
. 

T
h
is

 
p

ro
to

co
l w

as
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

llo
w

in
g 

th
e
 G

 v
. 

So
u
th

w
ar

k
 r

u
lin

g 
in

 
2

0
0

9
 a

n
d

 u
se

d
 j
o

in
t 

gu
id

an
ce

 d
e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 b
y 

th
e
 D

e
p

ar
tm

e
n
t 

fo
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n
it

ie
s 

an
d

 L
o

ca
l G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

an
d

 t
h
e
 D

e
p

ar
tm

e
n
t 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 F
am

ily
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s.

 B
ri

e
fl
y 

st
at

e
d

, 
th

is
 p

ro
to

co
l s

e
ts

 
o

u
t 

th
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ti
e
s 

o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

d
e
p

ar
tm

e
n
ts

, 
m

ak
e
s 

ag
re

e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 w

h
e
n
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 
ca

n
 b

e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

e
am

s 
an

d
 e

st
ab

lis
h
e
s 

a 
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

jo
in

t 
h
o

u
si

n
g 

as
se

ss
m

e
n
ts

.

It
 b

e
ca

m
e
 a

p
p

ar
e
n
t 

th
at

 t
h
e
 p

ro
to

co
l l

ac
k
e
d

 t
h
e
 n

e
ce

ss
ar

y 
su

p
p

o
rt

 a
n
d

 c
la

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
te

am
s 

to
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e
ly

 d
e
liv

e
r 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g,

 
so

 in
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1

2
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 
P

ra
ct

ic
e
 G

u
id

an
ce

 t
o

 u
n
d

e
rp

in
 t

h
e
 p

ro
to

co
l.

T
h
e
 P

ra
ct

ic
e
 G

u
id

an
ce

 g
av

e
 f

ro
n
t 

lin
e
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 c

la
ri

ty
 o

n
 

d
e
liv

e
ri

n
g 

jo
in

t 
h
o

u
si

n
g 

as
se

ss
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 t

o
o

ls
 t

o
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e
ly

 
m

e
d

ia
te

 w
it

h
 f

am
ili

e
s 

to
 p

re
ve

n
t 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

, 
as

 w
e
ll 

as
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 a

n
d

 r
e
so

u
rc

e
s 

to
 h

e
lp

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
ir

 
fa

m
ili

e
s 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

 t
h
e
ir

 h
o

u
si

n
g 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 t
h
e
 r

e
al

it
ie

s 
o

f 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

. 

3
.3

.2
 Y

o
u
th

 H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 M
an

ag
e
m

e
n
t 

P
an

e
ls

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ra
ct

ic
e
 g

u
id

an
ce

 it
 w

as
 a

gr
e
e
d

 
th

at
 a

 M
an

ag
e
m

e
n
t 

P
an

e
l b

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 h

o
ld

 a
n
 

o
n
-g

o
in

g 
re

vi
e
w

 o
f 

p
ra

ct
ic

e
 im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
, 

an
d

 a
ct

 a
s 

a 
fo

ru
m

 
to

 r
e
sp

o
n
d

 t
o

 d
is

p
u
te

s 
o

r 
ch

al
le

n
ge

s 
ar

is
in

g 
fr

o
m

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
.

It
 w

as
 a

gr
e
e
d

 t
h
at

 t
h
e
 M

an
ag

e
m

e
n
t 

P
an

e
l w

o
u
ld

 c
o

n
si

st
 o

f 
re

p
re

se
n
ta

ti
ve

s 
fr

o
m

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s,

 F
A

ST
, 

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

T
ar

ge
te

d
 T

e
am

s 
an

d
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th
 a

n
d

 t
h
at

 
re

p
re

se
n
ta

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 s

o
u
gh

t 
fr

o
m

 b
o

th
 m

an
ag

e
rs

 a
n
d

 f
ro

n
t 

lin
e
 O

ffi
ce

rs
.

T
h
e
 f

u
n
ct

io
n
s 

o
f 

th
e
 M

an
ag

e
m

e
n
t 

P
an

e
l a

re
 t

o
:

 
H

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 P
ra

ct
ic

e
 G

u
id

an
ce

 a
n
d

 J
o

in
t 

P
ro

to
co

l f
o

r 
 

 
H

o
m

e
le

ss
 1

6
 &

 1
7

 Y
e
ar

 O
ld

s.
 

 
re

ac
h
 a

gr
e
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 r

e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 in

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
  

 
 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n
 o

f 
ac

co
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
. 

 
C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s)

, 
w

is
h
e
s 

to
 c

h
al

le
n
ge

 t
h
e
 d

e
ci

si
o

n
 o

f 
 

 
an

o
th

e
r 

au
th

o
ri

ty
.

 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

an
d

 C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s,

 u
n
lo

ck
in

g 
 

 
d

if
fi
cu

lt
ie

s 
an

d
 m

e
e
ti

n
g 

n
e
e
d

.

 
m

u
lt

i-
ag

e
n
cy

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

an
d

 m
an

ag
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

ri
sk

.

Page 43



3
.4

 S
tr

at
e
gi

c 
L

in
k
s

U
n
d

e
r 

th
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 A

ct
 2

0
0

4
, 

lo
ca

l a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

ar
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 
h
av

e
 in

 p
la

ce
 lo

ca
l c

o
o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

rr
an

ge
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 f

ac
ili

ta
te

 
in

te
gr

at
e
d

 w
o

rk
in

g,
 p

la
n
n
in

g 
an

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 
w

it
h
 a

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n
 

im
p

ro
vi

n
g 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s.

 L
o

ca
l a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

m
ay

 c
h
o

o
se

 t
o

 c
al

l t
h
e
se

 
ar

ra
n
ge

m
e
n
ts

 a
 ‘
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

tr
u
st

’ 
o

r 
b

y 
an

o
th

e
r 

n
am

e
, 

L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 h

as
 c

h
o

se
n
 t

o
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
is

 a
s 

‘C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Tr

u
st

 
A

rr
an

ge
m

e
n
ts

’ 
(C

T
A

).
 T

h
e
 C

T
A

 r
e
fl
e
ct

s 
an

 in
te

gr
at

e
d

 a
n
d

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f

o
cu

ss
e
d

 w
ay

 o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g.

W
o

rk
in

g 
th

ro
u
gh

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
’s

 C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Tr

u
st

 A
rr

an
ge

m
e
n
ts

, 
T

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 &

 Y
o

u
n
g 

P
e
o

p
le

s 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

P
ar

tn
e
rs

h
ip

 (
C

Y
P

SP
) 

ar
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

ss
 t

h
e
 t

yp
e
 a

n
d

 le
ve

l o
f 

n
e
e
d

 a
n
d

 e
n
su

re
 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e
 a

ct
io

n
 is

 in
cl

u
d

e
d

 in
 t

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n
g 

P
e
o

p
le

s 
P

la
n
 (

C
Y

P
P

)

T
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n
g 

P
e
o

p
le

s 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

P
ar

tn
e
rs

h
ip

 (
C

Y
P

SP
) 

ar
e
 a

 s
ta

tu
ar

y 
b

o
ar

d
 w

it
h
 a

 r
e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

p
ro

d
u
ci

n
g 

th
e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n
g 

P
e
o

p
le

s 
P

la
n
 (

C
Y

P
P

) 
fo

r 
L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
. 

T
h
e
 

C
Y

P
P

 is
 in

fo
rm

e
d

 b
y 

st
ak

e
h
o

ld
e
r 

co
n
su

lt
at

io
n
 in

cl
u
d

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n
, 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
ir

 f
am

ili
e
s.

 T
h
e
 C

Y
P

P
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 

h
o

w
 t

h
e
 

B
ri

lli
an

t 
L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 p

ri
n
ci

p
le

s 
w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

th
at

 g
e
n
u
in

e
ly

 a
d

d
re

ss
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

s 
an

d
 in

te
re

st
 o

f 
th

e
 lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
u
n
it

y.

U
n
d

e
r 

th
e
 H

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 A
ct

 2
0

0
2

 L
o

ca
l H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

ar
e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 h
av

e
 a

 H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 S
tr

at
e
gy

 in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 r
e
vi

e
w

 a
n
d

 
st

ra
te

gi
ca

lly
 a

d
d

re
ss

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 in
 t

h
e
ir

 a
re

a.
 T

h
e
 s

e
ve

n
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

in
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 h

av
e
 w

o
rk

e
d

 
to

ge
th

e
r 

to
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 T
h
e
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 H

o
m

e
le

ss
 S

tr
at

e
gy

 2
0

1
2

 
–
 2

0
1

6
. 

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 h
as

 b
e
e
n
 id

e
n
ti

fi
e
d

 w
it

h
in

 t
h
is

 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

s 
o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 fi
ve

 K
e
y 

T
h
e
m

e
s.

Page 44



Page 45



4
.1

 T
h
e
 S

ca
le

 a
n
d

 N
at

u
re

 o
f 

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

U
n
le

ss
 o

th
e
rw

is
e
 s

ta
te

d
 t

h
e
 d

at
a 

b
e
lo

w
 r

e
la

te
s 

to
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
st

 
A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
1

 –
 3

1
st

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
1

2
.

T
h
e
 d

at
a 

b
e
lo

w
 h

as
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
lle

ct
e
d

 f
ro

m
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s 

an
d

 d
at

ab
as

e
s,

 m
an

y 
o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
in

te
n
d

e
d

 
fo

r 
th

is
 t

yp
e
 o

f 
d

at
a 

e
x
tr

ac
ti

o
n
 s

o
 d

at
as

e
ts

 m
ay

 n
o

t 
b

e
 

co
m

p
ar

ab
le

. 
T

h
e
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 h

e
re

 is
 in

te
n
d

e
d

 o
n
ly

 a
s 

a 
u
se

fu
l 

gu
id

e
 t

o
 in

fo
rm

 o
u
r 

fu
tu

re
 d

ir
e
ct

io
n
 a

n
d

 t
o

 h
e
lp

 u
s 

in
 t

ar
ge

ti
n
g 

se
rv

ic
e
s.

 D
e
ve

lo
p

in
g 

ro
b

u
st

 a
n
d

 c
o

n
si

st
e
n
t 

fo
rm

s 
o

f 
d

at
a 

co
lle

ct
io

n
 r

e
m

ai
n
s 

a 
k
e
y 

ac
ti

o
n
 f

o
r 

L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 t

o
 m

o
ve

 f
o

rw
ar

d
.

4
.1

.1
 A

p
p

ro
ac

h
e
s

T
h
is

 t
ab

le
 d

e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

s 
al

l o
f 

th
e
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
e
s 

m
ad

e
 b

y 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

st
at

in
g 

th
at

 t
h
e
y 

ar
e
 h

o
m

e
le

ss
 o

r 
at

 r
is

k
 o

f 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

. 
It

 
sh

o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
at

 t
h
is

 t
ab

le
 c

o
u
n
ts

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h
e
s 

an
d

 n
o

t 
p

e
o

p
le

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

 s
o

m
e
b

o
d

y 
w

h
o

 h
as

 h
ad

 m
u
lt

ip
le

 c
o

n
ta

ct
s 

w
it

h
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
u
n
te

d
 m

u
lt

ip
le

 t
im

e
s.

 T
h
is

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 
d

e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

s 
m

o
re

 a
cc

u
ra

te
ly

 t
h
e
 le

ve
ls

 o
f 

d
e
m

an
d

 b
e
in

g 
p

la
ce

d
 

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s.

4
 R

e
vi

e
w

 o
f 

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 

in
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e 4

.1
.2

 T
o

ta
l N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

Y
o

u
n
g 

P
e
o

p
le

A
ft

e
r 

re
m

o
vi

n
g 

d
u
p

lic
at

io
n
s 

w
e
 h

av
e
 id

e
n
ti

fi
e
d

 a
 t

o
ta

l o
f 

2
1

3
1

 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
ge

d
 1

6
 -

 2
5

 w
h
o

 h
av

e
 h

ad
 d

if
fi
cu

lt
ie

s 
w

it
h
 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 o
r 

o
f 

b
e
in

g 
at

 r
is

k
 o

f 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
n
d

 h
av

e
 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
e
d

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

fo
r 

as
si

st
an

ce
.

4
.1

.3
 R

e
p

e
at

 A
p

p
ro

ac
h
e
s

T
h
e
 t

ab
le

 b
e
lo

w
 s

h
o

w
s 

fo
r 

e
ac

h
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

an
d

 a
ge

n
cy

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
e
s 

th
e
y 

h
av

e
 m

ad
e
 

L
in

d
se

y 
1

1
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 m
ad

e
 t

w
o

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h
e
s 

to
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s,

 f
ro

m
 

a 
sy

st
e
m

 d
e
m

an
d

 p
e
rs

p
e
ct

iv
e
 t

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 h
av

e
 e

q
u
at

e
d

 t
o

 2
2

 
ap

p
ro

ac
h
e
s.

  
T

h
e
 fi

n
al

 r
o

w
 o

f 
th

e
 t

ab
le

 b
re

ak
s 

d
o

w
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
e
s 

to
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

ge
 o

f 
al

l a
p

p
ro

ac
h
e
s.

B
as

e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e
 d

at
a 

su
p

p
lie

d
 B

o
st

o
n
, 

L
in

co
ln

 a
n
d

 N
o

rt
h
 K

e
st

e
ve

n
 

d
o

 n
o

t 
ap

p
e
ar

 t
o

 h
av

e
 a

n
y 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h
o

 h
av

e
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
e
d

 
th

e
ir

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

m
o

re
 t

h
an

 o
n
ce

.

D
is

tr
ic

t/
 A

p
p

ro
ac

h
e
s 

 
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
p

p
ro

ac
h
e
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
m

ad
e

B
o

st
o

n
 

 
 

 
 

3
5

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
3

5

L
in

co
ln

 
 

 
 

 
7

4
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

7
4

N
o

rt
h
 K

e
st

e
ve

n
 

 
 

 
1

6
1

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
1

6
1

So
u
th

 H
o

lla
n
d

 
 

 
 

3
7

4
 

2
5

 
3

 
2

 
4

4
1

So
u
th

 K
e
st

e
ve

n
 

 
 

 
4

2
8

 
5

7
 

1
0

 
0

 
5

7
2

W
e
st

 L
in

d
se

y 
 

 
 

9
6

 
5

 
0

 
0

 
1

0
6

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

 
 

2
7

0
 

4
8

 
1

3
 

2
 

4
1

3
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

 
2

3
9

 
1

7
 

0
 

0
 

2
7

3

To
ta

l a
p

p
ro

ac
h
e
s 

as
 %

 o
f 

w
h
o

le
 

 
8

2
%

 
1

4
%

 
3

%
 

1
%

 
2

3
9

9

D
is

tr
ic

t 
 

 
 

1
6

 –
 1

7
 

1
8

 –
 2

5
 

To
ta

l

B
o

st
o

n
 

 
 

 
1

1
 

2
4

 
3

5

L
in

co
ln

 
 

 
 

1
4

 
6

0
 

7
4

N
o

rt
h
 K

e
st

e
ve

n
 

 
 

3
4

 
1

2
7

 
1

6
1

So
u
th

 H
o

lla
n
d

 
 

 
3

6
 

4
4

4
 

4
8

0
So

u
th

 K
e
st

e
ve

n
 

 
 

6
2

 
5

1
0

 
5

7
2

W
e
st

 L
in

d
se

y 
 

 
1

1
 

9
5

 
1

0
6

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

 
4

1
2

 
1

 
4

1
3

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

8
1

 
1

9
2

 
2

7
3

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

6
9

1
 

1
7

0
8

 
2

3
9

9

Page 46



4
.1

.4
 D

u
p

lic
at

io
n
s

T
h
is

 t
ab

le
 s

h
o

w
s 

w
h
at

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

an
d

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

ge
 o

f 
th

e
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
ge

d
 1

6
 &

 1
7

 w
h
o

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h
e
d

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

as
 h

o
m

e
le

ss
 o

r 
at

 r
is

k
 o

f 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
ls

o
 s

o
u
gh

t 
as

si
st

an
ce

 f
ro

m
 C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s.

D
u
e
 t

o
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

re
co

rd
in

g 
m

e
th

o
d

s 
ac

ro
ss

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 s
o

m
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

at
a 

in
cl

u
d

e
d

 h
e
re

 o
n
ly

 in
cl

u
d

e
d

 in
it

ia
ls

 r
at

h
e
r 

th
an

 f
u
ll 

n
am

e
s 

w
h
ic

h
 m

ay
 a

ff
e
ct

 t
h
e
 r

e
lia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
so

m
e
 d

at
a 

m
at

ch
e
s;

 h
o

w
e
ve

r,
 

th
is

 w
as

 o
n
ly

 in
 a

 r
e
la

ti
ve

ly
 s

m
al

l n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ca
se

s.
 D

at
e
s 

o
f 

b
ir

th
 

an
d

 p
o

st
co

d
e
s 

w
e
re

 a
ls

o
 u

se
d

 t
o

 in
cr

e
as

e
 o

u
r 

co
n
fi
d

e
n
ce

 in
 t

h
e
 

m
at

ch
e
s 

d
e
ta

ile
d

 b
e
lo

w
.

T
h
e
 s

e
co

n
d

 c
o

lu
m

n
 d

e
ta

ils
 t

h
e
 t

o
ta

l n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
e
s 

fr
o

m
 

1
6

 &
 1

7
 y

e
ar

 o
ld

s 
to

 e
ac

h
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

T
h
e
 t

h
ir

d
 

co
lu

m
n
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ts

 h
o

w
 m

an
y 

o
f 

th
o

se
 in

d
iv

id
u
al

s 
al

so
 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
e
d

 C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s.

 T
h
e
 f

o
u
rt

h
 c

o
lu

m
n
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ts

 
th

is
 a

s 
a 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

ge
. 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
 

B
B

C

L
in

co
ln

N
K

D
C

SH
D

C
SK

D
C

W
L

D
C

A
ll 

D
is

tr
ic

ts

To
ta

l 
In

d
iv

id
u
al

s

1
1

3
0

1
4

3
4

3
6

6
2

1
1

1
9

8

7 2
9

1
0 8 2
5

5
0

1
0

1
3

9

6
4

%
9

7
%

7
1

%
2

4
%

6
9

%
8

1
%

9
1

%

7
0

%

A
p

p
ro

ac
h
e
d

 C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

al
so

4
.1

.5
 R

e
as

o
n
s 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

D
at

a 
o

n
 t

h
e
 r

e
as

o
n
s 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 h
av

e
 b

e
co

m
e
 h

o
m

e
le

ss
 h

as
 

b
e
e
n
 t

ak
e
n
 f

ro
m

 a
cr

o
ss

 L
C

C
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

an
d

 c
at

e
go

ri
se

d
. 

T
h
e
 c

at
e
go

ri
e
s 

u
se

d
 h

e
re

 a
re

 t
ak

e
n
 

L
o

ca
l H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

m
ak

e
 t

o
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t.

T
h
is

 t
ab

le
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
e
 r

aw
 d

at
a 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
as

o
n
s 

fo
r 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 
fo

r 
al

l y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
ge

d
 1

6
-2

5
.

L
o

ss
 o

f 
Su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n

R
e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 B

re
ak

d
o

w
n

D
o

m
e
st

ic
 V

io
le

n
ce

R
ac

ia
l V

io
le

n
ce

O
th

e
r 

V
io

le
n
ce

L
e
av

in
g 

In
st

it
u
ti

o
n
/Y

O
I

L
e
av

in
g 

C
ar

e
L

o
ss

 o
f 

P
ri

va
te

 R
e
n
te

d
 A

cc
o

m
.

M
o

rt
ga

ge
 A

rr
e
ar

s

O
th

e
r

U
n
k
n
o

w
n

To
ta

l

L
C

C

2
8

7
6

5
2

4 - - - - 5 5 - - - - 2
7 -

4
1

3

N
K

D
C

5
5 5 - 1
5

1
0 - - 1 - 1
4 - - - 2
1

4
2

1
6

3

SH
D

C

9
7

3
0 - 5
5

1
3 - 6 5 - 5
4 1 1 9 3
0

1
8

2

4
8

3

L
in

co
ln

2
8 2 - 5 9 1 2 1 - 2
3 1 1 1 - - 7
4

8
1

4
0 - 1
5

1
5 - - - - 6
7 - 2 2 2
8

3
5

2
8

5

B
B

C

1
2

1
0 1 2 4 - - - - 7 - - - - - 3
6

H
o

u
si

n
g 

To
ta

l

4
7

5
2

4
3

1
1

3
9

6
9 1 1
8

1
4 -

2
9

5
2 6 2
1

9
1

2
6

8

1
6

4
3

W
L

D
C

5
8

1
5 - 5 3 - 4 2 - 1
6 - 1 - 2 -

1
0

6

SK
D

C

1
4

4
1

4
1 - 4

2
1

5 - 6 5 -
1

1
4 - 1 9 1

0 9

4
9

6

To
ta

l

7
6

2
3

0
8

2
5

1
3

9
6

9 1 1
8

1
9 5

2
9

5
2 6 2
1

1
1

8
2

6
8

2
0

5
6

Page 47



R
e
as

o
n
s 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 -
D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

L
o

ts
 o

f 
Su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 A
cc

o
m

o
d

at
io

n

R
e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 B

re
ak

d
o

w
n

D
o

m
e
st

ic
 V

io
le

n
ce

R
ac

ia
l 
V

io
le

n
ce

O
th

e
r 

V
io

le
n
ce

L
e
av

in
g 

In
st

it
u
ti

n
 /

 Y
O

I

L
o

ss
 o

f 
P

ri
va

te
 R

e
n
te

d
 A

cc
o

m
o

d
at

io
n

T
h
is

 p
ie

 c
h
ar

t 
re

p
re

se
n
ts

 t
h
e
 c

au
se

s 
fo

r 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 f
o

r 
al

l 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 (
1

6
-2

5
) 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
in

g 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s.

 

R
e
as

o
n
s 

gi
ve

n
 a

s 
u
n
k
n
o

w
n
 h

av
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
ve

d
 f

o
r 

th
is

ill
u
st

ra
ti

o
n
.

R
e
as

o
n
s 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 

L
o

ts
 o

f 
Su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 A
cc

o
m

o
d

at
io

n

R
e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 B

re
ak

d
o

w
n

D
o

m
e
st

ic
 V

io
le

n
ce

R
ac

ia
l V

io
le

n
ce

O
th

e
r 

V
io

le
n
ce

L
e
av

in
g 

In
st

it
u
ti

n
 /

 Y
O

I

T
h
is

 p
ie

 c
h
ar

t 
re

p
re

se
n
ts

 t
h
e
 c

au
se

s 
o

f 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 f
o

r 
al

l 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 (
1

6
-2

5
) 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
in

g 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

an
d

 C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s.

 R
e
as

o
n
s 

gi
ve

n
 a

s 
u
n
k
n
o

w
n
 h

av
e
 b

e
e
n
 

re
m

o
ve

d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 i
llu

st
ra

ti
o

n
.

L
e
av

in
g 

C
ar

e

L
o

ss
 o

f 
P

ri
va

te
 R

e
n
te

d
 

A
cc

o
m

o
d

at
io

n

M
o

rt
ga

ge
 A

rr
e
ar

s 

R
e
as

o
n
s 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 -
C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s

L
o

ts
 o

f 
Su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 A
cc

o
m

o
d

at
io

n

L
e
av

in
g 

In
si

tu
ti

o
n
 /

 Y
O

I

L
e
av

in
g 

C
ar

e

O
th

e
r

T
h
is

 p
ie

 c
h
ar

t 
re

p
re

se
n
ts

 a
ll 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
e
s 

m
ad

e
 b

y 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 

(1
6

 –
 1

7
)

Page 48



T
h
e
 n

e
e
d

s 
o

f 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 v
ar

y 
gr

e
at

ly
. 

T
h
is

 is
 

p
ar

ti
cu

la
rl

y 
n
o

ti
ce

ab
le

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h
e
 a

ge
 r

an
ge

 w
h
e
re

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 
ag

e
d

 1
6

 o
r 

1
7

 a
re

 m
o

re
 li

k
e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 h

o
m

e
le

ss
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt
 o

f 
fa

m
ily

 
b

re
ak

d
o

w
n
 a

n
d

 t
h
o

se
 a

ge
d

 1
8

 t
o

 2
5

, 
w

h
o

 a
re

 m
o

re
 li

k
e
ly

 t
o

 
h
av

e
 s

e
cu

re
d

 t
h
e
ir

 o
w

n
 

ac
co

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
p

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h
 w

it
h
 a

 w
id

e
r 

ra
n
ge

 o
f 

re
as

o
n
s 

fo
r 

b
e
co

m
in

g 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
.

To
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

th
is

 w
e
 h

av
e
 a

ls
o

 d
e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

d
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 c

au
se

s 
o

f 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 f
o

r 
ju

st
 1

6
 &

 1
7

 y
e
ar

 o
ld

s.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
tt

e
r 

h
e
lp

 
u
s 

to
 e

n
su

re
 w

e
 t

ar
ge

t 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d

s 
o

f 
al

l y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

.

A
s 

ab
o

ve
, 

th
e
 t

ab
le

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

th
e
 r

aw
 d

at
a 

o
b

ta
in

e
d

 f
ro

m
 L

o
ca

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s.

 T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g 
p

ie
 c

h
ar

t 
h
as

 
d

is
re

ga
rd

e
d

 t
h
e
 u

n
k
n
o

w
n
 fi

gu
re

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 il

lu
st

ra
ti

o
n
.

L
o

ts
 o

f 
Su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 A
cc

o
m

o
d

at
io

n

R
e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 B

re
ak

d
o

w
n

D
o

m
e
st

ic
 V

io
le

n
ce

O
th

e
r 

V
io

le
n
ce

L
e
av

in
g 

In
st

it
u
ti

n
 /

 Y
O

I

L
e
av

in
g 

C
ar

e

L
o

ss
 o

f 
P

ri
va

te
 R

e
n
te

d
 A

cc
o

m
o

d
at

io
n

O
th

e
r

R
e
as

o
n
s 

fo
r 

H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 -
 1

6
 &

 1
7

 Y
e
ar

 O
ld

s 
O

n
ly

L
o

ss
 o

f 
Su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n

R
e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 B

re
ak

d
o

w
n

D
o

m
e
st

ic
 V

io
le

n
ce

R
ac

ia
l V

io
le

n
ce

O
th

e
r 

V
io

le
n
ce

L
e
av

in
g 

In
st

it
u
ti

o
n
/Y

O
I

L
e
av

in
g 

C
ar

e
L

o
ss

 o
f 

P
ri

va
te

 R
e
n
te

d
 A

cc
o

m
.

M
o

rt
ga

ge
 A

rr
e
ar

s

O
th

e
r

U
n
k
n
o

w
n

To
ta

l

L
C

C

2
8

7
6

5
2

4 - - - - 5 5 - - - - 2
7 -

4
1

3

N
K

D
C

2 1 - - - - - - - - - - - - - 3

SH
D

C

1
5 4 - - 1 - - - - 2 - - 1 1 9 3
3

L
in

co
ln

7 - - 1 - - 1 - - 4 - - 1 - - 1
4

9 4 - - - - - - - 3 - - - - - 1
6

B
B

C

7 3 - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1
0

W
L

D
C

3 7 - - - - 1 - - - - - - 1
1

SK
D

C

2
9

1
6 - 1 - - 1 1 - 4 - - - - 1 5
3

To
ta

l

3
5

9
1

0
0

2
4 2 1 - 2 7 5 1
3 - - 2 2
8

1
0

5
5

3

Page 49



4
.1

.6
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g 
p

ie
 c

h
ar

t 
d

e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

s 
th

e
 r

e
co

rd
e
d

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s 

fo
r 

al
l y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

ag
e
d

 1
6

 t
o

 2
5

.

R
e
tu

rn
e
d

 t
o

 P
ar

e
n
ts

R
e
tu

rn
e
d

 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

fa
m

ily
/f

ri
e
n
d

s
Su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n

So
ci

al
 H

o
u
si

n
g

P
ri

va
te

 R
e
n
te

d
R

e
tu

rn
e
d

 t
o

 A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n

H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 P
re

ve
n
te

d
/r

e
lie

ve
d

 n
o

t 
sp

e
ci

fi
e
d

P
as

se
d

 t
o

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

P
as

se
d

 t
o

 C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s

D
e
e
m

e
d

 N
o

t 
A

 C
h
ild

 in
 N

e
e
d

R
e
fu

se
d

 A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

A
d

vi
ce

 O
n
ly

L
o

st
 C

o
n
ta

ct
Su

p
p

o
rt

 N
o

 L
o

n
ge

r 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

N
o

t 
K

n
o

w
n

To
ta

l

L
C

C

5
6

2
6

1
0

7 - 1
2 - - 2
6 - 1
3

2
7 - 4
4

5
2

5
0

4
1

3

N
K

D
C

2
5 7 1
3

1
4

1
6

1
4 - - - - - - 2
2 - 5
2

1
6

3

SH
D

C

- - - 1
4 - -

1
3

4 - - - -
2

1
2

9
5 - 2
8

4
8

3

L
in

co
ln

- - 2 6
2 2 1 - - - - 2 1 4 - - 7
4

1 - 7 9 9
9

1
3

1
3 - - - - 3
0

6
4 - 4
9

2
8

5

B
B

C

2 1
0 7 7 4 1 - - 2 - 3 - - - - 3
6

W
L

D
C

6 1 7 4
1 3 5 3 - - - - 2
8

1
1 1 -

1
0

6

SK
D

C

7 1 8 6
2

3
1

1
8

1
0 - - - -

3
5

2 - - 7

4
9

6

To
ta

l

9
7

4
5

1
5

1
2

0
9

1
6

7
5

2
1

6
0

2
6 2 1
3

3
2

6
2

3
2

4
0

5
3

1
8

6

2
0

5
6

R
e
tu

rn
e
d

 t
o

 P
ar

e
n
ts

R
e
tu

rn
e
d

 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

fa
m

ily
 /

 f
ri

e
n
d

s

Su
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 A
cc

o
m

o
d

at
io

n

So
ci

al
 H

o
u
si

n
g

P
ri

va
te

 R
e
n
te

d

R
e
tu

rn
e
d

 t
o

 A
cc

o
m

o
d

at
io

n

H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 P
re

ve
n
te

d
 /

 r
e
lie

ve
d

 
n
o

t 
sp

e
ci

fi
e
d

P
as

se
d

 t
o

 H
o

u
si

n
g

P
as

se
d

 t
o

 C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s

D
e
e
m

e
d

 n
o

t 
a 

C
h
ild

 in
 N

e
e
d

O
u
tc

o
m

e
s 

–
 A

ll 
Y
o

u
n
g 

P
e
o

p
le

 1
6

 -
 2

5

R
e
fu

se
d

 A
ss

is
ta

n
ce

A
d

vi
ce

 O
n
ly

L
o

st
 C

o
n
ta

ct

Su
p

p
o

rt
 N

o
 L

o
n
ge

r 
R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

N
o

t 
K

n
o

w
n

Page 50



D
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f 
re

co
rd

e
d

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s,

 w
h
ic

h
 is

 t
h
e
 

re
su

lt
 o

f 
te

am
s 

h
av

in
g 

th
e
ir

 o
w

n
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

gy
, 

it
 is

 d
if
fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 

in
te

rp
re

t 
th

e
 a

b
o

ve
 p

ie
 c

h
ar

t 
si

m
p

ly
. 

To
 b

e
tt

e
r 

re
p

re
se

n
t 

th
e
se

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s 

w
e
 h

av
e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 t

w
o

 
b

ro
ad

e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s:

 P
o

s
it

iv
e
 O

u
t
c
o

m
e
s
 in

cl
u
d

in
g 

re
tu

rn
e
d

 t
o

 p
ar

e
n
ts

, 
re

tu
rn

e
d

 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

fa
m

ily
/f

ri
e
n
d

s,
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
, 

so
ci

al
 h

o
u
si

n
g,

 p
ri

va
te

 r
e
n
te

d
, 

re
tu

rn
e
d

 t
o

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
, 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 p
re

ve
n
te

d
/r

e
lie

ve
d

 (
b

u
t 

n
o

t 
sp

e
ci

fi
e
d

),
 a

d
vi

ce
 o

n
ly

 
an

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 n

o
 lo

n
ge

r 
re

q
u
ir

e
d

. 
T

h
is

 a
m

o
u
n
ts

 t
o

 1
5

5
7

 c
as

e
s.

O
t
h

e
r
/U

n
k

n
o

w
n

 O
u

t
c
o

m
e
s
 in

cl
u
d

in
g 

p
as

se
d

 t
o

 H
o

u
si

n
g,

 
p

as
se

d
 t

o
 C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s,

 d
e
e
m

e
d

 n
o

t 
a 

ch
ild

 in
 n

e
e
d

, 
re

fu
se

d
 a

ss
is

ta
n
ce

, 
lo

st
 c

o
n
ta

ct
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
k
n
o

w
n
. 

T
h
is

 a
m

o
u
n
ts

 t
o

 
4

9
9

 c
as

e
s.

P
o

si
ti

ve
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

O
th

e
r 

/ 
U

n
k
n
o

w
n
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

O
u
tc

o
m

e
s 

Si
m

p
lifi

e
d

Page 51



4
.1

.7
 A

ge
 D

is
tr

ib
u
ti

o
n
 o

f 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

D
at

a

T
h
is

 b
ar

 c
h
ar

t 
sh

o
w

s 
th

e
 a

ge
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti

o
n
 f

o
r 

al
l a

p
p

ro
ac

h
e
s 

m
ad

e
 

to
 a

ll 
d

is
tr

ic
ts

 a
n
d

 a
ge

n
ci

e
s 

d
u
ri

n
g 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

. 
 T

h
is

 d
at

a 
lo

o
k
s 

at
 

th
e
 a

ge
 a

t 
th

e
 b

e
gi

n
n
in

g 
o

f 
co

n
ta

ct
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

an
d

 a
ga

in
 t

ak
e
s 

in
to

 a
cc

o
u
n
t 

al
l a

p
p

ro
ac

h
e
s,

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 s

am
e
 p

e
o

p
le

 m
ay

 b
e
 

in
cl

u
d

e
d

 m
o

re
 t

h
an

 o
n
ce

 if
 t

h
e
y 

h
av

e
 h

ad
 m

u
lt

ip
le

 c
o

n
ta

ct
s 

w
it

h
 

se
rv

ic
e
s.

4
.1

.8
 G

e
o

gr
ap

h
ic

al
 D

is
tr

ib
u
ti

o
n
 o

f 
A

p
p

ro
ac

h
e
s

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g 
ta

b
le

 s
h
o

w
s 

th
e
 a

re
as

 w
h
e
re

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 
ap

p
ro

ac
h
e
d

 f
ro

m
. 

T
h
e
 d

at
a 

is
 b

as
e
d

 o
n
 p

o
st

co
d

e
s 

w
h
ic

h
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 g
av

e
 a

s 
th

e
ir

 la
st

 s
e
tt

le
d

 a
d

d
re

ss
 w

h
e
n
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
in

g 
te

am
s.

R
e
lia

b
le

 p
o

st
co

d
e
 d

at
a 

fo
r 

th
is

 p
u
rp

o
se

 w
as

 c
o

lle
ct

e
d

 f
ro

m
 1

7
5

4
 

o
f 

th
e
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 in
cl

u
d

e
d

 in
 t

h
is

 r
e
vi

e
w

.

T
h
e
 v

e
rt

ic
al

 c
o

lu
m

n
s 

re
p

re
se

n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 t

h
e
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
rs

o
n
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
e
d

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 h

o
ri

zo
n
ta

l r
o

w
s 

sh
o

w
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
o

se
 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 h
ad

 b
e
co

m
e
 h

o
m

e
le

ss
 o

r 
at

 r
is

k
 o

f 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 

fr
o

m
.

Page 52



T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
e
s 

ac
ro

ss
 t

h
e
 r

e
tu

rn
s 

re
ce

iv
e
d

 f
ro

m
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s 

d
if
fe

rs
 in

 s
o

m
e
 a

re
as

 f
ro

m
 w

h
at

 m
ig

h
t 

b
e
 

e
x
p

e
ct

e
d

 a
n
d

 p
o

te
n
ti

al
ly

 p
re

se
n
ts

 a
 m

is
le

ad
in

g 
p

ic
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
d

e
m

an
d

. 
C

it
y 

o
f 

L
in

co
ln

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
ir

 S
u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 
A

cc
o

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
 p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 in
 t

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

co
n
si

st
e
n
tl

y 
re

p
o

rt
 t

h
at

 
m

an
y 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h
 p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 d
ir

e
ct

ly
 w

it
h
o

u
t 

m
ak

in
g 

co
n
ta

ct
 w

it
h
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
ge

n
ci

e
s.

 T
h
is

 is
 a

ls
o

 a
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 
e
x
p

la
n
at

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

is
p

ar
it

y 
in

 B
o

st
o

n
.

In
 s

o
m

e
 c

as
e
s 

D
is

tr
ic

ts
 d

id
 n

o
t 

h
av

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 p

o
st

co
d

e
 d

at
a 

fo
r 

al
l y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

. 
A

lt
h
o

u
gh

 t
h
is

 w
as

 a
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

ca
se

s,
 

ge
n
e
ra

lly
 s

p
e
ak

in
g 

th
e
 d

at
a 

is
 p

re
ci

se
; 

h
o

w
e
ve

r,
 in

 s
u
ch

 c
as

e
s 

th
e
 

m
ai

n
 t

o
w

n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
at

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
h
as

 b
e
e
n
 u

se
d

.

In
d

e
e
d

, 
N

o
rt

h
 K

e
st

e
ve

n
 d

id
 n

o
t 

h
av

e
 p

o
st

co
d

e
 d

at
a 

fo
r 

th
is

 
gr

o
u
p

 r
e
ad

ily
 a

va
ila

b
le

. 
F
o

llo
w

in
g 

d
is

cu
ss

io
n
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 

K
e
st

e
ve

n
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

Te
am

 w
e
 h

av
e
 r

e
p

re
se

n
te

d
 t

h
e
ir

 
ap

p
ro

ac
h
e
s 

as
 b

e
in

g 
in

 t
h
e
 S

le
af

o
rd

 a
re

a.
 S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
se

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 m
ay

 li
ve

 in
 t

h
e
 o

u
tl

yi
n
g 

vi
lla

ge
s 

an
d

 m
ig

ra
te

 t
o

w
ar

d
s 

Sl
e
af

o
rd

. 
A

 s
ig

n
ifi

ca
n
t 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
N

o
rt

h
 K

e
st

e
ve

n
 r

e
si

d
e
n
ts

 
liv

e
 in

 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 H

yk
e
h
am

 a
re

a 
b

u
t 

it
 is

 b
e
lie

ve
d

 t
h
at

 t
h
e
se

 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
o

u
ld

 t
e
n
d

 t
o

 m
ig

ra
te

 t
o

w
ar

d
s 

L
in

co
ln

, 
e
it

h
e
r 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
in

g 
L

C
C

’s
 F

A
ST

, 
C

it
y 

o
f 

L
in

co
ln

’s
 H

o
m

e
le

ss
 T

e
am

 o
r,

 
as

 s
ta

te
d

 p
re

vi
o

u
sl

y,
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
in

g 
ac

co
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 
d

ir
e
ct

ly
.

D
is

tr
ic

t

B
o

st
o

n

L
in

co
ln

N
o

rt
h
 K

e
st

e
ve

n
So

u
th

 H
o

lla
n
d

So
u
th

 K
e
st

e
ve

n
W

e
st

 L
in

d
se

y
O

u
t 

o
f 

co
u
n
ty

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s

5
0

6
5

8
4

3
8

4
8

7
6

3
9

2
8

4
2

8

So
u
th

 
H

o
lla

n
d

9 1 3 2
4

3
8

3  2
1

4
7

7

So
u
th

 
K

e
st

e
ve

n

 -  -  - 5 1
3

7
7

1 2
1

4
0

5

L
in

co
ln

 - - 4
5 3  -  - 3 1 5
2

L
in

d
se

y

2
2

7
8

 1    3

2
8

4

B
o

st
o

n

3
0 2 - 1 - - 1 1 3
5

G
ra

n
d

 
To

ta
l

9
1

3
4

6
1

3
6

5
2

4
8

7
4

5
6

1
0

8
7

8

1
7

5
4

W
e
st

 
L

in
d

se
y

 -  - 4 2  -  - 6
4 3 7
3

D
is

tr
ic

t 
%

5
.1

9
%

1
9

.7
3

%
7

.7
5

%
2

.9
6

%
2

7
.7

7
%

2
6

.0
0

%
6

.1
6

%
4

.4
5

%

Page 53



S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
S

O
U

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
N

O
R

T
H

 K
E

S
T

E
V

E
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
O

R
T

H
 K

E
S

T
E

V
E

N
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

L
A

N
D

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

B
O

S
T

O
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

W
E

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
A

S
T

 L
IN

D
S

E
Y

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

1
1
 t

o
 

2
1

  
(3

)

1
 t

o
 

1
1
  

(8
3
2
)

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g 
m

ap
 il

lu
st

ra
te

s 
w

h
e
re

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 
ap

p
ro

ac
h
in

g 
fr

o
m

.

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
q

u
e

s
ts

 b
y
 L

o
c
a

ti
o

n

5
1
 t

o
 2

3
1

  
(4

)

2
1
 t

o
 

3
1

  
(2

)

1
1
 t

o
 

2
1

  
(3

)

1
 t

o
 

1
1
  

(8
3
2
)

T
o

ta
l 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 b
y
 W

a
rd

5
1
 t

o
 2

3
1

  
(7

)

4
1
 t

o
 

5
1

  
(1

)

3
1
 t

o
 

4
1

  
(3

)

2
1
 t

o
 

3
1

  
(8

)

1
1
 t

o
 

2
1

  
(2

5
)

1
 t

o
 

1
1
  

(1
0
3
)

0
 t

o
 

1
  

(3
3
)

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

Page 54



4
.1

.9
 L

in
k
s 

w
it

h
 T

ro
u
b

le
d

 F
am

ili
e
s

L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
ci

l h
as

 r
e
ce

n
tl

y 
u
n
d

e
rt

ak
e
n
 s

o
m

e
 

e
x
te

n
si

ve
 r

e
se

ar
ch

 a
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

e
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
ts

 T
ro

u
b

le
d

 F
am

ili
e
s 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e
.

W
h
at

 is
 t

h
e
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
 A

b
o

u
t?

T
h
e
 P

ri
m

e
 M

in
is

te
r 

h
as

 c
o

n
fir

m
e
d
 h

is
 in

te
n
tio

n
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 
1

2
0

,0
0

0
 t

ro
u
b
le

d
 fa

m
ili

e
s 

ar
e
 ‘t

u
rn

e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
’ b

y 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f t
h
is

 
Pa

rl
ia

m
e
n
t.

 T
h
e
se

 fa
m

ili
e
s 

ar
e
 c

h
ar

ac
te

ri
se

d
 b

y 
th

e
re

 b
e
in

g 
n
o

 a
d
u
lt 

in
 t

h
e
 fa

m
ily

 w
o

rk
in

g,
 c

h
ild

re
n
 n

o
t 

b
e
in

g 
in

 s
ch

o
o

l a
n
d
 fa

m
ily

 m
e
m

-
b
e
rs

 b
e
in

g 
in

vo
lv

e
d
 in

 c
ri

m
e
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti-

so
ci

al
 b

e
h
av

io
u
r.

T
h
e
se

 fa
m

ili
e
s 

al
m

o
st

 a
lw

ay
s 

h
av

e
 o

th
e
r 

o
ft
e
n
 lo

n
g-

st
an

d
in

g 
p
ro

b
le

m
s 

w
h
ic

h
 c

an
 le

ad
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir

 c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
p
e
at

in
g 

th
e
 c

yc
le

 o
f 

d
is

ad
va

n
ta

ge
. 

O
n
e
 e

st
im

at
e
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
at

 in
 o

ve
r 

a 
th

ir
d
 o

f t
ro

u
b
le

d
 

fa
m

ili
e
s,

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n
 p

ro
b
le

m
s.

 A
n
o

th
e
r 

e
st

im
at

e
 

su
gg

e
st

s 
th

at
 o

ve
r 

h
al

f o
f a

ll 
ch

ild
re

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 p
e
rm

an
e
n
tly

 e
xc

lu
d
e
d
 

fr
o

m
 s

ch
o

o
l i

n
 E

n
gl

an
d
 c

o
m

e
 fr

o
m

 t
h
e
se

 fa
m

ili
e
s,

 a
s 

d
o

 o
n
e
-i

n
-fi

ve
 

yo
u
n
g 

o
ffe

n
d
e
rs

.

O
th

e
r 

p
ro

b
le

m
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

d
o

m
e
st

ic
 v

io
le

n
ce

, 
re

la
tio

n
sh

ip
 b

re
ak

d
o

w
n
, 

m
e
n
ta

l a
n
d
 p

h
ys

ic
al

 h
e
al

th
 p

ro
b
le

m
s 

an
d
 is

o
la

tio
n
 m

ak
e
 it

 in
cr

e
d
ib

ly
 

h
ar

d
 fo

r 
fa

m
ili

e
s 

to
 s

ta
rt

 u
n
ra

ve
lli

n
g 

th
e
ir

 p
ro

b
le

m
s.

T
h
e
 T

ro
u
b

le
d

 F
am

ili
e
s 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e
 (

C
L

G
, 

2
0

1
2

)

T
h
is

 t
ab

le
 s

h
o

w
s 

w
h
at

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

ge
 o

f 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
h
at

 h
av

e
 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
e
d

 e
ac

h
 o

f 
L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
’s

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s,

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
ci

l C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

(e
x
cl

u
d

in
g 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
) 

an
d

 P
u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

d
u
ri

n
g 

th
e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
1

 t
o

 3
1

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
1

2
, 

w
h
e
re

 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 o
r 

at
 r

is
k
 o

f 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 w
as

 r
e
co

rd
e
d

 a
s 

a 
fa

ct
o

r 
o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
, 

an
d

 w
h
o

se
 f

am
ili

e
s 

w
e
re

 a
ls

o
 id

e
n
ti

fi
e
d

 
b

y 
th

e
 T

ro
u
b

le
d

 F
am

ili
e
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 –
 F

am
ili

e
s 

W
o

rk
in

g 
To

ge
th

e
r.

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n

B
o

st
o

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty

L
in

co
ln

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
N

o
rt

h
 K

e
st

e
ve

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
So

u
th

 H
o

lla
n
d

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
So

u
th

 K
e
st

e
ve

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
W

e
st

 L
in

d
se

y 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 C

C
’s

 C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

(e
x
cl

u
d

in
g 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
)

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
ge

d
 1

6
 –

 1
7

9
.1

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

3
.1

%
2

.1
%

0
.0

%
7

.2
%

2
.6

%

A
ge

d
 1

8
 –

 2
5

4
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%

Page 55



4
.2

 A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 O

p
ti

o
n
s 

fo
r 

Y
o

u
n
g 

P
e
o

p
le

4
.2

.1
 T

yp
e
s 

o
f 

A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 f

o
r 

Y
o

u
n
g 

P
e
o

p
le

T
h
is

 is
 n

o
t 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

n
 e

xh
au

st
iv

e
 li

st
 b

u
t 

d
o

e
s 

co
ve

r 
th

e
 m

ai
n
 

ty
p
e
s 

o
f a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 t

o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 
ac

ce
ss

. 

Su
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 –

 T
h
is

 is
 in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

ac
co

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 

fo
r 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
ith

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

 s
u
p
p
o

rt
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

vi
d
e
d
. 

Su
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 is

 u
su

al
ly

 in
 a

 h
o

st
e
l s

e
tt

in
g 

w
ith

 a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 li
vi

n
g 

to
ge

th
e
r 

an
d
 s

h
ar

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
su

ch
 

as
 t

h
e
ir

 k
itc

h
e
n
 a

n
d
 lo

u
n
ge

. 
So

m
e
 S

u
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 is

 
d
is

p
e
rs

e
d
 in

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 a
n
d
 o

ffe
rs

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 g
re

at
e
r 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
ce

. 
In

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 S

u
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 is

 t
yp

ic
al

ly
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
al

th
 D

ir
e
ct

o
ra

te
 b

u
t 

th
e
re

 a
re

 o
th

e
r 

p
ro

vi
d
e
rs

 a
s 

w
e
ll.

In
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 S

u
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 m
an

ag
e
 t

h
e
ir

 
o

w
n
 w

ai
tin

g 
lis

ts
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
lic

at
io

n
 p

ro
ce

ss
e
s,

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 
th

e
ir

 p
ar

tn
e
rs

 in
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

tie
s 

an
d
 C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s.

Su
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 L

o
d
gi

n
gs

 –
 P

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 r
e
n
t 

ro
o

m
s 

in
 t

h
e
ir

 o
w

n
 h

o
m

e
s 

to
 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d
 g

iv
e
 t

h
e
m

 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
, 

e
n
co

u
ra

ge
m

e
n
t 

an
d
 

gu
id

an
ce

 t
h
e
y 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
ve

lo
p
 t

h
e
 s

ki
lls

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
fid

e
n
ce

 t
o

 li
ve

 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tly

. 
T

h
e
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
rs

o
n
 r

e
n
tin

g 
th

e
 r

o
o

m
 b

e
co

m
e
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u
se

h
o

ld
 a

n
d
 s

h
ar

e
s 

th
e
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 

Su
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 lo

d
gi

n
gs

 p
ro

vi
d
e
rs

 o
ft
e
n
 w

o
rk

 in
 p

ar
tn

e
rs

h
ip

 w
ith

 t
h
e
 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
rs

o
n
, 

a 
so

ci
al

 w
o

rk
e
r,
 t

h
e
 L

e
av

in
g 

C
ar

e
 T

e
am

 o
r 

a 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

Su
p
p
o

rt
 W

o
rk

e
r 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e
 o

f s
u
p
p
o

rt
 t

h
at

 m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
rs

o
n’

s 
in

d
iv

id
u
al

 n
e
e
d
s.

 S
o

m
e
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 h

e
lp

 w
ith

 p
ra

ct
ic

al
 

ta
sk

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
co

o
ki

n
g,

 b
u
d
ge

tin
g 

o
r 

sh
o

p
p
in

g 
e
co

n
o

m
ic

al
ly

, 
w

h
ile

 
o

th
e
rs

 w
ill

 n
e
e
d
 m

o
re

 e
m

o
tio

n
al

 s
u
p
p
o

rt
. 

M
an

y 
w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 b

o
th

. 
T

h
e
 

id
e
a 

is
 t

h
at

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 g
ra

d
u
al

ly
 t

ak
e
 o

n
 m

o
re

 r
e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ty
 fo

r 
lo

o
ki

n
g 

af
te

r 
th

e
m

se
lv

e
s 

u
n
til

 t
h
e
y 

re
ac

h
 t

h
e
 p

o
in

t 
w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
y 

fe
e
l 

co
n
fid

e
n
t 

e
n
o

u
gh

 t
o

 c
o

p
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
ir

 o
w

n
.

N
ig

h
ts

to
p
 –

 N
ig

h
ts

to
p
 a

n
d
 s

im
ila

r 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
cy

 h
o

u
si

n
g 

sc
h
e
m

e
s 

fo
r 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
ge

d
 1

6
 t

o
 2

5
 c

an
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 a

 s
af

e
, 
su

p
p
o

rt
iv

e
 

an
d
 w

e
lc

o
m

in
g 

e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
 o

f a
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r.
 S

ta
ys

 c
an

 
b
e
 a

n
yt

h
in

g 
fr

o
m

 ju
st

 o
n
e
 n

ig
h
t 

to
 a

 fe
w

 w
e
e
ks

.

A
 s

ta
y 

in
 o

n
e
 o

f t
h
e
se

 s
ch

e
m

e
s 

ca
n
 h

e
lp

 w
ith

 s
u
d
d
e
n
 h

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

. 
M

an
y 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 u
si

n
g 

th
e
 s

ch
e
m

e
s 

h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 a

sk
e
d
 t

o
 le

av
e
 

th
e
ir

 fa
m

ily
 h

o
m

e
, 

o
r 

h
av

e
 le

ft
 h

o
m

e
 s

u
d
d
e
n
ly

 w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
y 

h
av

e
 fa

lle
n
 

o
u
t 

w
ith

 a
 fa

m
ily

 m
e
m

b
e
r,
 o

r 
h
av

e
 le

ft
 a

 h
o

st
e
l, 

an
d
 w

o
u
ld

 o
th

e
rw

is
e
 

ri
sk

 s
le

e
p
in

g 
ro

u
gh

 o
r 

so
fa

-s
u
rfi

n
g.

N
ig

h
ts

to
p
 s

ch
e
m

e
s 

ar
e
 t

yp
ic

al
ly

 r
u
n
 b

y 
ch

ar
iti

e
s 

an
d
 c

o
o

rd
in

at
e
d
 

b
y 

th
e
 n

at
io

n
al

 c
h
ar

ity
 D

e
p
au

l U
K

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

e
ts

 s
ta

n
d
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

th
e
 

sc
h
e
m

e
s.

 A
lth

o
u
gh

 s
im

ila
r 

to
 S

u
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 L

o
d
gi

n
gs

, 
N

ig
h
ts

to
p
 is

 
ty

p
ic

al
ly

 d
e
si

gn
e
d
 a

s 
sh

o
rt

-t
e
rm

, 
d
ir

e
ct

 a
cc

e
ss

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
. 

C
ra

sh
 P

ad
 –

 T
h
is

 is
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 d

e
si

gn
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

va
ila

b
le

 in
 a

n
 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
cy

 a
n
d
 o

n
ly

 fo
r 

a 
sh

o
rt

 p
e
ri

o
d
 t

o
 r

e
so

lv
e
 a

n
 im

m
e
d
ia

te
 

cr
is

is
 o

r 
u
n
til

 m
o

re
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

at
e
 lo

n
g 

te
rm

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 c

an
 b

e
 

fo
u
n
d
. 

It
 is

 t
yp

ic
al

ly
 in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

ac
co

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 w

ith
 s

o
m

e
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 

an
d
 u

su
al

ly
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d
 w

ith
in

 a
n
 e

xi
st

in
g 

Su
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n
.

So
ci

al
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

–
 T

h
is

 is
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 le

t 
fr

o
m

 a
 L

o
ca

l A
u
th

o
ri

ty
 

o
r 

R
e
gi

st
e
re

d
 S

o
ci

al
 L

an
d
lo

rd
. 

T
h
e
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 is

 in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

an
d
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
sp

o
n
si

b
le

 fo
r 

e
n
su

ri
n
g 

th
e
y 

m
an

ag
e
 t

h
e
ir

 
te

n
an

cy
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f H

o
u
si

n
g 

Su
p
p
o

rt
 P

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 t
h
at

 a
re

 
av

ai
la

b
le

 a
cr

o
ss

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 p
e
o

p
le

 m
ai

n
ta

in
 t

h
e
ir

 t
e
n
an

ci
e
s 

if 
th

e
y 

ar
e
 h

av
in

g 
d
iffi

cu
lti

e
s.

 S
o

ci
al

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

o
ffe

rs
 lo

n
g 

te
rm

 s
e
tt

le
d
 

an
d
 s

e
cu

re
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 b

u
t 

is
 t

yp
ic

al
ly

 in
 h

ig
h
 d

e
m

an
d
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

re
ad

ily
 a

va
ila

b
le

.

P
ri

va
te

 R
e
n
te

d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 –

 T
h
is

 is
 in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

ac
co

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 r

e
n
te

d
 fr

o
m

 a
 p

ri
va

te
 la

n
d
lo

rd
. 

A
s 

w
ith

 s
o

ci
al

 
h
o

u
si

n
g 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 e

xp
e
ct

e
d
 t

o
 m

an
ag

e
 t

h
e
 t

e
n
an

cy
 

th
e
m

se
lv

e
s 

b
u
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

Su
p
p
o

rt
 c

an
 b

e
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d
 a

ls
o

.

Page 56



4
.2

.2
. 

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 P

ro
vi

si
o

n
 in

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e

Su
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 –

 T
h
is

 is
 t

h
e
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 
P
u
b
lic

 H
e
al

th
 F

u
n
d
e
d
 Y

o
u
n
g 

Pe
rs

o
n
s 

A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 (

1
6

-2
5

):

N
ig

h
ts

to
p
 –

 E
as

t 
L
in

d
se

y 
h
av

e
 a

 s
ch

e
m

e
 b

u
t 

h
av

e
 o

n
ly

 b
e
e
n
 a

b
le

 t
o

 
re

cr
u
it 

2
 fa

m
ili

e
s.

 T
h
e
 s

ch
e
m

e
 is

 r
ar

e
ly

 u
se

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 is

o
la

tio
n
 o

f o
n
e
 

o
f t

h
e
 fa

m
ili

e
s 

an
d
 t

h
e
 s

e
co

n
d
, 

b
as

e
d
 in

 L
o

u
th

, 
is

 o
n
ly

 u
se

d
 a

 fe
w

 
tim

e
s 

a 
ye

ar
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 d

iffi
cu

lti
e
s 

in
 m

ak
in

g 
th

e
 s

ch
e
m

e
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 in

 a
n
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
cy

.

So
u
th

 H
o

lla
n
d
 a

ls
o

 h
av

e
 a

 s
ch

e
m

e
 w

h
e
re

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 a
c-

co
m

m
o

d
at

e
d
 w

ith
 fa

m
ili

e
s 

fo
r 

ap
p
ro

xi
m

at
e
ly

 4
 n

ig
h
ts

. 
T

h
e
 s

ch
e
m

e
 

o
p
e
ra

te
s 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tly

 o
f t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
y 

cu
rr

e
n
tly

 h
av

e
 3

-4
 

h
o

st
 fa

m
ili

e
s.

 T
h
e
y 

d
o

n’
t 

ta
ke

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
ith

 o
ffe

n
d
in

g 
h
is

to
ri

e
s 

an
d
 h

av
e
 o

n
ly

 u
se

d
 t

h
e
 s

ch
e
m

e
 o

n
ce

 in
 t

h
e
 la

st
 6

 m
o

n
th

s.

H
o

m
e
r 

H
o

u
se

 –
 T

h
is

 is
 S

u
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 n
o

t 
fu

n
d
e
d
 b

y 
P
u
b
lic

 H
e
al

th
. 

It
 c

o
m

p
ri

se
s 

1
8

 u
n
its

 w
ith

 s
u
p
p
o

rt
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d
 

b
y 

Le
ap

, 
a 

n
at

io
n
al

 c
h
ar

ity
 s

p
e
ci

al
is

in
g 

in
 h

o
u
si

n
g 

an
d
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 fo

r 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

.

C
ra

sh
 P

ad
 –

 W
e
st

 L
in

d
se

y 
o

ffe
r 

a 
C

ra
sh

 P
ad

 in
 p

ar
tn

e
rs

h
ip

 w
ith

 
M

ar
ke

t 
R

as
e
n
 F

o
ye

r.
 T

h
e
 r

o
o

m
 is

 b
o

o
ke

d
 o

n
 a

 n
ig

h
t 

b
y 

n
ig

h
t 

b
as

is
 

an
d
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 m

o
ve

d
 in

to
 t

h
e
 m

ai
n
 h

o
st

e
l w

h
e
n
 a

 
va

ca
n
cy

 b
e
co

m
e
s 

av
ai

la
b
le

.

R
e
m

an
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 –

 T
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ffe

n
d
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tly

 
fu

n
d
 a

 r
o

o
m

 a
t 

Sl
e
af

o
rd

 F
o

ye
r 

fo
r 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
h
e
y 

ar
e
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
in

g.

Su
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 L

o
d
gi

n
gs

 –
 B

an
ar

d
o

s 
Le

av
in

g 
C

ar
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
 c

u
r-

re
n
tly

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 a

 C
o

u
n
ty

w
id

e
 S

u
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 L

o
d
gi

n
gs

 
sc

h
e
m

e
 fo

r 
C

ar
e
 L

e
av

e
rs

. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tly

 1
8

 h
o

st
 fa

m
ili

e
s.

D
is

tr
ic

t

B
B

C

L
in

co
ln

L
in

co
ln

L
in

co
ln

L
in

co
ln

N
K

D
C

SH
D

C
SH

D
C

SK
D

C
SK

D
C

W
L

D
C

U
n
it

s

1
8 4

1
3

 (
+

3
 m

o
ve

 o
n
)

2
4

6
0 4 1
4 8 4 1
1 8 2
0

Su
p

p
o

rt
 H

o
u
rs

 p
e
r 

cl
ie

n
t 

(a
vg

.)

8
9

.2
5

1
6

.6
4

.6 8 1
1

1
4

.1
2

9
.4

9
.2

5
1

8
.1 7 9

N
am

e

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 B
o

st
o

n
Y
o

u
n
g 

P
e
rs

o
n’

s 
A

cc
o

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
C

e
d

ar
s

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 L
in

co
ln

B
e
ca

m
 H

o
u
se

Sl
e
af

o
rd

 F
o

ye
r

L
ig

h
th

o
u
se

L
ig

h
th

o
u
se

 (
Te

e
n
ag

e
 P

ar
e
n
ts

)
G

ra
n
th

am
 F

o
ye

r
St

am
fo

rd
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

P
ro

je
ct

M
ar

k
e
t 

R
as

e
n
 F

o
ye

r

2
4

h
r 

Su
p

p
o

rt
?

- Y - - - Y - - - - - -

Page 57



4
.3

. 
U

se
 o

f 
A

cc
o

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl

y 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
e
d

 b
y 

L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

T
h
is

 s
e
ct

io
n
 r

e
fe

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e
 S

u
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
e
d
 

b
y 

L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
ci

l’s
 P

u
b
lic

 h
e
al

th
 D

ir
e
ct

o
ra

te
.

4
.3

.1
. 
M

e
th

o
d

o
lo

gy

In
fo

rm
at

io
n
 r

e
la

tin
g 

to
 h

o
u
si

n
g 

re
la

te
d
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

co
m

m
is

-
si

o
n
e
d
 b

y 
P
u
b
lic

 H
e
al

th
 is

 c
ap

tu
re

d
 in

 t
w

o
 w

ay
s:

1
. 

C
lie

n
t 

re
co

rd
 fo

rm
s 

(C
R

F)
 d

at
a 

w
h
ic

h
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
e
 e

n
tr

an
ts

 in
to

 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

o
ve

r 
a 

gi
ve

n
 t

im
e
 fr

am
e
, 

al
o

n
g 

w
ith

 b
as

ic
 d

e
m

o
gr

ap
h
ic

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n

2
. 

O
u
tc

o
m

e
s 

d
at

a 
w

h
ic

h
 a

t 
th

e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f e
xi

t 
fo

r 
in

d
iv

id
u
al

s 
sh

o
w

s 
th

e
 

cl
ie

n
t’
s 

le
n
gt

h
 o

f s
ta

y 
in

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

as
 w

e
ll 

as
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s 

th
e
y 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 

an
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
’v

e
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t 

at
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f t
h
e
ir

 in
te

ra
ct

io
n
 w

ith
 

se
rv

ic
e
s

Fo
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
se

s 
o

f t
h
is

 r
e
p
o

rt
 C

R
F 

d
at

a 
w

as
 e

xt
ra

ct
e
d
 fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 fo

r 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

R
e
se

ar
ch

 w
e
b
-s

ite
 p

e
rt

ai
n
in

g 
to

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 a
n
d
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

. 
 T

h
is

 d
at

a 
w

as
 e

d
ite

d
 t

o
 s

h
o

w
 o

n
ly

 t
h
e
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 

b
as

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

p
ro

vi
d
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 li
st

e
d
 b

e
lo

w
:

T
h
is

 d
at

a 
w

as
 e

d
ite

d
 fu

rt
h
e
r 

to
 s

h
o

w
 o

n
ly

 t
h
o

se
 c

lie
n
ts

 a
ge

d
 2

5
 

ye
ar

s 
an

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

at
 t

h
e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f d
at

a 
su

b
m

is
si

o
n
. 

 

T
h
e
se

 d
at

a 
se

ts
 w

e
re

 t
h
e
n
 u

se
d
 t

o
 e

xt
ra

ct
 t

h
e
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
.

4
.3

.2
. 
O

ve
ra

ll 
N

u
m

b
e
rs

C
lie

n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 in
vo

lv
e
d
 in

 Y
o

u
n
g 

Pe
rs

o
n
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

R
e
la

te
d
 S

u
p
p
o

rt
 

Se
rv

ic
e
s 

in
cr

e
as

e
d
 b

y 
7

%
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 t

o
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
. 

In
 r

e
al

 t
e
rm

s 
th

is
 

m
e
an

s 
th

at
 c

lie
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 h
av

e
 g

ro
w

n
 fr

o
m

 3
3

4
 t

o
 3

5
7

. 
Ta

b
le

 1
 in

 
th

e
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

se
ct

io
n
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
e
 y

e
ar

 o
n
 y

e
ar

 t
re

n
d
s 

p
e
r 

ag
e
 g

ro
u
p
 

al
o

n
g 

w
ith

 w
h
at

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f t
h
e
 w

h
o

le
 t

h
is

 m
ak

e
s 

u
p
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

ge
 c

h
an

ge
 y

e
ar

 o
n
 y

e
ar

.

Page 58



4
.3

.3
. 
A

ge
 R

an
ge

 

A
ge

 G
ro

u
p

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

T
O

T
A

L

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 (
%

)

1
2

%
1

6
%

1
4

%
1

3
%

1
1

%
8

%
7

%
7

%
7

%
4

%

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 (
n
)

4
1

4
6

5
0

5
6

5
1

2
7

2
6

1
5

2
3

2
0

3
5

7

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 (
n
)

4
1

5
5

4
7

4
5

3
7

2
7

2
5

2
3

2
2

1
2

3
3

4

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 (
%

)

1
1

%
1

3
%

1
4

%
1

6
%

1
4

%
8

%
7

%
4

%
6

%
6

%

Y
e
ar

 o
n
 Y

e
ar

 
D

if
fe

re
n
ce

0
%

-2
0

%
6

%
2

0
%

2
7

%
0

%
4

%
-5

3
%

4
%

4
0

%

Ta
b
le

 1
A

ge
 r

an
ge

s 
h
av

e
 b

ro
ad

ly
 r

e
m

ai
n
e
d
 t

h
e
 s

am
e
 y

e
ar

 o
n
 y

e
ar

 w
ith

 ju
st

 
o

ve
r 

5
0

%
 o

f p
e
o

p
le

 a
cc

e
ss

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

ag
e
d
 1

9
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
r.
  

4
.3

.4
. 
L

e
n
gt

h
 o

f 
St

ay

In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

xt
ra

ct
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 li

n
ke

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 le

n
gt

h
 o

f s
ta

y 
fo

r 
th

e
 

cl
ie

n
t 

gr
o

u
p
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

d
at

a 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 fo

r 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

R
e
se

ar
ch

 
w

e
b
-s

ite
 h

o
st

e
d
 b

y 
St

 A
n
d
re

w
’s

 U
n
iv

e
rs

ity
 h

as
 b

e
e
n
 u

se
d
. 

 W
h
ils

t 
th

is
 p

ro
vi

d
e
s 

u
s 

w
ith

 a
 v

e
ry

 u
se

fu
l d

at
a 

so
u
rc

e
 it

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
sh

o
w

 a
n
y 

d
u
p
lic

at
io

n
 o

f i
n
d
iv

id
u
al

s 
w

ith
in

 t
h
e
 s

ys
te

m
. 

 A
ls

o
, 

gi
ve

n
 t

h
at

 t
h
e
se

 
fo

rm
s 

ar
e
 s

u
b
m

itt
e
d
 a

s 
cl

ie
n
ts

 le
av

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s,

 t
h
e
 o

ve
ra

ll 
su

b
m

is
si

o
n
s 

ra
te

s 
ar

e
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
an

 fo
r 

th
e
 C

lie
n
t 

R
e
co

rd
 F

o
rm

 d
at

a 
m

e
n
tio

n
e
d
 in

 
th

e
 r

e
st

 o
f t

h
is

 d
o

cu
m

e
n
t.

T
h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l t
re

n
d
s 

in
 t

e
rm

s 
o

f l
e
n
gt

h
 o

f s
ta

y 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

n
d
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 h
av

e
 r

e
m

ai
n
e
d
 fa

ir
ly

 s
ta

b
le

. 
 W

ith
 4

4
%

 o
f t

h
e
 c

lie
n
t 

gr
o

u
p
 

le
av

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

w
ith

in
 3

 m
o

n
th

s 
o

r 
le

ss
 a

n
d
 5

6
%

 s
ta

yi
n
g 

in
 fo

r 
o

ve
r 

3
 m

o
n
th

s 
as

 t
ab

le
 2

 s
h
o

w
s:

R
o

w
 L

ab
e
ls

3
 m

o
n
th

s 
o

r 
le

ss
3

-6
m

o
n
th

s
6

-1
2

 m
o

n
th

s
1

2
-2

4
 m

o
n
th

s
2

 y
e
ar

s 
+

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 f

o
rm

s 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 

(n
)

3
4

4
2

2
6

1
3

4
7

0 6

7
8

0

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 f

o
rm

s 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 

(%
)

4
4

%
2

9
%

1
7

%
9

%
1

%

Page 59



4
.3

.5
. 
R

e
fe

rr
al

 R
o

u
te

s

Ta
b
le

 3
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
e
 y

e
ar

 o
n
 y

e
ar

 r
e
fe

rr
al

 r
o

u
te

s 
in

to
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

fo
r 

al
l 

cl
ie

n
ts

:

T
ab

le
 3

T
h
e
re

 h
as

 b
e
e
n
 a

 s
ig

n
ifi

ca
n
t 

in
cr

e
as

e
 in

 L
A

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

d
e
p
ar

tm
e
n
t 

re
fe

rr
al

s;
 o

th
e
rw

is
e
, 

ye
ar

 o
n
 y

e
ar

 r
e
fe

rr
al

 t
re

n
d
s 

se
e
m

 t
o

 b
e
 

re
m

ai
n
in

g 
fa

ir
ly

 s
ta

b
le

. 
 T

h
e
 t

w
o

 m
ai

n
 r

e
fe

rr
al

 r
o

u
te

s 
ar

e
 ‘s

e
lf-

re
fe

rr
al

 
/ 

d
ir

e
ct

 a
p
p
lic

at
io

n’
 a

n
d
 ‘L

A
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

d
e
p
ar

tm
e
n
t 

re
fe

rr
al

s’
. 

 I
n
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 8
0

%
 o

f r
e
fe

rr
al

s 
fr

o
m

 s
o

ci
al

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

w
e
re

 fo
r 

1
6

-1
7

 y
e
ar

 
o

ld
s,

 m
e
an

in
g 

th
at

 fo
r 

th
e
se

 c
lie

n
ts

 s
p
e
ci

fic
al

ly
 t

h
e
 t

w
o

 m
ai

n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
rs

 
w

e
re

 ‘s
e
lf-

re
fe

rr
al

s’
 (

3
1

%
) 

an
d
 ‘s

o
ci

al
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s’

 (
2

2
%

).

4
.3

.6
. 

L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ty

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 t
h
re

e
 L

o
ca

l A
u
th

o
ri

ty
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

 (
L
A

D
s)

 li
st

e
d
 a

s 
th

e
 

p
re

vi
o

u
s 

p
la

ce
 o

f r
e
si

d
e
n
ce

 fo
r 

7
5

%
 o

f t
h
e
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 c

lie
n
t 

gr
o

u
p
 

(r
o

u
gh

ly
 2

5
%

 e
ac

h
).

 T
h
e
y 

ar
e
: 

W
h
e
n
 1

6
 a

n
d
 1

7
 y

e
ar

 o
ld

s 
ar

e
 lo

o
ke

d
 a

t 
sp

e
ci

fic
al

ly
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
 

ap
p
ro

ac
h
in

g 
fr

o
m

 E
as

t 
L
in

d
se

y 
an

d
 L

in
co

ln
 r

e
d
u
ce

s 
sl

ig
h
tly

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 fr

o
m

 S
o

u
th

 K
e
st

e
ve

n
 r

is
e
s 

to
 a

lm
o

st
 a

 t
h
ir

d
. 

T
h
is

 t
re

n
d
 

w
as

 a
ls

o
 fo

u
n
d
 t

o
 b

e
 p

re
se

n
t 

in
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 d

at
a.

R
e
fe

rr
al

 S
o

u
rc

e

C
o

m
m

u
n
it

y 
M

e
n
ta

l H
e
al

th
 T

e
am

H
e
al

th
 s

e
rv

ic
e
/G

P
In

te
rn

al
 t

ra
n
sf

e
r

L
A

 h
o

u
si

n
g 

d
e
p

ar
tm

e
n
t 

(r
e
fe

rr
al

)
M

o
vi

n
g 

fr
o

m
 a

n
o

th
e
r 

R
SL

N
o

m
in

at
e
d

 b
y 

lo
ca

l h
o

u
si

n
g 

au
th

O
th

e
r

P
ro

b
at

io
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
/p

ri
so

n
R

e
lo

ca
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 a
 r

e
co

gn
is

e
d

 N
at

io
n
al

, 
R

e
gi

o
n
al

 
o

r 
Su

b
-R

e
gi

o
n
al

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

M
o

b
ili

ty
 S

ch
e
m

e
Se

lf
 r

e
fe

rr
al

/D
ir

e
ct

 a
p

p
lic

at
io

n
So

ci
al

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

V
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 A

ge
n
cy

Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d

in
g 

Te
am

T
O

T
A

L

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 (
n
)

2
0 3 0 1
1 5 1
8

6
0

1
1 1

1
6

9
2

8 5 3

3
3

4

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 (
%

)

6
%

1
%

0
%

3
%

1
%

5
%

1
8

%
3

%
0

%

5
1

%
8

%
1

%
1

%

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 (
%

)

6
%

1
%

2
%

1
7

%
1

%
9

%
7

%
2

%
3

%

4
3

%
6

%
2

%
0

%

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 (
n
)

2
3 3 8 5
9 4 3
3

2
4 7 9

1
5

5
2

3 8 1

3
5

7

Page 60



4
.3

.7
. 

N
e
e
d

s 
H

ig
h
lig

h
te

d

W
h
e
n
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
ak

e
 u

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

p
ro

vi
d
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 P
u
b
lic

 
H

e
al

th
 t

h
e
ir

 n
e
e
d
s 

ar
e
 a

ss
e
ss

e
d
 t

o
 id

e
n
tif

y 
w

h
at

 s
u
p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e
y 

re
q
u
ir

e
. 

T
h
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 is

 u
se

d
 t

o
 d

e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

 t
h
e
 p

o
si

tiv
e
 im

p
ac

t 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

ca
n
 h

av
e
 o

n
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

s 
liv

e
s.

O
u
t 

o
f t

h
e
 1

4
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 n
e
e
d
s 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 b

y 
cl

ie
n
ts

 
e
n
te

ri
n
g 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

th
e
 m

ai
n
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 fo
r 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 le
av

in
g 

ca
re

, 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
t 

ri
sk

 a
n
d
 t

e
e
n
ag

e
 p

ar
e
n
ts

 a
re

:

T
h
e
se

 n
e
e
d
s 

w
e
re

 a
ll 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 b

y 
o

ve
r 

5
0

%
 o

f c
lie

n
ts

 (
fo

r 
w

h
o

m
 

d
at

a 
w

as
 s

u
b
m

itt
e
d
 -

 a
 t

o
ta

l o
f 1

7
8

 p
e
o

p
le

 d
u
ri

n
g 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 -
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 o
n
ly

 a
 q

u
ar

te
r 

o
f t

h
e
 c

lie
n
ts

 r
e
co

rd
e
d
 v

ia
 C

R
F)

.

T
h
e
 m

o
st

 ‘s
u
cc

e
ss

fu
lly

’ m
e
t 

 (
9

0
%

 o
r 

m
o

re
 o

f t
h
o

se
 h

ig
h
lig

h
tin

g 
th

e
se

 n
e
e
d
s 

h
av

in
g 

th
e
m

 m
e
t 

b
y 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f t
h
e
ir

 t
im

e
 in

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s)

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

fo
r 

th
is

 g
ro

u
p
 d

u
ri

n
g 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 w
e
re

:

T
h
e
 n

e
xt

 g
ro

u
p
 o

f m
o

st
 s

u
cc

e
ss

fu
lly

 m
e
t 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s 

(5
0

%
 o

r 
m

o
re

 
o

f t
h
o

se
 h

ig
h
lig

h
tin

g 
th

e
se

 n
e
e
d
s 

h
av

in
g 

th
e
m

 m
e
t 

b
y 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 t
im

e
 in

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s)

 w
e
re

:

Fi
n
al

ly
 t

h
e
 le

as
t 

su
cc

e
ss

fu
lly

 m
e
t 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 w

as
 ‘P

ai
d
 W

o
rk

’ w
ith

 
fe

w
e
r 

th
an

 5
0

%
 o

f t
h
o

se
 h

ig
h
lig

h
tin

g 
th

is
 n

e
e
d
 h

av
in

g 
it 

m
e
t 

b
y 

th
e
 

e
n
d
 o

f t
h
e
ir

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 w

ith
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s.

4
.4

. 
In

vo
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

St
ak

e
h
o

ld
e
rs

 
 

 
 

 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tly

 h
ig

h
 le

ve
ls

 o
f i

n
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t 

an
d
 jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g 
ac

ro
ss

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
ci

l, 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

A
u
th

o
ri

tie
s 

an
d
 t

h
e
ir

 p
ar

tn
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ke

h
o

ld
e
rs

. 

L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e
 h

as
 r

e
ce

n
tly

 la
u
n
ch

e
d
 it

s 
n
e
w

 fi
ve

 y
e
ar

 
H

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 S
tr

at
e
gy

. 
T

h
ro

u
gh

 it
s 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 k
e
y 

p
ar

tn
e
rs

 
an

d
 s

ta
ke

h
o

ld
e
rs

 m
e
e
t 

o
n
 a

 m
o

n
th

ly
 b

as
is

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 

to
ge

th
e
r 

an
d
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 e

ac
h
 o

th
e
r 

in
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g 

th
e
 

st
ra

te
gy

’s
 a

ct
io

n
s.

T
h
is

 s
tr

at
e
gy

 g
ro

u
p
 h

as
 m

e
t 

re
gu

la
rl

y 
fo

r 
m

an
y 

ye
ar

s 
an

d
 

is
 a

 w
e
ll 

e
st

ab
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
cc

e
ss

fu
l f

o
ru

m
 fo

r 
sh

ar
in

g 
b
e
st

 
p
ra

ct
ic

e
 a

n
d
 fo

r 
e
n
su

ri
n
g 

cl
e
ar

 a
n
d
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e
 

co
m

m
u
n
ic

at
io

n
.

Page 61



4
.5

. 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

an
d

 C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n
s 

M
u
ch

 o
f t

h
e
 d

at
a 

co
lle

ct
e
d
 p

ro
vi

d
e
s 

a 
u
se

fu
l i

n
si

gh
t 

in
to

 y
o

u
th

 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 in
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 a

 c
ru

ci
al

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
p
o

in
t 

fo
r 

u
s 

to
 m

o
n
ito

r 
th

e
 im

p
ac

ts
 o

f a
n
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

w
e
 in

tr
o

d
u
ce

.

T
h
e
re

 is
 a

 lo
t 

o
f d

at
a 

h
e
re

 t
h
at

 is
 r

e
as

su
ri

n
g 

an
d
 t

h
at

 d
e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

s 
th

e
 p

o
si

tiv
e
 w

o
rk

 t
h
at

 is
 b

e
in

g 
d
o

n
e
 b

y 
Lo

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

tie
s 

an
d
 t

h
e
ir

 
p
ar

tn
e
rs

. 
T

h
is

 is
 p

ar
tic

u
la

rl
y 

th
e
 c

as
e
 fo

r 
re

p
e
at

 a
p
p
ro

ac
h
e
s.

 A
lth

o
u
gh

 
th

e
re

 is
 s

til
l r

o
o

m
 fo

r 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

it 
d
e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

s 
th

e
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e
n
e
ss

 
o

f c
u
rr

e
n
t 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

th
at

 8
2

%
 o

f y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 d
o

 n
o

t 
n
e
e
d
 t

o
 m

ak
e
 

m
u
lti

p
le

 a
p
p
ro

ac
h
e
s 

to
 r

e
ce

iv
e
 a

ss
is

ta
n
ce

.

T
h
e
 s

e
ct

io
n
 o

n
 d

u
p
lic

at
io

n
s 

sh
o

w
s 

a 
h
ig

h
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 
ap

p
ro

ac
h
in

g 
b
o

th
 C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

an
d
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

Te
am

s.
 I
n
 

a 
p
o

si
tiv

e
 s

e
n
se

 t
h
is

 c
o

n
fir

m
s 

h
ig

h
 le

ve
ls

 o
f j

o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

te
am

s.
 W

h
e
re

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 h
av

e
 a

p
p
ro

ac
h
e
d
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

Te
am

s 
an

d
 d

id
 n

o
t 

th
e
n
 c

o
n
ta

ct
 C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s,

 w
e
 c

o
u
ld

 
co

n
si

d
e
r 

it 
lik

e
ly

 t
h
at

 t
h
o

se
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 o
n
ly

 r
e
q
u
ir

e
d
 b

ri
e
f, 

lo
w

 
le

ve
l i

n
te

rv
e
n
tio

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir

 fa
m

ili
e
s.

 

W
e
 c

an
 a

ls
o

 s
e
e
 h

e
re

 t
h
at

 c
o

n
si

d
e
ra

b
le

 r
e
so

u
rc

e
 is

 u
se

d
 in

 
p
ro

vi
d
in

g 
ad

vi
ce

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 m

o
re

 t
h
an

 o
n
ce

, 
p
o

ss
ib

ly
 w

ith
 t

w
o

 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f s

ta
ff 

re
p
e
at

in
g 

th
e
 s

am
e
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 w

h
ic

h
 fu

rt
h
e
r 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
tia

l e
ffi

ci
e
n
ci

e
s 

fo
r 

Lo
ca

l A
u
th

o
ri

tie
s 

b
y 

fo
rm

in
g 

a 
si

n
gl

e
 g

at
e
w

ay
 fo

r 
ad

vi
ce

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
.

U
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 s

e
ct

io
n
 o

n
 r

e
as

o
n
s 

fo
r 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 w
e
 c

an
 c

le
ar

ly
 s

e
e
 

th
at

 t
h
e
 m

ai
n
 c

au
se

 o
f h

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 is
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
o

f p
ar

e
n
ta

l e
vi

c-
tio

n
. 

T
h
is

 g
iv

e
s 

u
s 

cl
e
ar

 e
vi

d
e
n
ce

 o
f t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 fo

cu
s 

o
n
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
e
ffe

ct
iv

e
 m

e
d
ia

tio
n
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 r
e
m

ai
n
 a

t 
h
o

m
e
 w

ith
 t

h
e
ir

 fa
m

ili
e
s 

w
h
e
re

 it
 is

 s
af

e
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

at
e
 t

o
 d

o
 s

o
. 

It
 is

 a
ls

o
 im

p
o

rt
an

t 
to

 r
e
m

e
m

b
e
r 

th
at

 it
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

al
w

ay
s 

b
e
 s

af
e
 a

n
d
 

ap
p
ro

p
ri

at
e
 fo

r 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 r
e
m

ai
n
 a

t 
h
o

m
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
at

 m
an

y 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 fe
e
l r

e
ad

y 
an

d
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 t

o
 a

ss
e
rt

 t
h
e
ir

 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
ce

. 
T

h
at

 p
ar

e
n
ta

l e
vi

ct
io

n
 is

 s
u
ch

 a
n
 o

ve
rw

h
e
lm

in
g 

ca
u
se

 
o

f h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
ls

o
 t

e
lls

 u
s 

o
f t

h
e
 d

iffi
cu

lti
e
s 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 m
ay

 b
e
 

fa
ci

n
g 

in
 b

e
in

g 
ab

le
 t

o
 s

e
cu

re
 t

h
e
ir

 o
w

n
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
at

 
th

e
re

 is
 a

 r
o

le
 fo

r 
Lo

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

tie
s 

to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e
 t

h
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 a
s 

b
e
st

 
th

e
y 

ca
n
. 

T
h
is

 s
e
ct

io
n
 h

as
 a

ls
o

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 fo

r 
st

an
d
ar

d
is

e
d
 r

e
p
o

rt
in

g 
m

e
th

o
d
s.

 T
h
e
 d

at
a 

u
se

d
 h

e
re

 is
 v

e
ry

 m
e
an

in
gf

u
l a

n
d
 u

se
fu

l b
u
t 

ce
rt

ai
n
 a

sp
e
ct

s 
ar

e
 n

o
t 

co
n
si

st
e
n
tly

 a
p
p
lie

d
. 

Fo
r 

e
xa

m
p
le

 o
n
e
 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
 m

ay
 r

e
co

rd
 ‘D

e
b
t’
 a

s 
th

e
 c

au
se

 o
f h

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 b
u
t 

th
at

 
al

o
n
e
 c

an
n
o

t 
ca

u
se

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

. 
It
 is

 li
ke

ly
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
n
t 

ar
re

ar
s 

an
d
 

th
e
 r

e
su

lti
n
g 

lo
ss

 o
f p

ri
va

te
 r

e
n
te

d
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 t

h
at

 c
au

se
s 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

. 
E
rr

o
rs

 a
n
d
 a

n
o

m
al

ie
s 

lik
e
 t

h
e
se

 h
av

e
 

b
e
e
n
 s

u
m

m
ar

is
e
d
 a

cc
o

rd
in

g 
to

 e
ith

e
r 

th
e
 b

e
st

 fi
t 

o
r 

as
 

‘o
th

e
r’

. 

It
 is

 r
e
as

su
ri

n
g 

to
 s

e
e
 lo

w
 r

e
tu

rn
s 

fo
r 

lo
ss

 o
f s

u
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 

ac
co

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 a

s 
a 

ca
u
se

 o
f h

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

. 
O

n
 t

h
e
 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g 

is
 p

re
ve

n
tin

g 
e
vi

ct
io

n
s 

b
u
t 

it 
is

 im
p
o

rt
an

t 
th

at
, 

as
 p

ar
t 

o
f o

u
r 

o
n
go

in
g 

d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t,

 w
e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

ca
p
tu

re
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

o
f y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 le
av

in
g 

Su
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
.

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n
ci

n
g 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 t
h
at

 h
av

e
 a

ls
o

 b
e
e
n
 id

e
n
tifi

e
d
 a

s 
p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

e
 T

ro
u
b
le

d
 F

am
ili

e
s 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e
 is

 s
ta

rt
lin

gl
y 

lo
w

. 
T

h
is

 
o

ffe
rs

 s
o

m
e
 e

vi
d
e
n
tia

l w
e
ig

h
t 

to
 d

is
m

is
s 

th
e
 

p
re

su
m

p
tio

n
 t

h
at

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h
o

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n
ce

 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
re

 r
e
ad

ily
 a

ss
o

ci
at

e
d
 w

ith
 w

o
rk

le
ss

n
e
ss

 
an

d
/o

r 
o

ffe
n
d
in

g,
 a

n
d
 r

e
m

in
d
s 

u
s 

th
at

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 
ca

n
 a

ffe
ct

 e
ve

ry
o

n
e
. 

It
 is

 im
p
o

rt
an

t 
to

 r
e
m

e
m

b
e
r 

th
at

 
th

e
 T

ro
u
b
le

d
 F

am
ili

e
s 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e
 is

 in
 it

s 
in

fa
n
cy

 a
n
d
 

co
n
tin

u
e
d
 c

lo
se

 w
o

rk
in

g 
is

 e
ss

e
n
tia

l t
o

 m
ak

e
 t

h
e
 m

o
st

 
o

f a
n
y 

o
p
p
o

rt
u
n
iti

e
s 

fo
r 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g.

  

T
h
e
 s

e
ct

io
n
 o

n
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 o

p
tio

n
s 

fo
r 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 il
lu

st
ra

te
s 

th
e
 la

ck
 o

f d
iv

e
rs

ity
 w

e
 h

av
e
 in

 t
h
e
 

ac
co

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 w

e
 o

ffe
r.
 

E
xa

m
in

in
g 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n
 a

n
d
 t

ak
in

g 
a 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
an

d
 in

fo
rm

e
d
 

ap
p
ro

ac
h
 t

o
 fu

tu
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 n
e
e
d
s 

to
 b

e
 a

 k
e
y 

ac
tio

n
 o

f t
h
is

 s
tr

at
e
gy

.

T
h
e
 d

at
a 

o
n
 u

se
 o

f s
u
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 a

ga
in

 
o

ffe
rs

 a
n
 in

va
lu

ab
le

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
p
o

in
t 

fo
r 

u
s 

to
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

th
e
 im

p
ac

ts
 o

f a
n
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

w
e
 in

tr
o

d
u
ce

. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 

gr
e
at

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f p

o
si

tiv
e
s 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 in

 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

o
u
r 

p
ar

tn
e
rs

 a
re

 a
ch

ie
vi

n
g 

w
ith

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

.

Page 62



Page 63



5
. 
G

o
o

d
 P

ra
ct

ic
e
 a

n
d

 

C
as

e
 S

tu
d

ie
s 

  
 

5
.1

. 
G

o
o

d
 P

ra
ct

ic
e

T
h
is

 s
tr

at
e
gy

 h
as

 s
o

u
gh

t 
to

 a
p
p
ly

 m
an

y 
o

f t
h
e
 p

ri
n
ci

p
le

s 
se

t 
o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 

Jo
in

t 
G

u
id

an
ce

 is
su

e
d
 b

y 
D

e
p
ar

tm
e
n
t 

fo
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n
iti

e
s 

an
d
 L

o
ca

l 
G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 

an
d
 t

h
e
 D

e
p
ar

tm
e
n
t 

o
f C

h
ild

re
n
, 

Sc
h
o

o
ls

 a
n
d
 F

am
ili

e
s 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
n
d
 t

ac
kl

in
g 

its
 e

ffe
ct

s 
o

n
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

’.

W
e
 h

av
e
 a

ls
o

 s
o

u
gh

t 
to

 a
d
o

p
t 

e
xa

m
p
le

s 
o

f b
e
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 fr

o
m

 o
u
r 

co
lle

ag
u
e
s 

ar
o

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y.
 W

e
 h

av
e
 w

o
rk

e
d
 c

lo
se

ly
 w

ith
 N

o
rt

h
 

Yo
rk

sh
ir

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
ci

l a
n
d
 h

av
e
 s

e
e
n
 fi

rs
t 

h
an

d
 t

h
e
 b

e
n
e
fit

s 
o

f 
ad

o
p
tin

g 
a 

jo
in

e
d
 u

p
 w

o
rk

in
g 

m
o

d
e
l. 

W
e
 h

av
e
 a

ls
o

 t
ak

e
n
 e

xa
m

p
le

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 s

tr
at

e
gi

e
s 

o
f c

o
lle

ag
u
e
s 

n
at

io
n
al

ly
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir

 jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
e
n
ts

.

5
.2

. 
C

as
e
 S

tu
d

ie
s

H
e
re

 w
e
 h

av
e
 t

ak
e
n
 t

w
o

 o
f t

h
e
 c

as
e
s 

th
at

 h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 

at
 t

h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 M
an

ag
e
m

e
n
t 

Pa
n
e
ls

 w
h
ic

h
 h

av
e
 b

e
e
n
 

in
tr

o
d
u
ce

d
 r

e
ce

n
tly

 a
n
d
 a

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

b
o

ve
.

T
h
e
se

 c
as

e
s 

d
e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

 v
e
ry

 c
le

ar
ly

 o
u
r 

cu
rr

e
n
t 

le
ve

l o
f j

o
in

t 
w

o
rk

-
in

g 
an

d
 h

o
w

 w
e
 in

te
n
d
 t

o
 u

se
 c

as
e
 s

tu
d
ie

s 
an

d
 t

h
e
 e

xp
e
ri

e
n
ce

s 
o

f 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 in
fo

rm
 d

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

an
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

.

Page 64



5
.2

.1
. 
M

r 
B

M
r 

B
 h

as
 n

o
 h

e
al

th
 p

ro
b
le

m
 a

n
d
 n

o
 le

ar
n
in

g 
d
iffi

cu
lti

e
s.

 H
e
 h

as
 b

e
e
n
 

su
sp

e
n
d
e
d
 fr

o
m

 s
ch

o
o

l a
s 

h
e
 h

as
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 e

n
ga

gi
n
g.

 C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

h
ad

 c
o

n
si

d
e
ra

b
le

 in
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t 

w
ith

 M
r 

B
 r

e
ce

n
tly

. 
H

e
 h

ad
 

b
e
e
n
 li

vi
n
g 

w
ith

 h
is

 m
o

th
e
r 

an
d
 w

as
 r

e
m

o
ve

d
 b

y 
Po

lic
e
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

an
 a

ss
au

lt 
o

n
 h

is
 m

o
th

e
r’

s 
p
ar

tn
e
r 

an
d
 w

as
 n

o
t 

p
e
rm

itt
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
tu

rn
. 

M
r 

B
’s

 fa
th

e
r 

liv
e
s 

n
e
ar

 L
o

n
d
o

n
. 

Fa
m

ily
 G

ro
u
p
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
ci

n
g 

w
as

 
at

te
m

p
te

d
 b

u
t 

re
fu

se
d
 b

y 
M

r 
B

’s
 m

o
th

e
r.

M
r 

B
 w

e
n
t 

in
to

 a
 p

ri
va

te
 fo

st
e
ri

n
g 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 la

st
e
d
 u

n
til

 h
e
 

tu
rn

e
d
 1

6
. 

 H
e
 m

o
ve

d
 in

to
 S

u
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 a

s 
h
e
 d

id
 

n
o

t 
w

an
t 

to
 s

ta
y 

w
ith

 fo
st

e
r 

p
ar

e
n
ts

 a
n
y 

m
o

re
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir

 
ci

rc
u
m

st
an

ce
s 

ch
an

ge
d
.

A
ft
e
r 

a 
re

la
tiv

e
ly

 s
h
o

rt
 p

e
ri

o
d
 M

r 
B

 w
as

 g
iv

e
n
 n

o
tic

e
 t

o
 le

av
e
 t

h
e
 

Su
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
. 

H
e
 a

p
p
ro

ac
h
e
d
 t

h
e
 lo

ca
l H

o
u
si

n
g 

O
p
tio

n
s 

Te
am

 fo
r 

h
e
lp

 a
n
d
 s

ta
te

d
 t

h
at

 h
e
 h

ad
 b

e
e
n
 e

vi
ct

e
d
 fr

o
m

 h
is

 
Su

p
p
o

rt
e
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 fo

r 
re

p
e
at

e
d
ly

 b
re

ak
in

g 
th

e
 r

u
le

s.
 H

e
 

h
ad

 b
e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 a

 n
o

tic
e
 t

h
at

 d
ay

 t
o

 le
av

e
 t

h
e
 s

am
e
 a

ft
e
rn

o
o

n
. 

T
h
e
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
d
vi

so
r 

co
n
ta

ct
e
d
 t

h
e
 S

u
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 

P
ro

vi
d
e
r 

w
h
o

 s
ta

te
d
 t

h
at

 h
e
 h

as
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
fu

si
n
g 

to
 e

n
ga

ge
 fo

r 
at

 le
as

t 
a 

fe
w

 w
e
e
ks

. 
 M

r 
B

 h
as

 h
ad

 n
u
m

e
ro

u
s 

w
ar

n
in

gs
 a

n
d
 r

e
fu

se
s 

to
 c

ar
ry

 
o

u
t 

ch
o

re
s 

re
q
u
ir

e
d
. 

 M
r 

B
 h

as
 b

e
e
n
 r

u
d
e
 t

o
 s

ta
ff,

 b
re

ak
s 

h
o

u
se

 
ru

le
s 

an
d
 p

la
ys

 m
u
si

c 
lo

u
d
 a

t 
n
ig

h
t.

  
M

r 
B

 w
as

 is
su

e
d
 a

 la
st

 w
ar

n
in

g 
o

n
 F

ri
d
ay

 a
t 

1
0

:3
0

p
m

. 
St

at
e
s 

h
e
 w

as
 a

d
vi

se
d
 o

n
 F

ri
d
ay

 n
ig

h
t 

th
at

 h
e
 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 a

sk
e
d
 t

o
 le

av
e
 o

n
 M

o
n
d
ay

.

M
r 

B
 a

d
vi

se
d
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
d
vi

so
r 

th
at

 h
e
 h

ad
 a

 fr
ie

n
d
 h

e
 c

o
u
ld

 
st

ay
 w

ith
 t

h
at

 n
ig

h
t;

 h
o

w
e
ve

r 
th

e
 A

d
vi

so
r 

kn
e
w

 t
h
e
 fr

ie
n
d
 a

n
d
 h

ad
 

co
n
ce

rn
s 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e
 s

u
ita

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

is
ks

 t
h
at

 m
ay

 b
e
 p

o
se

d
 t

o
 

M
r 

B
.

T
h
e
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
d
vi

so
r 

m
ad

e
 s

e
ve

ra
l u

n
su

cc
e
ss

fu
l a

tt
e
m

p
ts

 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 

lo
ca

l C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

Fa
m

ily
 A

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
t 

an
d
 S

u
p
p
o

rt
 T

e
am

, 
e
ve

n
tu

al
ly

 c
o

n
ta

ct
in

g 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr

al
 C

o
n
ta

ct
 C

e
n
tr

e
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 

ad
vi

so
r 

st
at

e
d
 t

h
at

 a
s 

h
e
 h

ad
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 t

h
at

 e
ve

n
in

g 
w

ith
 a

 
fr

ie
n
d
 h

e
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o

t 
b
e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
re

d
 a

n
 u

rg
e
n
t 

ca
se

 b
u
t 

a 
re

fe
rr

al
 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 m

ad
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 lo

ca
l t

e
am

.

T
h
e
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

d
ay

 a
 S

o
ci

al
 W

o
rk

e
r 

ca
lle

d
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
d
vi

so
r 

an
d
 

re
q
u
e
st

e
d
 a

 J
o

in
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

b
e
 c

ar
ri

e
d
 o

u
t 

th
at

 d
ay

. 
T

h
e
 

Jo
in

t 
A

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
t 

w
as

 c
ar

ri
e
d
 o

u
t 

at
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

O
ffi

ce
 w

ith
 a

 S
o

ci
al

 
W

o
rk

e
r,
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
d
vi

so
r 

an
d
 M

r 
B

 p
re

se
n
t.

 M
r 

B
 w

as
 v

e
ry

 d
iffi

cu
lt 

an
d
 e

va
si

ve
 t

h
ro

u
gh

o
u
t.

 H
e
 w

as
 o

ffe
re

d
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 in

 
fo

st
e
ri

n
g,

 n
ig

h
ts

to
p
, 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
cy

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 o

r 
w

ith
 fr

ie
n
d
s/

fa
m

ily
. 

M
r 

B
 r

e
fu

se
d
 a

ll 
st

at
in

g 
h
e
 o

n
ly

 w
an

te
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

re
n
tin

g 
a 

ro
o

m
 in

 a
 s

h
ar

e
d
 h

o
u
se

.

T
h
e
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
d
vi

so
r 

d
is

cu
ss

e
d
 r

e
n
tin

g 
a 

ro
o

m
 

an
d
 g

av
e
 a

d
vi

ce
 o

n
 c

la
im

in
g 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

B
e
n
e
fit

, 
h
is

 
m

ax
im

u
m

 e
n
tit

le
m

e
n
t 

an
d
 h

o
w

 h
e
 m

ig
h
t 

go
 a

b
o

u
t 

fin
d
in

g 
o

n
e
. 

M
r 

B
 w

as
 a

d
vi

se
d
 o

f t
h
e
 a

ss
is

ta
n
ce

 h
e
 

co
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 g

e
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e
 C

iti
ze

n’
s 

A
d
vi

ce
 B

u
re

au
. 

W
h
e
n
 M

r 
B

 w
as

 a
d
vi

se
d
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 m

ak
e
 a

 
co

n
tr

ib
u
tio

n
 t

o
w

ar
d
s 

h
is

 r
e
n
t 

if 
re

n
tin

g 
fr

o
m

 a
 

p
ri

va
te

 la
n
d
lo

rd
 h

e
 w

as
 c

o
n
ce

rn
e
d
 a

s 
to

 h
o

w
 h

e
 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 r
u
n
 h

is
 m

o
to

rb
ik

e
. 

M
r 

B
 a

ls
o

 s
ta

te
d
 

h
e
 h

ad
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 w

o
rk

in
g 

as
 a

 la
b
o

u
re

r 
an

d
 w

as
 

ad
vi

se
d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 a
ffe

ct
 h

is
 H

B
 c

la
im

.

W
h
at

 c
an

 w
e
 le

ar
n
?

T
h
e
 fi

rs
t 

is
su

e
 t

o
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

is
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
re

 w
as

 a
n
 

o
p
p
o

rt
u
n
ity

 fo
r 

th
e
 A

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 P

ro
vi

d
e
r 

an
d
 

e
ith

e
r 

th
e
 H

o
m

e
le

ss
 o

r 
C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

Te
am

 
to

 h
av

e
 w

o
rk

e
d
 t

o
ge

th
e
r 

so
o

n
e
r 

b
e
fo

re
 M

r 
B

 lo
st

 
h
is

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
. 

M
r 

B
 w

an
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

re
n
tin

g 
a 

ro
o

m
 in

 a
 s

h
ar

e
d
 h

o
u
se

 w
h
ic

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

m
ay

 h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 a

b
le

 t
o

 h
e
lp

 fa
ci

lit
at

e
 in

 a
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 

an
d
 p

o
si

tiv
e
 w

ay
. 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e
ly

, 
M

r 
B

 c
o

u
ld

 h
av

e
 

b
e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

at
e
 a

d
vi

ce
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 h

is
 h

o
u
si

n
g 

o
p
tio

n
s,

 o
r 

la
ck

 o
f, 

an
d
 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
itu

at
io

n
, 

an
d
 t

o
 h

av
e
 h

e
lp

e
d
 h

im
 m

ak
e
 a

n
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 d

e
ci

si
o

n
. 

H
e
 is

 n
o

w
 li

ke
ly

 t
o

 fa
ce

 a
 

p
e
ri

o
d
 o

f h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

.

M
r 

B
 a

p
p
e
ar

s 
to

 b
e
 in

 n
e
e
d
 o

f c
o

n
si

d
e
ra

b
le

 
ad

d
iti

o
n
al

 s
u
p
p
o

rt
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

co
m

m
u
n
ic

at
io

n
 a

n
d
 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 t
e
am

s 
w

o
u
ld

 h
av

e
 

h
e
lp

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 h

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 

sl
ip

 t
h
ro

u
gh

 t
h
e
 n

e
t.

Page 65



5
.2

.2
. 
M

is
s 

P

M
is

s 
P
 is

 c
u
rr

e
n
tly

 N
E
E
T

 (
N

o
t 

in
 E

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

E
d
u
ca

tio
n
 o

r 
Tr

ai
n
in

g)
 

an
d
 h

as
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
ce

iv
in

g 
o

n
-g

o
in

g 
su

p
p
o

rt
 fr

o
m

 B
ar

n
ar

d
o

s 
th

ro
u
gh

 
th

e
ir

 B
E
E
T

 (
B

an
ar

d
o

s 
E
d
u
ca

tio
n
 E

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

Tr
ai

n
in

g)
 T

e
am

. 
M

is
s 

P
 w

as
 n

o
t 

p
re

vi
o

u
sl

y 
kn

o
w

n
 t

o
 C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

o
r 

th
e
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

Te
am

.

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
a 

b
ig

 a
rg

u
m

e
n
t 

w
ith

 h
e
r 

p
ar

e
n
t 

an
d
 s

ib
lin

g,
 M

is
s 

P
 w

as
 

th
ro

w
n
 o

u
t 

o
f t

h
e
 fa

m
ily

 h
o

m
e
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

al
lo

w
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
tu

rn
. 

T
h
e
 

ar
gu

m
e
n
t 

h
ad

 w
ar

ra
n
te

d
 P

o
lic

e
 in

vo
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

an
d
 t

h
e
y 

h
ad

 r
e
m

o
ve

d
 

M
is

s 
P
 fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y.

M
is

s 
P
 s

ta
te

d
 s

h
e
 w

as
 d

ro
p
p
e
d
 o

ff 
at

 S
ai

n
sb

u
ry

’s
 c

ar
 p

ar
k 

b
y 

th
e

 P
o

lic
e
 a

n
d
 a

d
vi

se
d
 t

o
 a

rr
an

ge
 h

e
r 

o
w

n
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 a

n
d
 t

o
 

re
tu

rn
 t

o
 h

e
r 

p
ar

e
n
t’
s 

h
o

u
se

 in
 t

h
e
 m

o
rn

in
g.

 M
is

s 
P
 d

id
 n

o
t 

h
av

e
 

an
yw

h
e
re

 t
o

 s
ta

y 
an

d
 r

an
g 

h
e
r 

B
ar

n
ar

d
o

s 
Su

p
p
o

rt
 W

o
rk

e
r 

w
h
o

 r
an

g 
M

is
s 

P
’s

 m
o

th
e
r 

an
d
 t

ri
e
d
 t

o
 m

e
d
ia

te
 a

n
d
 n

e
go

tia
te

 a
 r

e
tu

rn
. 

T
h
is

 
w

o
rk

 fa
ile

d
 a

n
d
 M

is
s 

P
 r

an
g 

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

o
u
t 

o
f h

o
u
rs

 
E
m

e
rg

e
n
cy

 D
u
ty

 T
e
am

 (
E
D

T
).

 T
h
e
 E

D
T

 w
o

rk
e
r 

ad
vi

se
d
 M

is
s 

P
 a

n
d
 

h
e
r 

B
ar

n
ar

d
o

s 
w

o
rk

e
r 

th
at

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o

t 
b
e
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d
.

T
h
e
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

d
ay

 M
is

s 
P
 a

p
p
ro

ac
h
e
d
 h

e
r 

lo
ca

l H
o

u
si

n
g 

O
p
tio

n
s 

Te
am

 w
ith

 h
e
r 

B
an

ar
d
o

s 
Su

p
p
o

rt
 W

o
rk

e
r.
 T

h
e
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

O
p
tio

n
s 

A
d
vi

so
r 

w
ro

n
gl

y 
th

o
u
gh

t 
th

at
 M

is
s 

P
 w

as
 a

 c
ar

e
 le

av
e
r 

an
d
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 

th
e
m

 t
o

 C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s.

 W
h
e
n
 t

h
is

 m
is

ta
ke

 w
as

 la
te

r 
p
o

in
te

d
 o

u
t 

th
e
 T

e
am

 a
gr

e
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
ce

iv
e
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

ac
h
 fr

o
m

 M
is

s 
P
 fo

r 
as

si
st

an
ce

 
an

d
 n

o
tifi

e
d
 t

h
e
ir

 o
u
t 

o
f h

o
u
rs

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 (

b
e
ca

u
se

 t
h
e
ir

 o
ffi

ce
s 

w
e
re

 
ab

o
u
t 

to
 c

lo
se

) 
sh

o
u
ld

 M
is

s 
P
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
.

M
e
an

w
h
ile

 M
is

s 
P
 a

n
d
 h

e
r 

Su
p
p
o

rt
 W

o
rk

e
r 

h
ad

 a
tt

e
n
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

lo
ca

l o
ffi

ce
 t

o
 a

p
p
ro

ac
h
 fo

r 
as

si
st

an
ce

. 
T

h
e
 

re
ce

p
tio

n
 r

e
fu

se
d
 t

h
is

 a
p
p
ro

ac
h
 a

n
d
 in

si
st

e
d
 t

h
at

 M
is

s 
P
 r

e
fe

r 
h
e
rs

e
lf 

th
ro

u
gh

 t
h
e
 C

o
n
ta

ct
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 

M
is

s 
P
 w

as
 n

o
t 

as
si

st
e
d
 in

 m
ak

in
g 

th
is

 
se

lf 
re

fe
rr

al
 a

n
d
 le

ft
.

W
h
e
n
 M

is
s 

P
 c

al
le

d
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
ta

ct
 C

e
n
tr

e
 s

h
e
 w

as
 t

o
ld

 t
h
e
 c

as
e
 w

o
u
ld

 
b
e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 t
o

 t
h
e
 lo

ca
lit

y 
te

am
 b

u
t 

w
as

 n
o

t 
to

ld
 w

h
e
n
, 

if 
it 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 t

h
at

 d
ay

 o
r 

if 
sh

e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d
 w

ith
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 

th
at

 n
ig

h
t.

M
is

s 
P
 r

e
ce

iv
e
d
 a

 c
al

l f
ro

m
 C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

la
te

r 
th

at
 a

ft
e
rn

o
o

n
. 

T
h
e
 S

o
ci

al
 W

o
rk

e
r 

co
n
ta

ct
e
d
 M

is
s 

P
’s

 m
o

th
e
r 

an
d
 m

an
ag

e
d
 t

o
 a

rr
an

ge
 fo

r 
h
e
r 

to
 r

e
tu

rn
 h

o
m

e
. 

M
is

s 
P
 r

e
fu

se
d
 t

o
 r

e
tu

rn
 h

o
m

e
 

ci
tin

g 
ri

sk
 o

f v
io

le
n
ce

 fr
o

m
 h

e
r 

b
ro

th
e
r 

an
d
 r

an
 a

w
ay

. 
M

is
s 

P
’s

 
m

o
th

e
r 

la
te

r 
sp

o
ke

 w
ith

 B
an

ar
d
o

s 
b
e
ca

u
se

 s
h
e
 w

as
 c

o
n
ce

rn
e
d
 fo

r 
M

is
s 

P
’s

 w
h
e
re

ab
o

u
ts

 a
n
d
 w

as
 a

d
vi

se
d
 t

o
 r

e
p
o

rt
 h

e
r 

as
 m

is
si

n
g.

 
La

te
r 

th
at

 e
ve

n
in

g 
th

e
 P

o
lic

e
 p

ic
ke

d
 M

is
s 

P
 u

p
 a

n
d
 t

o
o

k 
h
e
r 

h
o

m
e
.

B
an

ar
d
o

s 
ar

e
 p

u
tt

in
g 

a 
T
A

C
 t

o
ge

th
e
r 

fo
r 

M
is

s 
P.

 T
h
e
 

B
an

ar
d
o

s 
W

o
rk

e
r 

st
at

e
d
 t

h
at

 a
lth

o
u
gh

 t
h
e
y 

ac
h
ie

ve
d
 

so
m

e
 p

o
si

tiv
e
s 

w
ith

 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
, 

th
e
y 

fo
u
n
d
 it

 d
iffi

cu
lt 

an
d
 t

im
e
 c

o
n
su

m
in

g 
to

 n
av

ig
at

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

an
d
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

ve
ry

 c
o

n
ce

rn
e
d
 fo

r 
a 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
rs

o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
ir

 o
w

n
.

W
h
at

 c
an

 w
e
 le

ar
n
?

T
h
is

 c
as

e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
ts

 t
h
e
 r

is
ks

 o
f f

ai
lin

g 
to

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s 

o
f y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 if
 w

e
 d

o
n’

t 
ge

t 
it 

ri
gh

t 
fir

st
 t

im
e
 w

h
e
n
 

a 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
rs

o
n
 a

p
p
ro

ac
h
e
s 

o
u
r 

se
rv

ic
e
s.

 I
t 

is
 fo

rt
u
n
at

e
 

in
 t

h
is

 c
as

e
 t

h
at

 M
is

s 
P
 h

ad
 a

d
d
iti

o
n
al

 s
u
p
p
o

rt
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 

h
e
lp

 h
e
r 

ac
ce

ss
 t

h
e
 a

d
vi

ce
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 s

h
e
 n

e
e
d
e
d
. 

T
h
e
re

 is
 a

n
 o

n
-g

o
in

g 
n
e
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
 w

ith
 o

u
r 

te
am

s 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

tie
s 

w
e
 h

av
e
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 w
e
 n

e
e
d
 

to
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
m

. 
It
 is

 a
ls

o
 im

p
o

rt
an

t 
fo

r 
u
s 

to
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

th
e
 

e
as

e
 w

ith
 w

h
ic

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

ca
n
 b

e
 a

cc
e
ss

e
d
, 

n
o

t 
ju

st
 fo

r 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 b
u
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g 
o

f o
u
r 

p
ar

tn
e
rs

 
al

so
.

Page 66



Page 67



6
.1

. 
D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g 

Se
rv

ic
e
s 

al
o

n
g 

th
e
 Y

o
u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

P
at

h
w

ay
T

h
is

 d
ia

gr
am

 d
e
ta

ils
 t

h
e
 s

ta
ge

s 
o

f t
h
e
 P

at
h
w

ay
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 o

f t
h
e
 m

ai
n
 

ac
tio

n
s 

w
e
 h

o
p
e
 t

o
 im

p
le

m
e
n
t 

to
 h

e
lp

 u
s 

ac
h
ie

ve
 im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 in
 

th
at

 a
re

a.

 6
. 
T

h
e
 W

ay
 F

o
rw

ar
d

Page 68



6
.2

. 
K

e
y 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e
s 

 
O

u
r 

K
e
y 

o
b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

fo
llo

w
 t

h
e
 h

e
ad

in
gs

 o
f t

h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

Pa
th

-
w

ay
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

b
o

ve
, 

w
ith

 a
 p

re
ce

d
in

g 
o

b
je

ct
iv

e
 t

h
at

 a
im

s 
to

 e
n
su

re
 

yo
u
th

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 is
 a

d
d
re

ss
e
d
 b

y 
al

l p
ar

tn
e
rs

 in
 a

 jo
in

e
d
 u

p
 a

n
d
 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
w

ay
.

T
h
e
 A

ct
io

n
s 

u
n
d
e
r 

e
ac

h
 o

b
je

ct
iv

e
 in

co
rp

o
ra

te
 t

h
e
 fi

n
d
in

gs
 o

f t
h
e
 

-
e
n
ce

s 
an

d
 c

as
e
 s

tu
d
ie

s.
 

 
 

 
 

6
.2

.1
. 
O

b
je

ct
iv

e
 A

: 
U

n
d

e
rp

in
n
in

g 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

E
n
su

re
 Y

o
u
th

 H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 is
 a

d
d
re

ss
e
d
 in

 a
 jo

in
e
d
 u

p
 a

n
d
 s

tr
at

e
gi

c 
w

ay

G
at

e
w

ay
 fo

r 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 s
e
e
ki

n
g 

to
 g

e
t 

h
e
lp

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 w

ith
 

h
o

u
si

n
g 

an
d
 h

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
ill

 s
u
p
p
o

rt
 a

d
d
iti

o
n
al

 a
c-

tio
n
s 

o
f d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g 

e
ffe

ct
iv

e
 m

e
d
ia

tio
n
 a

n
d
 p

re
ve

n
tio

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

an
d
 

o
f e

n
su

ri
n
g 

b
e
st

 u
se

 o
f t

h
e
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 t

h
at

 L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

tie
s 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
.

p
ar

tn
e
rs

 t
o

 a
id

 m
o

n
ito

ri
n
g 

o
f i

m
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 fu

rt
h
e
r 

ta
rg

e
tin

g 
o

f 
re

so
u
rc

e
s.

-
n
e
rs

.

m
an

ag
e
rs

 m
e
e
tin

gs
.

E
n
su

re
 e

ar
ly

 in
te

rv
e
n
tio

n
s 

ar
e
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 e

d
u
ca

te
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 o
n
 

h
o

u
si

n
g 

an
d
 h

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
n
d
 t

o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
t 

ri
sk

 o
f 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
n
d
 e

n
su

re
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

at
e
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 c

an
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n

th
ro

u
gh

 t
h
e
at

re
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

sh
o

p
s.

ri
sk

 o
f b

e
co

m
in

g 
h
o

m
e
le

ss
 in

 t
h
e
 fu

tu
re

 t
o

 h
e
lp

 w
ith

 t
ar

ge
tin

g 
e
ar

ly
 

in
te

rv
e
n
tio

n
 a

n
d
 p

re
ve

n
tio

n
.

-
e
rs

 t
h
ro

u
gh

 p
ro

vi
d
in

g 
cl

ar
ity

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
si

st
e
n
cy

 in
 o

u
r 

p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

an
d
 b

y 
e
ffe

ct
iv

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

at
io

n
.

6
.2

.3
. 
O

b
je

ct
iv

e
 C

: 
P

re
ve

n
ti

o
n
 a

t 
th

e
 P

o
in

t 
o

f 
C

ri
si

s

E
n
su

re
 c

o
n
si

st
e
n
t 

an
d
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e
 p

re
ve

n
tio

n
 a

n
d
 

m
e
d
ia

tio
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

ar
e
 in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
t 

th
e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f c
ri

si
s,

 t
o

 e
n
su

re
 t

h
e
 m

ax
im

u
m

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 a
ss

is
te

d
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
m

ai
n
 

w
ith

in
 fa

m
ily

 a
n
d
 k

in
sh

ip
 a

rr
an

ge
m

e
n
ts

.

 
o

f M
e
d
ia

tio
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s.

 
P
ro

to
co

l a
n
d
 P

ra
ct

ic
e
 G

u
id

an
ce

, 
th

at
 t

h
e
y 

 
 

ar
e
 fi

t 
fo

r 
p
u
rp

o
se

 a
n
d
 t

h
at

 t
h
at

 t
h
e
y 

ar
e

 
co

n
si

st
e
n
tly

 im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

.

 
av

ai
la

b
le

 t
o

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

.

Page 69



6
.2

.4
. 
O

b
je

ct
iv

e
 D

: 
Su

p
p

o
rt

 a
n
d

 S
ta

b
ili

sa
ti

o
n

E
n
su

re
 t

h
e
re

 is
 s

u
ffi

ci
e
n
t 

ac
co

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 

cu
rr

e
n
t 

le
ve

l o
f d

e
m

an
d
 fr

o
m

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
at

 t
h
e
re

 
is

 s
u
ffi

ci
e
n
t 

d
iv

e
rs

ity
 in

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

in
d
iv

id
u
al

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

s 
n
e
e
d
s.

 
ac

co
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 fo

r 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h
e
re

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

   
 

ca
n
n
o

t 
b
e
 p

re
ve

n
te

d
.

 
m

e
e
t 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

’s
 n

e
e
d
s.

 
Lo

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

tie
s 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
 b

y:
 d

e
ve

lo
p
in

g 
 

p
re

-e
vi

ct
io

n
 p

ro
to

co
ls

; 
m

o
n
ito

ri
n
g 

an
y 

re
fu

sa
ls

; 
an

d
 

 
d
e
ve

lo
p
in

g 
a 

si
n
gl

e
 a

cc
e
ss

 g
at

e
w

ay
 in

to
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
   

 
in

cl
u
d
in

g 
b
e
tt

e
r 

m
o

n
ito

ri
n
g 

o
f w

h
o

 is
 a

cc
e
ss

in
g 

th
e

 
ac

co
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
,h

o
w

 lo
n
g 

fo
r 

an
d
 w

h
at

 t
h
e
ir

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s 

  
 

ar
e
.

E
n
su

re
 t

h
e
re

 is
 s

u
ffi

ci
e
n
t 

lo
n
g 

te
rm

 s
o

lu
tio

n
s 

fo
r 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
h
at

 
h
av

e
 e

xp
e
ri

e
n
ce

d
 h

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
n
d
 fo

r 
C

ar
e
 L

e
av

e
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
at

 s
u
f-

fic
ie

n
t 

su
p
p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

ar
e
 in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 s
u
cc

e
e
d
.

 
tr

an
si

tio
n
 fr

o
m

 c
ar

e
.

 
ac

co
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
.

 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
ce

 a
n
d
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 c
o

n
fid

e
n
ce

 a
m

o
n
gs

t 
 

ac
co

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

.

 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
ce

.

6
.3

. 
O

b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

in
 P

ra
ct

ic
e
 –

 
T

h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

A
ct

io
n
 P

la
n
  

 
 

 

In
 t

h
e
 p

ag
e
s 

w
h
ic

h
 fo

llo
w

 w
e
 h

av
e
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

th
e
 a

ct
io

n
s 

w
e
 w

ill
 

ac
h
ie

ve
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f t

h
is

 s
tr

at
e
gy

.

Page 70



A
ct

io
n

m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e
 im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
at

e
gy

 A
ct

io
n
 

P
la

n
.

P
ro

vi
d

e
 r

e
gu

la
r 

p
ro

gr
e
ss

 r
e
p

o
rt

s 
to

:

A
2

 –
 H

o
ld

 L
o

ca
l Y

o
u
th

 H
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 M
an

ag
e
-

m
e
n
t 

M
e
e
ti

n
gs

 t
o

 e
n
su

re
 e

ff
e
ct

iv
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

at
io

n
 

an
d

 s
h
ar

in
g 

o
f 

b
e
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
.

A
3

 –
 D

e
ve

lo
p

 m
e
th

o
d

s 
fo

r 
o

n
-g

o
in

g 
d

at
a 

ca
p

tu
re

.

A
4

 –
 D

e
ve

lo
p

 a
n
d

 d
e
liv

e
r 

tr
ai

n
in

g 
to

 f
ro

n
tl

in
e
 s

ta
ff

A
5

 –
 C

ar
ry

 o
u
t 

re
vi

e
w

s 
o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u
si

n
g 

p
at

h
w

ay
 f

o
r 

sp
e
ci

fi
c 

vu
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p

s 
in

cl
u
d

in
g:

 

 
P

ro
b

le
m

s

 
P

ro
b

le
m

s.

A
6

 –
 C

ar
ry

 O
u
t 

C
o

n
su

lt
at

io
n
 w

it
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 U

se
rs

 
o

n
 t

h
e
 S

tr
at

e
gy

 a
n
d

 A
ct

io
n
 P

la
n
.

W
h
o

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

R
e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
ve

L
e
av

in
g 

C
ar

e
Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d

in
g

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

M
an

ag
e
r

F
A

ST
 M

an
ag

e
r

T
ar

ge
te

d
 T

e
am

 M
an

ag
e
r

L
C

C
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r
Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

Tr
ai

n
in

g 
P

ro
vi

d
e
r 

L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s

H
o

u
si

n
g 

P
ro

vi
d

e
rs

H
o

u
si

n
g 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

Te
am

s

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

C
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 D

is
ab

ili
ti

e
s 

Te
am

 M
an

ag
e
r

Te
e
n
ag

e
 P

re
gn

an
cy

 T
e
am

 M
an

ag
e
r

Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
e
 M

an
ag

e
r

L
e
av

in
g 

C
ar

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

an
ag

e
r

C
A

M
H

S

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th
A

cc
o

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
 P

ro
vi

d
e
rs

L
e
av

in
g 

C
ar

e

W
h
e
n

M
o

n
th

ly

M
o

n
th

ly

Se
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
3

D
e
ve

lo
p

 b
y 

Se
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
3

. 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
n
go

in
g.

Se
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
3

D
e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

M
ile

st
o

n
e

A
gr

e
e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 f

o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

ad
vi

ce
, 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n
 o

f 
ac

co
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 a

n
d

 u
se

 o
f 

ac
co

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
 t

h
e
n
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 t
ra

in
in

g 
in

cl
u
d

in
g 

th
is

 a
n
d

 l
e
gi

sl
at

iv
e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

.

R
e
vi

se
 a

n
d

 l
au

n
ch

 p
ro

to
co

l.

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 2
0

1
3

 –
 

2
0

1
8

 A
ct

io
n
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

A
ch

ie
vi

n
g 

O
u
r 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e
s

O
b

je
ct

iv
e
 A

  
- 

U
n
d

e
rp

in
n
in

g 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s

Page 71



A
ct

io
n

B
1

 –
 P

ro
vi

d
e
 e

ar
ly

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 

L
in

k
e
d

 a
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e
 H

o
m

e
le

ss
 

St
ra

te
gy

.

B
2

 –
 R

ai
se

 t
h
e
 s

k
ill

s 
an

d
 w

o
rk

in
g 

re
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 o

f 
fr

o
n
tl

in
e
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e
 o

f 
tr

ai
n
in

g,
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

in
g 

an
d

 s
h
ad

o
w

in
g.

B
3

 –
 P

ro
vi

d
e
 t

ra
in

in
g 

fo
r 

p
ar

tn
e
r 

ag
e
n
ci

e
s 

o
n
 

yo
u
th

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
n
d

 L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 p

ro
ce

ss
e
s

B
4

 –
 D

e
ve

lo
p

 m
e
th

o
d

s 
fo

r 
e
ar

ly
 id

e
n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
t 

ri
sk

 o
f 

h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

W
h
o

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

Te
am

s

F
A

ST
 M

an
ag

e
rs

T
ar

ge
te

d
 M

an
ag

e
rs

H
o

u
si

n
g 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

Te
am

 M
an

ag
e
rs

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

Jo
b

 C
e
n
tr

e
Sc

h
o

o
ls

Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
e
 M

an
ag

e
r

W
h
e
n

P
ro

d
u
ct

io
n
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

- 
D

e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

O
n
go

in
g 

w
it

h
 s

e
ss

io
n
s 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 b

i-
m

o
n
th

ly

D
e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

D
e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

M
ile

st
o

n
e

A
gr

e
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 d
e
liv

e
r 

fr
o

m
 

al
l 
p

ar
tn

e
rs

.

P
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

to
 b

e
 a

gr
e
e
d

 a
n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g 
to

 
b

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

.

to
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 
id

e
n
ti

fi
e
d

 a
s 

at
 r

is
k
.

d
is

cu
ss

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it

ie
s 

w
it

h
 p

ar
tn

e
r 

ag
e
n
ci

e
s

O
b

je
ct

iv
e
 C

: 
P

re
ve

n
ti

o
n
 a

t 
th

e
 P

o
in

t 
o

f 
C

ri
si

s

A
ct

io
n

ac
co

m
p

an
yi

n
g 

P
ra

ct
ic

e
 G

u
id

an
ce

 a
re

 f
u
lly

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d

 r
e
m

ai
n
 fi

t 
fo

r 
p

u
rp

o
se

.

C
2

. 
D

e
ve

lo
p

 a
 s

in
gl

e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 
ac

ce
ss

 f
o

r 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h
o

 n
e
e
d

 a
d

vi
ce

, 
p

re
ve

n
ti

o
n
 a

n
d

 
m

e
d

ia
ti

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s.

 

C
3

. 
D

e
ve

lo
p

 a
 m

e
d

ia
ti

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

it
s 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e
n
e
ss

.

C
4

. 
Im

p
ro

ve
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

va
ila

b
le

 t
o

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 
in

cl
u
d

in
g 

le
afl

e
ts

 a
n
d

 o
n
lin

e
 m

e
d

ia
.

at
 a

 lo
ca

lit
y 

le
ve

l.

C
6

. 
A

ll 
Y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h
o

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
cy

 
p

la
ce

m
e
n
t 

o
r 

ac
co

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 

al
lo

ca
te

d
 a

 k
e
y 

w
o

rk
e
r 

th
ro

u
gh

 f
am

ili
e
s 

w
o

rk
in

g 
to

ge
th

e
r.

W
h
o

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

Te
am

s
M

an
ag

e
m

e
n
t 

P
an

e
l

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th
Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

F
A

ST
 M

an
ag

e
rs

H
o

u
si

n
g 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

Te
am

 M
an

ag
e
rs

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

L
C

C
 I
n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 T

e
am

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

F
am

ili
e
s 

W
o

rk
in

g 
To

ge
th

e
r

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

W
h
e
n

Im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 r

e
vi

e
w

e
d

 
m

o
n
th

ly
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 
H

o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 M
an

ag
e
m

e
n
t 

P
an

e
l 
an

d
 fi

tn
e
ss

 r
e
vi

e
w

e
d

  
an

n
u
al

ly

A
u
gu

st
 2

0
1

3

O
n
go

in
g

D
e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

b
e
 a

va
ila

b
le

 in
 a

ll 
lo

ca
lit

ie
s 

b
y 

D
e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

O
n
go

in
g

M
ile

st
o

n
e

A
gr

e
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 f
ro

m
 k

e
y 

p
ar

tn
e
rs

Page 72



O
b

je
ct

iv
e
 D

: 
Su

p
p

o
rt

 a
n
d

 S
ta

b
ili

sa
ti

o
n

A
ct

io
n

ar
e
 b

e
in

g 
m

e
t 

w
it

h
 p

ar
ti

cu
la

r 
re

ga
rd

 t
o

 c
ap

ac
it

y,
 

va
ri

e
ty

 a
n
d

 m
e
e
ti

n
g 

va
ry

in
g 

su
p

p
o

rt
 n

e
e
d

s.
 

D
e
ve

lo
p

 A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 O

p
ti

o
n
s 

w
h
e
re

 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g 
th

e
 Y

o
u
th

 A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 

R
e
vi

e
w

. 
D

e
ve

lo
p

 a
 P

ro
cu

re
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 t

h
at

 e
n
su

re
s 

ac
co

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
 o

p
ti

o
n
s 

fo
r 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 
co

m
m

is
si

o
n
e
d

 in
 a

 c
o

o
rd

in
at

e
d

 a
n
d

 s
tr

at
e
gi

c 
w

ay
 

b
y 

L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 p

ar
tn

e
rs

.

o
f 

ac
co

m
m

o
d

at
io

n
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d

 f
o

r 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

. 
D

e
ve

lo
p

 s
ys

te
m

s 
fo

r 
jo

in
tl

y 
m

an
ag

in
g 

th
e
 

su
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 e

n
su

ri
n
g 

it
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d

s 
o

f 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

, 
is

 m
e
e
ti

n
g 

th
e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

st
at

u
to

ry
 p

ar
tn

e
rs

 a
n
d

 t
h
at

 
ac

co
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 a
re

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 in
 

d
e
liv

e
ri

n
g 

th
e
ir

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s.

 

D
3

. 
D

e
ve

lo
p

 a
 s

in
gl

e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 
ac

ce
ss

 f
o

r 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
cc

e
ss

in
g 

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 s

o
 p

la
ce

m
e
n
t 

ch
an

ge
 is

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e
ly

 m
an

ag
e
d

.

D
4

. 
A

gr
e
e
 f

u
n
d

in
g 

m
e
ch

an
is

m
 w

h
ic

h
 in

ce
n
ti

vi
se

s 
in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
ce

s 
an

d
 m

o
ve

 o
n
 o

f 
yo

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

.

W
h
o

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th
Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th
Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 P

ro
vi

d
e
rs

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th
Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

e
s

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th
Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

W
h
e
n

D
e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

D
e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

A
u
gu

st
 2

0
1

3

D
e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

M
ile

st
o

n
e

Id
e
n
ti

fy
 g

ap
s 

an
d

 d
e
ve

lo
p

 a
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
e
n
t 

P
la

n

M
e
e
t 

w
it

h
 p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 a
n
d

 A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

A
gr

e
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 f
ro

m
 k

e
y 

p
ar

tn
e
rs

 a
n
d

 m
e
th

o
d

 o
f 

d
e
liv

e
ry

Page 73



A
ct

io
n

an
d

 p
e
rm

an
e
n
t 

se
tt

le
d

 h
o

u
si

n
g 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

yo
u
n
g 

-
ge

n
cy

 A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
.

p
e
o

p
le

’s
 m

o
ve

-o
n
 o

p
ti

o
n
s 

an
d

 t
o

 im
p

ro
ve

 t
h
e
ir

 
ch

an
ce

s 
o

f 
su

cc
e
ss

fu
lly

 m
ai

n
ta

in
in

g 
a 

te
n
an

cy
. 

L
e
av

in
g 

C
ar

e
. 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

fo
r 

yo
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 li
vi

n
g 

in
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
tl

y.

W
h
o

A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

Y
o

u
th

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

L
e
av

in
g 

C
ar

e
 T

e
am

D
is

tr
ic

t 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

A
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s

A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
at

io
n
 P

ro
vi

d
e
rs

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
al

th

W
h
e
n

M
o

n
th

ly
 m

o
n
it

o
ri

n
g

D
e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

Se
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
3

 a
n
d

 r
e
vi

e
w

 
b

i-
an

n
u
al

ly

A
u
gu

st
 2

0
1

3

M
ile

st
o

n
e

D
e
ve

lo
p

 t
ra

in
in

g 
b

as
e
d

 o
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

w
o

rk
 b

e
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

lic
at

e
 

co
u
n
ty

w
id

e
.

Im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
H

o
u
si

n
g 

P
ro

to
co

l 
fr

o
m

 F
A

ST
 t

o
 L

A
C

.

Im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
Jo

in
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

P
ro

to
co

l 
fo

r 
C

ar
e
 L

e
av

e
rs

.

R
e
vi

e
w

 y
o

u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

’s
 a

cc
e
ss

 t
o

 
su

p
p

o
rt

 i
n
 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

liv
in

g.

6
.4

 P
ro

cu
re

m
e
n
t 

P
la

n

M
an

y 
as

p
e
ct

s 
o

f t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f t

h
is

 S
tr

at
e
gy

 a
n
d
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n
 in

vo
lv

e
 

lo
o

ki
n
g 

at
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

w
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tly

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n
 a

s 
Lo

ca
l 

A
u
th

o
ri

tie
s.

 I
t 

m
ay

 b
e
 t

h
at

 w
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
 n

e
w

 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 m

e
e
t 

an
y 

ga
p
s 

in
 p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 t

h
at

 w
e
 m

ay
 id

e
n
tif

y.
 I
t 

m
ay

 
al

so
 b

e
 t

h
at

 w
e
 c

o
n
si

d
e
r 

re
vi

e
w

in
g 

so
m

e
 o

f t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

th
at

 w
e
 

al
re

ad
y 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 w

e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

m
e
e
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s 

o
f y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

.

T
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f t

h
is

 s
tr

at
e
gy

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

e
t 

in
 p

ar
t 

th
ro

u
gh

 t
h
e
 

d
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f a

 P
ro

cu
re

m
e
n
t 

P
la

n
 t

h
at

 w
ill

 s
e
e
k 

to
 t

ak
e
 a

 s
tr

at
e
gi

c 
o

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s 

o
f y

o
u
n
g 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

w
e
 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
. 

T
h
e
 y

o
u
th

 h
o

m
e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 r
e
vi

e
w

 c
o

n
ta

in
e
d
 in

 t
h
is

 
St

ra
te

gy
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 k
e
y 

p
ar

t 
o

f i
n
fo

rm
in

g 
th

at
 p

la
n
.

T
h
e
 P

ro
cu

re
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 w

ill
 s

e
e
k 

w
h
e
re

ve
r 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 t

o
 p

u
ll 

to
ge

th
e
r 

d
iff

e
re

n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g 
st

re
am

s 
an

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

in
to

 a
 u

n
ifi

e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
o

rd
in

at
e
d
 

p
at

h
w

ay
 o

f y
o

u
th

 h
o

u
si

n
g 

se
rv

ic
e
s.

Page 74



Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



  
Policy and Scrutiny

Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Director of Children's Services 

Report to: Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee

Date: 26 July 2013 

Subject: 
Proposal to revoke the decision taken in May 2012 to 
expand Spalding Primary School 

Decision Reference:Key decision? No

Summary:  

This report invites the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee to 
consider a report on the proposal to revoke the decision taken in May 2012 to 
expand Spalding Primary School which is due to be considered by the 
Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health and Children’s Services on 9 August 
2013.  The views of the Scrutiny Committee will be reported to the Executive 
Councillor as part of her consideration of this item. 

Actions Required: 

(1) To consider the attached report and to determine whether the Committee 
supports the recommendation to the Executive Councillor for Adult Care, 
Health and Children’s Services set out in the report.   

(2) To agree any additional comments to be passed to the Executive 
Councillor for Adult Care, Health and Children’s Services in relation to 
this item. 

1. Background

The Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health and Children’s Services is due to 
consider the report on the proposal to revoke the decision taken in May 2012 to 
expand Spalding Primary School. The full report to the Executive Councillor is 
attached at Appendix 1 to this report. 

2. Conclusion

Following consideration of the attached report, the Committee is requested to 
consider whether it supports the recommendation in the report and whether it 
wishes to make any additional comments to the Executive Councillor for Adult 
Care, Health and Children’s Services. The Committee’s views will be reported to 
the Executive Councillor.   

Agenda Item 6

Page 77



3. Consultation 

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required

Not applicable 

4. Appendices

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix 1 Report and Appendices to the Executive Councillor for Adult 
Care, Health and Children’s Services on Proposal to revoke the 
decision taken in May 2012 to expand Spalding Primary School 

5. Background Papers 

No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 

This report was written by Michelle Andrews, who can be contacted on 01522 
553269 or Michelle.andrews@lincolnshire.gov.uk . 

Page 78



Page 1

Report Reference:
Executive/Executive Councillor

Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Director of Children's Services

Report to:
Councillor Mrs P A Bradwell, Executive Councillor for 
Adult Care, Health and Children's Services

Date: 09 August 2013

Subject:
Proposal to revoke the expansion of Spalding Primary 
School

Decision Reference: 1004777

Key decision? Yes

Summary: 

The proposal under consideration is for the Local Authority (LA) to be relieved 
of the duty to implement the statutory expansion proposal that was published on 
2 February 2012. The proposal was to expand Spalding Primary School from 
420 to 630 places with an increase in the Published Admission Number (PAN) 
from 60 to 90. That proposal was approved in May 2012 to come into effect 
from 1 September 2013. The revocation proposal under consideration in this 
report would result in the capacity remaining at 420 from 1 September 2013.

As the circumstances have substantially altered since the original expansion 
proposals were approved, it is considered inappropriate to continue with 
implementation of the expansion.

The planning application for the LA’s preferred option to expand the existing 
buildings of Spalding Primary School was unsuccessful and therefore the 
expansion had to be pursued as a split site option via an annex to the school. 
An Ofsted inspection in September 2012 graded Spalding Primary School as 
‘Requires Improvement’. In January 2013 there was a change in leadership at 
the school. In March 2013 governors decided that it would be extremely 
challenging to manage a split site school expansion whilst continuing to provide 
a high standard of teaching and learning. They wish to concentrate their efforts 
on the successful progress being made under the new leadership and 
management arrangements introduced in January.

The LA must therefore follow the statutory process to revoke the expansion 
decision and look to expand capacity elsewhere within the locality to ensure that 
it meets its statutory duty of providing sufficient school places for the children of
Spalding.

The LA considers that the best available solution to address the expected 
shortage of primary school places in this area of Spalding is to revoke the 
expansion decision and build a new 1 form of entry (210 place) primary school
at Wygate Park.

Page 79



Page 2

To ensure that both the revocation and new school processes can be carried 
out within an acceptable and achievable time frame, and so that all legal 
requirements can be met, it has been necessary to run both processes 
simultaneously. The process under the Department for Education's (DfE) 
prescribed Academy Presumption guidelines to find an operator to run a new 
Academy on the site in Wygate Park commenced to run alongside the 
revocation process.

The paper reporting on the evaluation process for identifying a suitable operator 
for the new primary academy (‘Proposal for a new primary Academy in Spalding 
- submission to Secretary of State of results and evaluation of process to 
identify an operator’) is a separate paper.

The LA has co-ordinated the revocation process following statutory DfE 
guidelines (‘Expanding a Maintained Mainstream School by Enlargement or 
Adding a Sixth Form’) in accordance with the terms of the Education and 
Inspections Act (EIA) 2006 as updated by the Education Act 2011. The 
Revocation Notice (copy attached as Appendix A) was published on 9 May 
2013 which initiated a six week Representation Period up to 20 June 2013 
when written objections and comments may be submitted. The Complete 
Proposal (copy attached as Appendix B) to which the Revocation Notice refers 
was sent to interested parties as detailed in the statutory guidance and 
published on the Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) website at 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/provisionplanning. This was made available in both 
electronic and paper format.

The final decision regarding the revocation proposal must now be made and 
this report seeks to advise the Executive Councillor in accordance with statutory 
guidance.

The revocation proposal and statutory notice have not been published as 
related to any other statutory proposal as legally one is not dependant on the 
other; however, the process to find an operator for a new Academy in Spalding 
has been run in parallel to the statutory revocation process.

Recommendation(s):

That following the completion of the statutory process, in accordance with 
current legislation, the Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health and 
Children's Services is recommended to take the decision to approve the 
revocation of the expansion of Spalding Primary School with effect from 1 
September 2013 as detailed in this report.

Alternatives Considered:

1. To continue with the expansion of Spalding Primary School against the 
wishes of the Governing Body. Therefore the LA continues to work with 
Spalding Primary School in partnership with support through CfBT to 

Page 80



Page 3

successfully implement the expansion as a split site model with 1 form of 
entry (210 places) of accommodation built on the Wygate Park 
development.

Reasons for Recommendation:

• To enable the LA to pursue suitable alternative solutions to meet its 
statutory obligation to ensure that there are sufficient school places in Spalding 
for all children of statutory school age. 

•         The proposal will assist in meeting parental preference in that school 
places will be provided at a new school within the community of Wygate Park 
enabling local children to attend their local school and avoid having to take up a 
school place outside of their community. The Government has made it clear that 
the wishes of parents should be taken into account in planning and managing 
school estates. DfE guidance states that places should be allocated where 
parents want them. This will also help to avoid increased transport costs, the 
negative impact of extra travelling time on children and extra car usage which 
would be likely to follow if it were necessary for children to take up school 
places outside of their community.

• Officers have investigated the potential alternatives. Consideration was 
given to the local area, the existing schools and the increasing pressure on 
primary school places. The LA considers the proposal to revoke the expansion 
of Spalding Primary School and to build a new 1 form of entry primary Academy 
on Wygate Park to be the best available solution to meet the needs of the 
children and parents of Spalding with the resources available and to address 
the expected shortage of primary school places in the area.

• The interim leadership arrangements currently in place at Spalding 
Primary School are part of a two year temporary collaborative partnership with 
Pinchbeck East Church of England Primary School which is an "Outstanding" 
school with a strong Governing Body. The school is making excellent progress 
under these arrangements. There are currently no long term plans for this 
collaboration to continue beyond the two year period. If the proposal to expand 
is not revoked and the expansion continued then this could jeopardise the 
collaboration and support in place for Spalding Primary School.

1. Background

The LA has a statutory duty to ensure that there are sufficient primary school 
places in Spalding to accommodate the increasing pupil numbers in the community 
and to provide school places for all children of statutory school age in Lincolnshire 
within a reasonable distance from where they live.

The LA must follow the statutory process to revoke the expansion decision and 
look to expand capacity elsewhere within the locality to ensure that it meets its 
statutory duty. The LA considers that the best available solution to the expected 
shortage of primary school places in this area of Spalding is to build a new 1 form 

Page 81



Page 4

of entry (210 place) primary school and has commenced the process under the 
DfE's prescribed Academy Presumption guidelines to find an operator to run a new 
Academy on the site in Wygate Park.

The capacity at the school before the expansion proposal was 420 with a PAN of 
60. The expansion proposal was to increase the capacity to 630 with a PAN of 90. 
The school admitted above their usual intake in 2012 and will do so again for the 
intake in September 2013 by offering up to 90 places in Reception. The LA asked 
the school to offer above their PAN for these two intakes to ensure a sufficient 
number of primary school places to accommodate all pupils of a statutory school 
age whilst a permanent solution was put in place. As a result of the over offers in 
2012 and 2013 there will be two bulge years at Spalding Primary School. If the 
revocation is approved the LA will work with the school on accommodation 
solutions to manage these bulge years and to meet the needs of the local children, 
the school and the community. There will be no displaced pupils arising out of the 
revocation proposal or any negative impact on parental choice. The need for 
additional primary school places required in this area from September 2014 is now 
proposed to be met by a new primary Academy on Wygate Park.

The capital costs for building on the new Wygate Park site will be approximately 
the same whether this is for a new standalone school or a split site expansion. 
There may be additional capital costs required to manage the bulge years at 
Spalding Primary School that would be funded and delivered through the 
Children’s Services Capital Programme. There will be LA revenue support required 
for the start-up costs associated with establishing a new Academy instead of the 
support that would have been required for the phased expansion of an existing 
school. There will also be a cost to continue to hire the double mobile at Spalding 
Primary School if required, whilst an alternative solution is found.

The LA believes that this proposal is in the best interests of local children and local 
parents as well as educational provision in the area and it reinforces the priorities 
in the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP). The proposal will ensure that the 
provision of school places is planned so as to promote high educational standards, 
enable fair access to educational opportunity for every child and promote the 
fulfilment of each child's potential. This proposal will enable alternatives for the 
addition of capacity in the primary sector which will enhance the quality and 
sustainability of local provision. 

The decision to expand Spalding Primary School was formalised in May 2012 and 
as a result the PAN at the school for September 2014 has been published as 90. It 
will be necessary for the school (as a Foundation school), supported by the LA, to 
make an application to the Office of Schools Adjudicator to formally reduce and 
publish the PAN back to 60 for September 2014.

Reaching the decision – Preliminary Considerations

The requirements for decision making relating to the expansion of maintained 
mainstream schools, including revocation, are set out in the guide “Expanding a 
Maintained Mainstream School by Enlargement or Adding a Sixth Form” published 
by the DfE.

Page 82



Page 5

The guide sets out certain checks that the decision maker should follow before 
proceeding to take a decision.  These are addressed below:

(i) Is any information missing?  It is considered that there is no information 
missing and that the Executive Councillor has before her the information that 
is required to enable a decision to be reached.

(ii) Is the proposal related to other published proposals?  The answer to this is
no. However, the process to find an operator of a new Academy in 
Spalding will run in parallel to the statutory revocation process. 

(iii) Do the published notices comply with statutory requirements and has the 
statutory consultation been carried out prior to the publication of the notices? 
The Revocation Notice was published in accordance with paragraph 41 to 
Schedule 5 of The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to 
Maintained Schools)(England) Regulations 2007. In accordance with 
statutory requirements the notice was published in the local press, at the 
school gates and also within the community at the local library. There is no 
statutory requirement to consult on revocation prior to publishing a notice.

Factors to be considered by Decision Makers

In reaching a decision the Executive Councillor must have regard to the 
revocation process within the statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of State
(Expanding a Maintained Mainstream School by Enlargement or Adding a Sixth 
Form). This paper addresses all factors to be considered in accordance with the 
guidance. The Complete Proposal (attached as Appendix B) also includes 
information which must be considered together with any feedback from interested 
parties received throughout the entire process. However, no responses were 
received in the Representation Period following the publication of the Revocation 
Notice. To approve the revocation proposal the Executive Councillor must be 
satisfied that implementation of the original proposals would be unreasonably 
difficult or that circumstances have altered significantly enough since the original 
expansion proposals were approved so that their implementation would be 
inappropriate.

The LA must decide the revocation proposal within 2 months of the end of the 
Representation Period on 20 June 2013. If this decision is not taken by 20 
August 2013 it must be passed to the schools adjudicator.

The Decision

In considering the proposal the Executive Councillor can:-

reject the proposal

approve the proposal

approve the proposal with a modification (e.g. the implementation date) or

approve the proposal subject to meeting a specific condition

Page 83



Page 6

It is not recommended that the Executive Councillor lays down any specific 
conditions and therefore the ‘Alternatives Considered’ section at the start of this 
report simply deals with the rejection or approval of the proposal.  

Reasons must be given for the decision taken including the main factors and 
criteria whether the proposal is accepted or rejected.

2. Conclusion

A decision is required from the Executive Councillor to determine whether to 
approve the revocation of the expansion of Spalding Primary School as detailed in 
this report with an implementation date of 1 September 2013. The factors to 
consider in making this decision are within this report and all valid written 
responses received must be considered. However no responses have been 
received.

The LA believes this proposal to be in the best interests of local children and local 
parents as well as educational provision in the area and it supports the council’s 
aim of ensuring that as many children as possible can reach their full potential. It 
also supports the LA in fulfilling its statutory duty of ensuring that there are 
sufficient places to accommodate all pupils of statutory school age in Lincolnshire 
without providing an over-supply of school places.

It is recommended that approval be given to the revocation of the expansion of 
Spalding Primary School. The advantages of implementing this proposal are 
detailed earlier in this report in the ‘Reasons for Recommendations’ section.

3. Legal Comments:

The legal issues to be taken into account in the making of this decision, which is 
within the remit of the Executive Councillor, are fully set out within the report.

4. Resource Comments:

The revocation of the decision to expand Spalding Primary School with effect from 
1 September 2013 will likely require some funding from the capital programme to 
suitably accommodate the 2012 and 2013 intakes at Spalding Primary School.
Any on-going revenue costs will be funded from the Dedicated Schools Grant.

5. Consultation

Under current legislation the LA is the decision maker for the proposal and is co-
ordinating the statutory process before making a decision at the end of the process 
in August 2013. The LA must be able to show that all relevant issues raised are 
taken into consideration in the decision making process. Points raised can be 
considered unpersuasive but must not be ignored altogether. No responses were 
received during the Representation Period (from 9 May to 20 June 2013) following 
the publication of the Revocation Notice.

Page 84



Page 7

The Revocation Notice (copy attached as Appendix A) was published on 9 May 
2013 which initiated a six week Representation Period up to 20 June 2013 when 
written objections and comments may be submitted. The Complete Proposal (copy 
attached as Appendix B), available  in electronic and paper format, to which the 
Revocation Notice refers was sent to interested parties as detailed in the statutory 
guidance and published on the Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) website at 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/provisionplanning. In accordance with statutory 
requirements the notice was published in the local press, at the school gates and 
also within the community at the local library.

Information regarding this proposal has also been made available through the 
County Council website since the start of the revocation process on 9th May 2013 
and the Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health and Children's Services has 
been engaged throughout the entire process.

The last stage of the statutory process is the revocation of the decision to expand 
Spalding Primary School with effect from 1 September 2013 if approval is given by 
the Executive Councillor.

a)  Has Local Member Been Consulted?

Yes, the local member has been made aware of the proposal to revoke the 
expansion of Spalding Primary School.

b)  Has Executive Councillor Been Consulted?

Yes, the Executive Councillor has been involved in the discussions regarding the
proposal to revoke the expansion of Spalding Primary School.

c)  Scrutiny Comments

The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee considered the expansion 
proposal at its meeting on 26 July 2013. Comments from this meeting will be 
included here to inform the Executive Councillor when making her decision which 
is due to be taken on 9 August 2013.

d)  Policy Proofing Actions Required

An Impact Analysis has been completed. In summary this analysis indicates that 
the potential for any negative impact is virtually nil. There will be no displaced 
pupils arising out of the revocation proposal or any negative impact on parental 
preference. Although there will remain two bulge years at Spalding Primary 
School the LA will work with the school on accommodation solutions to manage 
these bulge years and ensure that the needs of the local children, the school and 
community will be met without any negative impact.  The revocation proposal will 
enable the Governing Body and the leadership of Spalding Primary School to 
concentrate their efforts on the collaborative partnership with Pinchbeck East 
Church of England Primary School and also enable the LA to pursue alternative 
solutions to meet its statutory obligation to ensure that there are sufficient school 
places in Spalding for all children of statutory school age.

Page 85



Page 8

Apart from its obligations to consider the statutory guidance referred to, the 
Council has obligations under the Equality Act 2010 which must be taken into 
account by the Executive Councillor when coming to a decision.  

The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to:

(1) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010; 

(2) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 

(3) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it: Equality Act 2010 s 149(1). The 
relevant protected characteristics are age; disability; gender reassignment; 
pregnancy & maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual orientation: s 149(7).

Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to take steps to meet the needs of persons 
who share a relevant protected characteristic that are different from the needs of 
persons who do not share it.

The Council believes that this proposal will not lead to any discrimination and that 
in recommending the proposal the Council is having due regard to its obligations 
under The Equality Act.

6. Appendices

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report

Appendix A Revocation Notice

Appendix B Complete Proposal

7. Background Papers

The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 
were relied upon in the writing of this report.

Document title Where the document can be viewed

Proposal to expand Spalding Primary 
School

Lincolnshire County Council Committee 
Records (Reference 01969) 01 May 2012

Expanding a Maintained Mainstream 
School by Enlargement or 
Adding a Sixth Form

http://www.education.gov.uk/schools/lead
ership/schoolorganisation/b0075166/othe
r-changes-to-a-school-and-expansions

Impact Analysis Available on request from the Property 
and Technology Management Team, 
Children’s Services

This report was written by Michelle Andrews, who can be contacted on 01522 
553269 or michelle.andrews@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 86



APPENDIX A 
 

 

Proposal to revoke the decision to expand the capacity at Spalding Primary 
School 
 
Notice is given in accordance with paragraph 41 to Schedule 5 of The School 
Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England) Regulations 
2007 that Lincolnshire County Council, County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YQ 
proposes to be relieved of the duty to implement the statutory proposal published on 
2 February 2012. 
 
This proposal was to expand the capacity at Spalding Primary School, Woolram 
Wygate, Spalding PE11 1PB from 420 to 630 with an increase in the Published 
Admission Number from 60 to 90, approved to come into effect from 1 September 
2013. 
 
The Local Authority proposes that a duty to implement the proposal should not apply 
because the planning application was turned down for an expansion to the existing 
buildings. The Governing Body of Spalding Primary School has decided that it would 
be extremely challenging to manage a split site school whilst continuing to provide a 
high standard of teaching and learning. Governors of the school wish to concentrate 
efforts on their successful progress under the new leadership and management 
arrangements. 
 
Within six weeks after the date of publication of this proposal, any person may object 
to or make comments on the proposal by sending their representations to Provision 
Planning, Children's Services, Lincolnshire County Council, County Offices, Newland, 
Lincoln LN1 1YQ or by emailing provisionplanning@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 
Signed:  Debbie Barnes 
Director of Children's Services 
 
Publication Date: 9 May 2013 
 
Notes   

 
1. In order to ensure that sufficient primary school places are available in this 

area of Spalding to meet future increasing demand the Local Authority will be 
looking to open a new 1 form of entry primary Academy on the Wygate Park 
site with a planned implementation date of 1 September 2014.  
 

2. The Local Authority has commenced the selection and evaluation process to 
find an operator for a new primary Academy on the Wygate Park site.  
 

  

Page 87



APPENDIX B 

  

 
 
 
 

Complete Proposal  
 

to Revoke the Expansion of  
 

Spalding Primary School 
 
 

PROPOSALS TO REVOKE THE DECISION TO IMPLEMENT A PRESCRIBED 
ALTERATION TO A SCHOOL 

 
 

 
Matters to be specified in accordance with Schedule 5 of The School Organisation 

(Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England) Regulations 2007 
 
 

 
 

9 MAY 2013 

Page 88



Page 1 

Contact details 

 
This proposal has been published by Lincolnshire County Council, County Offices, 
Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YQ regarding the revocation of the decision to expand 
Spalding Primary School, Woolram Wygate, Spalding PE11 1PB. 
 
Implementation 

 
The proposal is for the Local Authority (LA) to be relieved of the duty to implement 
the statutory proposal that was published on 2 February 2012. This proposal was to 
expand the capacity at Spalding Primary School from 420 to 630 places with an 
increase in the Published Admission Number (PAN) from 60 to 90 and was 
approved to come into effect from 1 September 2013. 
 
Objections and Comments 
 

Any person or organisation may object to or make comments on the proposal by 
sending them to Provision Planning, Children’s Services, Lincolnshire County 
Council, County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YQ or by emailing 
provisionplanning@lincolnshire.gov.uk to be received by the deadline of 20 June  
2013. 
 
Alteration description 
 

The proposal under consideration would result in the capacity reverting to 420 with a 
PAN of 60 with effect from 1 September 2013.  
 
School Capacity and Site 
 

The capacity at the school before the expansion proposal was 420 with a PAN of 60. 
The expansion proposal was to increase the capacity to 630 with a PAN of 90. The 
school admitted above their usual intake in 2012 and will do so also for the intake in 
September 2013 by offering up to 90 places in Reception. The LA asked the school 
to offer above their PAN for these two intakes to ensure a sufficient number of 
primary school places to accommodate all pupils of a statutory school age. As a 
result of the expansion proposal that was approved in May 2012 there will be two 
bulge years at Spalding Primary School. The LA will work with the school on 
accommodation solutions to manage these bulge years and to meet the needs of the 
local children, the school and the community. The need for additional primary school 
places required in this area from September 2014 is now proposed to be met by a 
new primary Academy on Wygate Park. 
 
Objectives  

 
The objective is both to ensure that there are sufficient primary school places in 
Spalding to accommodate the increasing pupil numbers in the community and also 
to enable the LA to fulfil its statutory duty of providing school places for all children of 
statutory school age in Lincolnshire within a reasonable distance from where they 
live.  
 

Page 89



Page 2 

To fulfil this objective a statutory process was followed and decision taken in May 
2012 to expand the capacity at Spalding Primary School with effect from 1 
September 2013. The subsequent planning application for the LA's preferred option 
to expand the existing buildings was turned down and therefore the expansion had 
to be pursued as a split site option via an annex to the school. The Governing Body 
of the school decided that it would be extremely challenging to manage a split site 
school whilst continuing to provide a high standard of teaching and learning and 
wished to concentrate their efforts on their successful progress under the new 
leadership and management arrangements introduced in January following the 
implementation of a collaborative partnership with Pinchbeck East Church of 
England Primary School. The Governing Body therefore confirmed their decision in 
March 2013 not to continue with the proposed split site expansion.  
 
As the circumstances have substantially altered since the original proposals were 
approved it would be inappropriate to continue with implementation. The LA must 
therefore follow the statutory process to revoke the expansion decision and look to 
expand capacity elsewhere within the locality to ensure that it meets its statutory 
duty of providing sufficient school places for children in Lincolnshire. The LA 
considers that the best available solution to the expected shortage of primary school 
places in this area of Spalding is to build a new 1 form of entry (210 place) primary 
school and has commenced the process under the Department for Education's 
prescribed Academy Presumption guidelines to find an operator to run a new 
Academy on the site in Wygate Park. 
 
The LA believes this proposal to be in the best interests of local children and local 
parents as well as educational provision in the area and it reinforces the priorities in 
the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP). The proposal will ensure that the 
provision of school places is planned so as to promote high educational standards, 
enable fair access to educational opportunity for every child and promote the 
fulfilment of each child's potential. This proposal will both enhance the quality of 
provision and sustain local provision.  
 
The publication of the Statutory Revocation Notice will enable the statutory and legal 
processes to proceed and in accordance with statutory guidelines will provide an 
opportunity for people and organisations to express their views about the proposal 
and ensure that they will be taken into account by the Executive Councillor. 
 
The decision to expand Spalding Primary School was formalised in May 2012 and 
as a result the places available at the school for September 2014 has been 
published as 90. It will be necessary for the school, supported by the LA, to make an 
application to the Office of Schools Adjudicator to formally reduce and publish the 
school places available back to 60 for September 2014.  
 
Special Educational Needs (SEN) provision  

 
The revocation of the expansion of the school is not likely to have any impact on 
SEN provision other than an opportunity at the new school to improve the provision 
with better access to resources and consistently good quality teaching, learning and 
leadership. Consideration of pupils with SEN will take place and the LA will continue 

Page 90



Page 3 

to look to make improvements in the standard, quality and/or range of the education 
provision for children with SEN. 
 
Need for places  
 

The revocation of the decision to expand from 420 to 630 at Spalding Primary 
School will mean that it will retain its original capacity of 420. There will be no 
displaced pupils arising out of the revocation proposals or any negative impact on 
parental choice. However the need for additional primary school places in the future 
will be met by the opening of a new primary Academy offering 210 places. 
 
Related Proposals  

 
The proposal to revoke the decision to expand Spalding Primary School has not 
been published as related to any other statutory proposal. However the process to 
find an operator of a new Academy in Spalding will run in parallel to the statutory 
revocation process. 
 
What will happen now?  
 

Any person may object to or make comments on this proposal by sending them to 
Provision Planning, Children’s Services, Lincolnshire County Council, County 
Offices, Newland, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN1 1YQ or by emailing 
provisionplanning@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 

At the close of the 6 week representation period on 20 June 2013 responses will be 
collated and analysed and a final report will be presented to the Executive Councillor 
in August 2013 for a decision on the revocation of the expansion of the school. The 
representation period is the final opportunity for people and organisations to express 
their views about the revocation proposal and ensure that they will be taken into 
account by the decision maker. 

Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



Policy and Scrutiny

Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Director of Children's Services 

Report to: Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee

Date: 26 July 2013 

Subject: 
Proposal for a new primary Academy in Spalding 
(submission to Secretary of State of results and 
evaluation of process to identify an operator) 

Decision Reference:Key decision? No

Summary:  

This report invites the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee to 
consider a report on the proposal for a new primary Academy in Spalding 
(submission to Secretary of State of results and evaluation of process to identify 
an operator) which is due to be considered by the Executive Councillor for Adult 
Care, Health and Children’s Services on 9 August 2013.  The views of the 
Scrutiny Committee will be reported to the Executive Councillor as part of her 
consideration of this item. 

Actions Required: 

(1) To consider the attached report and to determine whether the Committee 
supports the recommendation to the Executive Councillor for Adult Care, 
Health and Children’s Services set out in the report.   

(2) To agree any additional comments to be passed to the Executive 
Councillor for Adult Care, Health and Children’s Services in relation to 
this item. 

1. Background

The Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health and Children’s Services is due to 
consider the report on the proposal for a new primary Academy in Spalding 
(submission to Secretary of State of results and evaluation of process to identify an 
operator). The full report to the Executive Councillor is attached at Appendix 1 to 
this report. 

2. Conclusion

Following consideration of the attached report, the Committee is requested to 
consider whether it supports the recommendation in the report and whether it 
wishes to make any additional comments to the Executive Councillor for Adult 
Care, Health and Children’s Services. The Committee’s views will be reported to 
the Executive Councillor.   

Agenda Item 7

Page 93



3. Consultation 

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required

Not applicable 

4. Appendices

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix 1 Report and Appendices to the Executive Councillor for Adult 
Care, Health and Children’s Services on Proposal for a new 
primary Academy in Spalding (submission to Secretary of State of 
results and evaluation of process to identify an operator) 

5. Background Papers 

No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 

This report was written by Michelle Andrews, who can be contacted on 01522 
553269 or Michelle.andrews@lincolnshire.gov.uk . 

Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Policy and Scrutiny

Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Director of Children's Services 

Report to: Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee

Date: 26 July 2013 

Subject: 
Related Proposals to Amend the Age Range and 
Expand the Capacity at Grantham The Isaac Newton 
Primary School (Final decision) 

Decision Reference:Key decision? No

Summary:  

This report invites the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee to 
consider a report on the related proposals to amend the age range and expand 
the capacity at Grantham The Isaac Newton Primary School (Final decision) 
which is due to be considered by the Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health  
and Children’s Services on 9 August 2013. The views of the Scrutiny 
Committee will be reported to the Executive Councillor as part of her 
consideration of this item. 

Actions Required: 

(1) To consider the attached report and to determine whether the Committee 
supports the recommendation to the Executive Councillor for Adult Care, 
Health and Children’s Services set out in the report.   

(2) To agree any additional comments to be passed to the Executive 
Councillor for Adult Care, Health and Children’s Services in relation to 
this item. 

1. Background

The Executive Councillor for Adult Care, Health and Children’s Services is due to 
consider the report on the related proposals to amend the age range and expand 
the capacity at Grantham The Isaac Newton Primary School (Final decision). The 
full report to the Executive Councillor is attached at Appendix 1 to this report. 

2. Conclusion

Following consideration of the attached report, the Committee is requested to 
consider whether it supports the recommendation in the report and whether it 
wishes to make any additional comments to the Executive Councillor for Adult 
Care, Health and Children’s Services. The Committee’s views will be reported to 
the Executive Councillor.   

Agenda Item 8

Page 123



3. Consultation 

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required

Not applicable 

4. Appendices

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix 1 Report and Appendices to the Executive Councillor for Adult 
Care, Health and Children’s Services on Related Proposals to 
Amend the Age Range and Expand the Capacity at Grantham 
The Isaac Newton Primary School (Final decision) 

5. Background Papers 

No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 

This report was written by Michelle Andrews, who can be contacted on 01522 
553269 or Michelle.andrews@lincolnshire.gov.uk . 

Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



  
Policy and Scrutiny

Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Director of Children's Services 

Report to: Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee

Date: 26 July 2013 

Subject: 
Improving Access to Post-16 Learning Provision in 
Lincolnshire Action Plan – Second Monitoring Update

Decision Reference:Key decision? No

Summary:  

This report invites the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee to 
consider the actions/progress of the action plan resulting from the Access to 
Post 16 Learning Provision review undertaken in 2011.   

Actions Required: 

(1) To consider the attached action plan and to determine whether the 
Committee supports the actions/progress to the Executive Councillor for 
Adult Care, Health and Children's Services set out in the report.   

(2) To agree any additional recommendations/actions to be passed to the 
Executive Member for Adult Care, Health and Children's Services.   

1. Background 

Lincolnshire County Council undertook a review of access to Post 16 provision 
during 2011 which resulted in a number of recommendations being made. The 
attached action plan outlines the progress made towards meeting the 
recommendations as at June 2013. 

Since then there have been (and are continuing to be) a number of statutory and 
policy changes that will impact on post 16 education and training provision from 
September 2013.  These include: 

• The transfer of the statutory duty to provide careers guidance to pupils in 
years 10 and 11 from local authorities to schools from September 2012 - 
this duty has now been extended down to year 8 and up to year 13 from 
September 2013.  

• Schools funding reform, in particular the changes to funding high needs i.e. 
learners with learning difficulties and/or disabilities (LLDD) post 16 provision 
(to be implemented from April to August 2013 depending on type of 
institution). This means that funding for meeting the high cost element of 

Agenda Item 9

Page 149



provision for learners with high level needs will be transferred to local 
authorities to enable them to commission directly with providers. 

• Introduction of ‘Study Programmes’ and Traineeships (from academic year 
2013 – 14) which will mean some providers will need to review their 
curriculum. 

• Future planned legislation (Children and Families Bill) resulting from the 
response to the SEN Green Paper ‘support and aspiration: a new approach 
to special needs and disability’ which will inform the development of 
provision for learners with learning difficulties and/or disabilities (LLDD).  

It should be noted that whilst the Local Authority’s role in securing suitable 
education is clearly set out under sections 15ZA and 18A of the Education Act 
1996 (as inserted by the ASCL Act 2009) i.e. ‘that all schools, Academies, colleges 
and other providers (including charitable and third sector providers) are 
autonomous and independent bodies', as autonomous organisations, they have 
responsibility for designing and delivering learning programmes which meet the 
needs of the young people in their area. It is their responsibility to decide on their 
curriculum offer and mix of provision, responding to the needs of individuals and 
employers and to the local authority strategic overview. It is only through strong 
partnership working that the Local Authority can seek to influence provision in their 
area.  

2. Conclusion

Significant progress has been made in relation to some actions in the plan 
including: 

• Reduction in the number of learners with complex needs accessing 
residential provision as a result of the development of provision in local 
mainstream colleges and partnerships between colleges and special 
schools. The transfer of the High Needs budget to local authorities in 
2013/14 means that were we to have continued to have high numbers of 
specialist residential placements, there would be insufficient budget to meet 
the needs of all high cost learners from the allocation. By working with 
mainstream providers we have ensured that the needs of young people with 
learning difficulties and or disabilities can be met much closer to their home 
community without severing the links with support agencies and networks 
on which they will later rely.  It also means that our reliance on residential 
and specialist providers is comparable with that of other local authorities.  It 
was previously much higher. 

• The change in focus of the Careers Service to concentrate on supporting 16 
– 18 NEET (Not in Education, Employment or Training) from September 
2012 is already having an impact. The NEET figures have improved - 
currently 2.4% (at 16), 2.6% (at 17). 

• In the twelve months to December 2012 Lincolnshire was in the top 12% of 
all local authorities in terms of the improvement in unknowns - currently 
4.5% (at 16) and 10.2% (at 17) however using the latest available data our 
numbers are comparatively high compared to our statistical neighbours. 

• There has been considerable success in promoting apprenticeships to 
schools, young people, parents/carers and businesses through the work of 

Page 150



the Apprentice Champions.  The impact of the Apprentice Champions can 
be seen in the latest data on apprenticeship starts. The figures for 
Lincolnshire 16 -18 year olds starting an Apprenticeship this year show that 
the numbers continue to rise (up by 7.4%) compared to the same time last 
year. This is against a regional and national picture of falling numbers in this 
age bracket (a regional decrease of 7% and a national decrease of 12%). 

We have been less successful in some areas including our ability to increase 
collaboration between schools or to significantly influence the mix of provision. This 
is in part due to the fact that schools, providers and academies are autonomous 
organisations facing a number of other challenges not least the need to maintain 
funding levels. 

In light of the statutory and policy changes outlined above, the Committee is 
requested to review the attached action plan and make any additional 
recommendations/changes to the plan. The Committee’s views will be reported to 
the Executive Member for Adult Care, Health and Children's Services.   

3. Consultation

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required

Not applicable. 

4. Appendices

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix 1 Executive Response to Improving Access to Post 16 Learning 
Provision in Lincolnshire – Action Plan arising from 
Recommendations 

5. Background Papers 

No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 

This report was written by Lynn Smith who can be contacted on 07717 700558
 or lynn.smith@lincolnshire.gov.uk.  

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

 T
O

 I
M

P
R

O
V

IN
G

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 T
O

 P
O

S
T

-1
6
 L

E
A

R
N

IN
G

 P
R

O
V

IS
IO

N
 I

N
 L

IN
C

O
L

N
S

H
IR

E
 –

  
A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 A
R

IS
IN

G
 F

R
O

M
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
T

IO
N

S
  

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
S

c
h
o
o

ls
, 
c
o
lle

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
d

 t
o
 

s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 f

u
ll 

th
e
 1

6
-1

9
 b

u
rs

a
ry

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
to

 p
o
s
t-

1
6
 s

tu
d

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
o
s
e
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 a

t 
A

p
p

e
n
d

ix
 2

. 

Y
e
s
 

E
a
c
h
 i
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
p
e

n
d
in

g
 

th
e
ir
 b

u
rs

a
ry

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d
 

fo
r 

s
e
tt
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 s

tu
d
e
n

ts
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 i
t.

 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 
to

 a
g
re

e
 a

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 

p
o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 

b
u
rs

a
ry

 f
u
n
d
. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

n
e
x
t 

y
e

a
r’
s
 b

u
rs

a
ry

 
fu

n
d
 w

ill
 p

ro
b
a

b
ly

 
u
s
e
 t
h

is
 y

e
a
r’
s
 s

p
e

n
d
 

a
s
 t
h
e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

2
0
1

2
/1

3
 s

o
 

th
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t

o
 

a
llo

c
a
te

 t
h
e
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

in
 f

u
ll.

 

N
o
v
 2

0
1

1
 

R
o

y
 N

e
ls

o
n

 
A

s
 a

t 
J
u
n

e
 1

3
 a

ll 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

s
 h

a
v
e
 

th
e
ir
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 i
t 

is
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 e
it
h

e
r 

in
 p

a
p
e
r 

fo
rm

 o
r 

o
n
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
' 
in

tr
a
n
e
t.

 I
n
 

a
d
d

it
io

n
, 

a
s
 f

a
r 

a
s
 w

e
 k

n
o
w

, 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a

v
e

 a
 p

e
rs

o
n
 i
n
 c

h
a
rg

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

h
o
 c

a
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
, 
g
u

id
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

ju
d
g
e
m

e
n
t.
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
 

L
in

c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u

ld
 

g
a
th

e
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

tu
d
e

n
t 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

is
a

p
p
e

a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
 

(E
M

A
) 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
2

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 
D

e
p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n
 t

h
a
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
, 
th

e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
a
t 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

Y
e
s
 

T
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 

E
M

A
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 “

o
th

e
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
” 

w
ill

 
n
o
t 
b

e
 f

u
lly

 r
e

a
lis

e
d
 u

n
ti
l 

th
e
 a

c
a

d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
1
2

/1
3
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

tu
d

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e

iv
in

g
 

th
e
 E

M
A

 i
n
 t
h

e
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
1
0

/2
0

1
1
 w

h
o
 m

o
v
e
 i
n
to

 
th

e
 s

e
c
o
n

d
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 

c
o
u
rs

e
 a

re
 e

n
ti
tl
e

d
 t
o
 

D
a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 

o
n
 p

o
s
t 
1
6
 s

tu
d
e

n
t 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 r
a
te

s
 

fr
o
m

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

e
a
te

d
 

fo
r 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

2
 

D
a
ta

 -
 

J
a
n
 2

0
1
2
 

&
 J

a
n
 

2
0
1
3

 

R
e
p
o
rt

 
F

e
b
 2

0
1
2
 

a
n
d
 

u
p
d
a

te
d
 

F
e
b
 2

0
1
3

 

S
c
h
o
o

l 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n
 (

D
a

v
id

 
R

o
b
in

s
o
n
 &

 
J
o
h
n
 

O
’C

o
n

n
o
r)

 

F
ro

m
 d

a
ta

 h
e
ld

 b
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
  
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 

h
o
m

e
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
o
r 

c
o

lle
g
e
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 s
h
o

w
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
p
p
ly

in
g
 f

o
r 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 i
n
 

c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w

it
h
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
, 

a
n
d
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 r

e
fu

s
a
ls

 o
f 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

. 
In

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 t
h

e
re

 
w

e
re

 2
6

5
0
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
o
s
t 
1
6

 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

, 
o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 1

9
7
8

 
w

e
re

 a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 a

n
d
 6

7
2

 r
e
fu

s
e
d
. 
In

 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 3
,3

6
5
 

Page 153



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
f 

re
q

u
ir
e
d

. 
c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
 s

o
m

e
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 2

0
1
1

/1
2
 

y
e

a
r.

 A
n

y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

m
ig

h
t 
b
e
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tu
d

e
n
t 

b
u
rs

a
ry

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 b

u
rs

a
ry

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 

ti
m

e
. 

A
lt
h
o
u

g
h
 t

h
e
 E

M
A

 w
a
s
 

n
o
t 
a

 p
a

y
m

e
n
t 
m

a
d
e
 b

y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
, 

th
e

 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
/ 

C
o

u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

is
 i
n
te

re
s
te

d
 i
n

 g
a
th

e
ri

n
g
 

in
te

lli
g

e
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
f 

it
s
 

w
it
h

d
ra

w
a

l.
 

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 2

7
2

2
 w

e
re

 
a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 a

n
d

 6
4

3
 r

e
fu

s
e
d
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

L
C

C
 S

T
A

M
P

 d
a
ta

 a
n
a

ly
s
is

 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
3
. 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
o
s
te

d
 a

 v
is

it
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 t
o
 

L
in

c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
 b

y
 J

e
n

n
if
e
r 

C
o

u
p
la

n
d
 

(D
fE

 D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
) 

a
n

d
 N

ic
k
 T

h
a
tc

h
e
r 

(D
fE

 1
6
 –

 1
9
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
S

u
p

p
o
rt

 
P

o
lic

y
) 

to
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 a

n
d
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 f

a
c
in

g
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 r

u
ra

l 
c
o
u
n
ty

 w
it
h
 s

p
a
rs

e
ly

 p
o

p
u
la

te
d
 

a
re

a
s
 i
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 R

P
A

 (
R

a
is

in
g
 

th
e
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 A

g
e
).

 
T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 (

M
a

y
 2

0
1

3
) 

o
n
 t
h

e
 m

e
th

o
d
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 a
llo

c
a
te

 t
h

e
 

d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

 e
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 1

6
 –

 1
9
 

B
u
rs

a
ry

 F
u
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

 
a
b
o
u

t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 r
u
ra

lit
y
 f

a
c
to

r 
in

 
c
a
lc

u
la

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 b

u
rs

a
ry

 a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 g

re
a
te

r 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 c
o
s
ts

 
fa

c
e
d
 b

y
 s

o
m

e
 d

is
a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e
d
 

le
a
rn

e
rs

. 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
L
in

c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u

ld
 

lo
b

b
y
 t

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

u
rs

a
ry

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 L

in
c
o
ln

s
h
ir
e
 t

o
 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
 t
h
e

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 

a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

u
ra

lit
y
 o

f 

 
 

 
 

E
le

c
te

d
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 l
o

b
b

y
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

L
in

c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
 M

P
’s

 o
n
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 m
a
tt
e
rs

. 

T
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p

le
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

a
s
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

if
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

is
h
e
s
 t
o

 
m

a
k
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 t
o
 

Page 154



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

L
in

c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
. 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
a
t 

it
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

 o
n
 1

9
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

1
2
. 
 T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 t
h

is
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

a
g
re

e
d
 n

o
t 
to

 m
a
k
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 t
o

 G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
a
s
 

th
is

 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 h

a
p
p
e

n
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

ro
u
te

s
. 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
A

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 o
n
 s

tu
d

e
n
t 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 t
h

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
. 

Y
e
s
 

T
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 

£
1
9
9

 p
e
r 

a
n
n

u
m

 t
o
 £

2
9
6
 

p
e
r 

a
n

n
u
m

 b
e
c
a
m

e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 f

o
r 

p
o
s
t 
1
6
 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1

. 
T

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

fu
ll 

a
g
re

e
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

£
3
9
6

 w
a
s
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 

It
 i
s
 a

 
m

a
tt
e
r 

o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 w

ill
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
tu

d
e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n

 e
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
. 
T

h
e
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 i
s
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 
a
n
d
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 l
e
s
s
 

th
a
n
 m

o
s
t 
o
th

e
r 

ru
ra

l 
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
’ 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
, 

b
e
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o

w
e
s
t 

d
e
c
ile

 
in

 t
h
e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 

m
a
d
e
 b

y
 E

n
g

lis
h
 r

u
ra

l 
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
. 

D
a
ta

 o
n
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 (

c
o
u
rs

e
s
 

a
n
d
 s

u
b
je

c
ts

 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
) 

w
ill

 b
e
 

g
a
th

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 

a
n
a

ly
s
e

d
 t
h

is
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 n

e
x
t.

 

D
a
ta

 -
 

J
a
n
 2

0
1
2
 

&
 J

a
n
 

2
0
1
3

 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
F

e
b
 2

0
1
2
 

a
n
d
 

u
p
d
a

te
d
 

F
e
b
 2

0
1
3

 

S
c
h
o
o

l 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n
 (

J
o
h
n
 

O
’C

o
n

n
o
r 

/D
a
v
id

 
R

o
b
in

s
o
n
) 

 

T
h
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 s

h
o

w
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 q
u
a
lif

y
in

g
 f

o
r 

p
o
s
t 

1
6
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 i
n
 L

in
c
o

ln
s
h
ir
e
 

fr
o
m

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 t

o
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

, 
fr

o
m

 1
9
7
8
 t

o
 2

7
2
2
. 

 
S

o
u
rc

e
 L

C
C

 S
T

A
M

P
 d

a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
3
. 

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 

C
o
lle

g
e
s
 t
o
 t
ry

 t
o
 g

e
t 
ro

b
u
s
t 

d
a
ta

 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 
d
ro

p
p

in
g

 o
u
t.

 T
h
is

 i
s
 p

ro
b

le
m

a
ti
c
 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 I
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
L

e
a
rn

in
g
 

R
e
c
o
rd

 (
IL

R
) 

n
o
t 

e
n
a

b
lin

g
 u

s
 t
o
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 r
e

a
s
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

le
a

v
in

g
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
h

a
rd

s
h
ip

.

Page 155



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 5
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 o

n
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 p

o
s
t-

1
6
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 o
n
ly

 t
o
 t
h

e
 n

e
a
re

s
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

o
n
 s

tu
d
e
n
t 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 

a
n
d
 d

ro
p
 o

u
t 
ra

te
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
2

. 

Y
e
s
 

W
it
h
 e

ff
e
c
t 
fr

o
m

 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
, 

th
e

 
C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

q
u
a
lif

y
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
 a

n
d
 

c
o
lle

g
e
s
 f

o
r 

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 p

o
lic

y
 n

o
w

 
is

 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

s
u
b
s
id

is
e

d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h

e
 n

e
a
re

s
t 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

 c
o
lle

g
e
 

o
r 

a
s
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 t
o

 t
h
e

 
n
e
a
re

s
t 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
w

it
h

 a
 s

ix
th

 
fo

rm
. 
P

u
p
ils

 a
lr
e
a

d
y
 a

t 
a
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
w

it
h
 a

 s
ix

th
 f

o
rm

 
w

h
o
 a

re
 e

n
ti
tl
e
d

 t
o
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 p
re

 -
1
6
 w

ill
 b

e
 

e
n
ti
tl
e

d
 t
o

 c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 e
v
e

n
 i
f 

it
 

is
 n

o
t 

th
e

ir
 n

e
a
re

s
t 
s
ix

th
 

fo
rm

 ,
 t
h
u
s
 e

n
s
u
ri
n

g
 

c
o
n
ti
n

u
it
y
. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 
tr

a
v
e

lli
n

g
 t
o
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

c
o
u
rs

e
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ty

, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 m

u
s
ic

, 
a
g
ri
c
u

lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 

h
o
rt

ic
u

lt
u
re

. 

D
a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 

o
n
 s

tu
d

e
n
t 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

d
ro

p
-o

u
t 

ra
te

s
, 
a
s
 

w
e
ll 

a
s
 o

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

a
n
d
 c

h
o
ic

e
s
 f

ro
m

 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
. 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

n
a

ly
s
e
d
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 

fi
g
u
re

s
 f

o
r 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

y
e

a
rs

. 

D
a
ta

 -
 

J
a
n
 2

0
1
2
 

&
 J

a
n
 

2
0
1
3

 

R
e
p
o
rt

 
F

e
b
 2

0
1
2
 

a
n
d
 

u
p
d
a

te
d
 

F
e
b
 2

0
1
3

 

S
c
h
o
o

l 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n
 (

J
o
h
n
 

O
’C

o
n

n
o
r 

/D
a
v
id

 
R

o
b
in

s
o
n
) 

  L
y
n

n
 S

m
it
h

 

P
o
s
t-

1
6
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 c
it
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
c
o
s
ts

 a
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

a
c
to

rs
 t
h
a
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 l
e

a
rn

e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

in
d

ic
a
te

 t
h
a
t 

s
o
m

e
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 h
a

v
e
 

c
it
e
d
 t

h
is

 a
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 f

o
r 

d
ro

p
p

in
g

 
o
u
t 
e

a
rl

y
(5

 -
1

0
%

 o
f 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 w
h

o
 

le
a

v
e
 e

a
rl

y
) 

T
h
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 s

h
o

w
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

p
o
s
t 
1
6

 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 2

0
1
1
 

a
n
d
 2

0
1

2
, 
fr

o
m

 2
6
5
0
 t
o
 3

3
6
5
. 
T

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
fu

s
a
ls

 f
e
ll 

fr
o
m

 6
7
2
 i
n
 

2
0
1
1

 t
o
 6

4
3
 i
n
 2

0
1

2
. 
In

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

e
fu

s
a
l,
 t
h
e

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

 
re

fu
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

n
o
t 
a
tt

e
n
d

in
g

 t
h

e
ir
 

n
e
a
re

s
t 
o
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 F

E
 c

o
lle

g
e

 f
e
ll 

fr
o
m

 4
3
1
 i
n
 2

0
1
1

 t
o
 3

7
2
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 
re

fu
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

n
o
t 
a
tt

e
n
d

in
g

 t
h

e
ir
 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 o

r 
n
e
a
re

s
t 
s
ix

th
 f

o
rm

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 f

ro
m

 1
1
6
 i
n
 2

0
1
1

 
to

 1
4

0
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
. 
 

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 
k
n
o
w

n
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
s
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
d
ro

p
o
u
t 

ra
te

s
 s

in
c
e
 

th
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

L
C

C
 S

T
A

M
P

 d
a
ta

 a
n
a

ly
s
is

 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
3
  

Page 156



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 o

n
 

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
o

w
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 
re

fu
s
e
d
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n

d
 t

h
e
ir
 

c
h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
c
o
lle

g
e
 o

r 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
s
ix

th
 

fo
rm

 a
re

 1
1
.5

%
 a

n
d
 4

.3
%

. 
T

o
g
e
th

e
r 

th
a
t 
m

a
k
e
s
 1

5
.8

%
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
o

u
n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 
n
o
t 
g

e
tt

in
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 t
h

e
y
 w

a
n
t 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

A
s
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 t
o

 L
C

C
s
 p

o
s
t-

1
6
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 s
u
b
s
id

y
 c

o
in

c
id

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

E
M

A
 w

it
h

 B
u
rs

a
ri
e
s
, 

it
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 a

tt
ri

b
u
te

 a
n

y
 s

h
if
t 
to

 
L
C

C
s
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 p
o

lic
y
 a

lo
n

e
. 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 6
A

 r
e

v
ie

w
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
to

 
th

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
 c

o
u
n
ty

w
id

e
 p

o
s
t-

1
6
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 f
a
re

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 

o
n
ly

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
w

h
e
n
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
, 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
a
n
d
 A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
. 
 

N
o

 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 i
n
 L

in
c
o

ln
s
h
ir

e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o

o
l 
a
n
d
 

c
o
lle

g
e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

, 
is

 
o
rg

a
n

is
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
o
p
e
ra

to
rs

 
w

h
o
 a

ls
o
 o

p
e
ra

te
 t
h

e
 

p
u
b

lic
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

. 

 
 

 
T

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
a
 c

o
u
n

ty
-w

id
e
 p

o
s
t 
1
6

 
le

a
rn

in
g
 c

o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 f
a
re

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

t 
ti
m

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
a
s
t 
a
n

d
 e

a
c
h
 t
im

e
 f

o
u
n
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

p
ro

h
ib

it
iv

e
ly

 e
x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
 d

u
e

 t
o
 t
h

e
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 n

e
e

d
e
d
 

to
 o

p
e
ra

te
 a

 c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 7
 

T
h
e
 C

a
re

e
rs

 E
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

(C
E

IA
G

) 
te

a
m

 s
h
o
u
ld

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 

Y
e
s
 

1
. 
M

o
n
it
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

v
ia

 s
u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
y
o
u

n
g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

1
2

, 
d
a

ta
 o

n
 

d
e
s
ti
n

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 d

ro
p
o

u
t 

ra
te

s
, 
c
o
lle

g
e
s
’ 
re

p
o
rt

s
 o

n
 

G
a
th

e
r 

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 d

a
ta

 
In

it
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

 
S

e
p
t 

2
0
1
2

. 
T

h
e
n
 

M
a
rk

 
W

ilk
in

s
o
n
 

T
a
s
k
 a

n
d
 f

in
is

h
 g

ro
u

p
 c

re
a
te

d
 t
o

 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e

ir
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 e
n
a
b

le
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 l
e
a

v
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 

to
 b

e
 s

h
a
re

d
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

Page 157



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 c
a
re

e
rs

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 f
ro

m
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 I
A

G
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 
ta

k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
L
C

C
 C

a
re

e
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

o
ff

e
r.

 

a
n
n
u

a
l 

re
p
o
rt

s
  

S
te

v
e
 

W
a
lk

e
r 

fo
llo

w
e

d
 u

p
. 
W

o
rk

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 

S
H

IR
P

A
 (

S
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
, 
H

e
lp

fu
l,
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f

o
r 

R
a
is

in
g
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 

A
g
e
) 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 

3
9
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e

d
 a

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 f

ro
m

 C
fB

T
 C

a
re

e
rs

 
G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

9
2
4
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 f

u
ll 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f

a
c
e
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
, 

p
a
re

n
t'
s
 e

v
e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
p
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
. 
A

lt
h

o
u
g

h
 t
h

e
 t
im

e
 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 i
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 l
e

s
s
 t
h
a
n
 

th
a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 f

re
e
 o

f 
c
h
a
rg

e
 t
h
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

in
 t

h
o
s
e
 s

c
h

o
o
ls

 w
h

o
 

a
re

 p
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
, 

b
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
m

a
x
im

is
e
d
 t
h
e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 t

im
e
. 
 

A
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
y
 3

,6
8
0
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 h
a

v
e

 h
a

d
 a

 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 

fa
c
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t.
�

In
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 w

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

s
 t
o
 

3
8
6
8

 o
f 

th
e
 Y

1
1
 c

o
h
o
rt

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

, 
S

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 4

 
a
n
d
 B

E
S

D
 (

B
e
h

a
v
io

u
ra

l,
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
D

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
) 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 i
n
 

L
in

c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
is

 w
a
s
 s

ti
ll 

th
e

 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 L
o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

T
h
is

 a
m

o
u
n
te

d
 t

o
 4

0
.8

%
 o

f 
th

a
t 

Page 158



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

2
. 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 a
n
d
/o

r 
o
ff

e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 t

o
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
 o

n
 

th
e
ir
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

3
. 
R

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

v
ia

 s
e
lf
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n

d
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
 

R
u
n
 I

A
G

 s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
s
 

a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

C
a
re

e
r 

M
a
rk

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
a
n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 o

n
lin

e
 

T
o
 s

ta
rt

 
D

e
c
 2

0
1

1
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
n

 
te

rm
ly

 
IA

G
 

n
e
tw

o
rk

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 

c
o
h
o
rt

. 
W

it
h
in

 t
h
e

 s
c
h
o
o

ls
, 

w
h
e
re

 
w

e
 a

re
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

in
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 s

o
 f

a
r 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 

in
te

rv
ie

w
e

d
 2

5
3
2
 s

tu
d
e
n

ts
 i
n
 Y

1
1
 

fr
o
m

 a
 c

o
h
o
rt

 o
f 

6
4
2
9
 (

3
9
.3

%
).

 
T

h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
h

o
rt

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 f
a
c
e
 t

o
 f

a
c
e
 

in
te

rv
ie

w
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
lin

e
d
 b

y
 o

n
ly

 1
.5

%
 

1
1
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 
7
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 b
e
lie

v
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 n

o
 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d

e
n
t 
c
a
re

e
rs

 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e

 
2
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
ir
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
s
. 

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 C
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

w
it
h
 4

1
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
 a

tt
e
n

d
in

g
 

w
it
h
 a

 w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 o

n
 R

P
A

 (
R

a
is

in
g
 

th
e
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 A

g
e
).

F
iv

e
 I
A

G
 (

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
) 

n
e

tw
o
rk

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 h

e
ld

 
h
a
lf
 t
e
rm

ly
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
ty

 a
n
d
 

a
tt
e
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n

d
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
 h

a
s
 R

P
A

 a
s
 a

 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 a
g

e
n
d

a
 i
te

m
. 
IA

G
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 m
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 I
A

G
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
 

N
e

w
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 g
u

id
a
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 D
fE

 
(D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
) 

h
a
s
 

e
x
te

n
d

e
d
 t

h
e
 d

u
ty

 d
o

w
n
 t

o
 y

e
a
r 

8
 

Page 159



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 C

a
re

e
r 

M
a
rk

 
s
e
lf
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

o
l 

a
n
d
 u

p
 t

o
 p

o
s
t 

1
6
. 

S
u

p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
m

 p
re

p
a

re
 f

o
r 

th
is

 
c
h
a
n
g
e

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 o

ff
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 a

 r
e
p

o
rt

 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

1
3
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 ‘
C

a
re

e
r 

M
a
rk

’ 
h
a
s
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
v
a
lid

a
ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o

ls
 t
o

w
a
rd

s
 t
h
is

 
c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
s
 t
o

 b
e
 o

ff
e
re

d
. 
D

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 

2
0
1
1

/2
0

1
2
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
a
t 

d
ro

p
o
u
t 
ra

te
s
 

in
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
y
e
a
r 

1
2
 t

o
 1

3
 i
s
 5

%
 l
o

w
e
r 

in
 t

h
o
s
e
 t

h
a
t 

h
o
ld

 C
a
re

e
r 

M
a
rk

. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 a

 n
e

w
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 
c
o
u
rs

e
 f

o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
e
n

io
r 

le
a

d
e
rs

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 a

w
a
rd

in
g
 

b
o
d

y
 A

IM
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 (

a
t 
a
 

c
h
a
rg

e
) 

to
 s

c
h
o

o
l 
s
ta

ff
 f
ro

m
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 
T

h
is

 c
o

v
e

rs
 t
h
e
 

a
re

a
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 i
n
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d
e

n
t,
 

im
p
a
rt

ia
l 
c
a
re

e
rs

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e

. 
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 8
T

h
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

o
re

 c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 

a
ro

u
n

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
s
c
h
o
o

ls
, 
c
o
lle

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 i
n
 

L
in

c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 

c
o
u
n
ti
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 t

o
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 a
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 f
o
r 

e
n
s
u
ri
n

g
 t
h

is
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 c

a
n
 

Y
e
s
 

R
e
g
u

la
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 L

C
C

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
ri

n
g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

re
m

o
v
e
 a

n
y
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 

M
 F

re
e
m

a
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 1

4
-1

9
 h

o
ld

s
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 n

e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n

g
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

6
3
9
 s

ix
th

 f
o
rm

 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 c
o

m
e
 f
ro

m
 

o
u
ts

id
e
 L

in
c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
, 
m

a
in

ly
 f

ro
m

 
N

o
tt
in

g
h

a
m

s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 

L
in

c
s
. 

 
1
0
8
4

 p
o
s
t 

1
6
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 l
e
ft

 
L
in

c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
 t
o

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 F

E
; 

m
o
re

 
L
in

c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 t
a
u
g
h

t 

Page 160



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

o
c
c
u
r.

 

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

it
 o

f 
th

e
 1

4
-1

9
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

in
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e

y
 

c
a
n
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 i
t.

T
h
e
 L

A
 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o

n
, 

b
u
t 
s
c
h
o
o

ls
, 
A

c
a

d
e
m

ie
s
, 

c
o
lle

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
a
ri

ta
b

le
 a

n
d

 
th

ir
d
 s

e
c
to

r 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

) 
a
re

 
a
u
to

n
o
m

o
u
s
 a

n
d
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
b

o
d

ie
s
. 

 

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
a
n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 p

o
s
t 

1
6
 ‘
o
ff

e
r’
 i
d
e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 

a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 
c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o

n
 c

o
u

ld
 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
. 

 

O
c
t 
2
0
1
2

 
R

 N
e
ls

o
n

 
L
 S

m
it
h

 

o
u
ts

id
e
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ty

 t
h
a

n
 a

re
 t
a
u
g

h
t 

in
 

it
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 b

ig
g
e
s
t 
e
x
p

o
rt

s
 g

o
in

g
 t
o
 

G
ri
m

s
b

y
 a

n
d

 K
in

g
s
 L

y
n

n
. 

 
C

lo
s
e
 r

e
g
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

 o
n
 P

o
s
t 
1
6
 h

ig
h
 

c
o
s
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
. 

 

F
u
ll 

p
o
s
t 
1

6
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o

n
 t
a

k
e
s
 

p
la

c
e
 i
n
: 

T
h
e
 S

le
a
fo

rd
 J

o
in

t 
S

ix
th

 F
o

rm
 

(C
a
rr

e
s
 a

n
d
 S

t 
G

e
o
rg

e
s
) 

a
n
d

 
N

o
rt

h
 K

e
s
te

v
e
n

 J
o
in

t 
S

ix
th

 F
o
rm

 
(N

o
rt

h
 K

e
s
te

v
e
n
 a

n
d

 R
o
b

e
rt

 
P

a
tt

in
s
o
n
).

 
S

o
m

e
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n

 (
8
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 i
n
 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 s
u
b
je

c
ts

) 
b
e
tw

e
e

n
 K

in
g
s
 

S
c
h
o
o

l,
 K

G
G

S
 a

n
d
 W

a
lt
o
n
 i
n
 

G
ra

n
th

a
m

  
M

in
o
r 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

S
p
a

ld
in

g
 H

ig
h
 a

n
d
 S

p
a
ld

in
g
 

G
ra

m
m

a
r.

  
S

o
m

e
 o

n
-l
in

e
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

s
o
m

e
 L

in
c
o

ln
 S

ix
th

 F
o
rm

s
 

A
n
a

ly
s
is

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t
h
e

 o
v
e
r-

s
u
p
p
ly

 o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
A

 L
e

v
e
l 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
, 
s
m

a
ll 

c
la

s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 m

a
p
 o

f 
a
ll 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 f
o
r 

A
Y

 1
2
/1

3
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o

 a
ll 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

Page 161



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 

S
c
h
o
o

l 
S

ix
th

 F
o
rm

s
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 f

u
n
d

in
g

 c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t

o
 i
d
e
n

ti
fy

 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 

T
h
e
 P

o
s
t 
1
6

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 r

e
fo

rm
s
 

(2
0
1
3
/1

4
) 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
re

s
u
lt
 i
n
 h

u
g
e
 

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 p

e
r 

p
u
p

il 
b
u
t 
d

e
fi
n
it
e
ly

 r
a

is
e
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 v

ia
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
m

a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o

l 
s
ix

th
 

fo
rm

s
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 

b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

2
/1

3
 a

n
d
 1

3
/1

4
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 

s
ix

th
 f

o
rm

, 
a
n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 t

h
is

 w
it
h
 

th
e
m

. 
 T

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 n

o
 

d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 q

u
a

n
tu

m
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
. 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 9
T

h
e
 g

a
p
s
 i
n

 p
o
s
t-

1
6
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 t
h

a
t 
a
re

 n
o
t 

b
e

in
g

 
a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 b

y
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
n

d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 

L
in

c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

in
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 (

E
F

A
) 

a
n
d

 p
o
s
t-

1
6
 

le
a
rn

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 

Y
e
s
 

It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 a
re

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

p
la

c
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

le
a
rn

e
r 

c
o
h
o
rt

 f
o
r 

2
0

1
1
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 t

o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 g
a
p
s
. 

W
o
rk

in
g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 
1
4
-1

9
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 t
o
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 t

h
e

n
  

a
d
d
re

s
s
 a

n
y
 g

a
p
s
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

A
n
n

u
a

l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

M
 F

re
e
m

a
n
 

C
o
lle

g
e
s
 a

re
 w

e
ll 

p
la

c
e
d

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 

a
n

y
 s

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 Y

M
C

A
 (

Y
o

u
n

g
 M

e
n
's

 
C

h
ri
s
ti
a

n
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
)  

a
n
d
 N

A
C

R
O

 
a
s
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 

h
a
v
e
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 

e
x
p
a
n
d

 (
N

A
C

R
O

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 d

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

 
g
ra

d
e
s
).

 G
IF

E
 c

o
u
ld

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 g

a
p
 i
n
 

th
e
 n

o
rt

h
-e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

o
u

n
ty

. 

T
h
e
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
n
a

ly
s
is

 i
s
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 i
d
e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

y
 g

a
p
s
. 

Page 162



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
0
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
n
to

 p
o
s
t-

1
6
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

fo
r 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 

a
n
d
/o

r 
d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 (

L
L
D

D
) 

s
h
o
u

ld
 

b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 f

o
r 

L
L
D

D
 a

s
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

re
p
o
rt

 o
n
 p

a
g
e
s
 2

8
-2

9
. 

Y
e
s
 

A
 L

L
D

D
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 C

o
-

o
rd

in
a
to

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

re
c
ru

it
e
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 

A
 d

ra
ft

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t/
 p

la
n
 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
. 

A
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 

g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 

L
in

k
s
 b

e
in

g
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 w

it
h
 P

o
s
t 

1
6
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 

C
o
lle

g
e
 P

ri
n
c
ip

a
ls

 
h
a
v
e
 v

o
ic

e
d
 a

 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 
b
u
ild

in
g
 t

h
e

ir
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 
w

it
h
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 

n
e
e
d
s
. 

 

2
0
1
3

/1
4

 
M

 R
e
a

d
e
r 

T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 l
a
u
n
c
h
e

d
 

o
n
 F

ri
d

a
y
 2

1
s
t  S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 

 

6
 L

o
c
a

l 
w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
. 

 
L
o
c
a
l 
w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
s
 h

a
v
e

 g
ro

w
n
 t

o
 

a
ls

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 W

e
lf
a
re

 t
o
 W

o
rk

 t
e
a
m

, 
C

IA
G

 (
C

a
re

e
rs

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

A
d

v
ic

e
 

a
n
d
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
) 

a
n
d
 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e
n

t 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 
J
o

in
t 

b
id

s
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d

 
in

 n
e

w
 c

o
s
t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 b

e
in

g
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 j
o
in

tl
y
 b

y
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 e
.g

. 
A

n
 i
n
te

rn
e
t 
c
a
fe

 a
n
d
 

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h

y
/p

ri
n

ti
n
g
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 r

u
n
 

b
y
 G

ra
n

th
a
m

 c
o
lle

g
e
, 

Y
P

L
P

 (
Y

o
u
n
g

 
P

e
o

p
le

's
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
) 

a
n
d
 

G
A

N
F

 (
G

ra
n
th

a
m

 A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
 

F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

 )
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
s
c
h
o
o

ls
. 
S

im
ila

r 
c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 r
u
n
n

in
g
 i
n
 

S
ta

m
fo

rd
, 
B

o
s
to

n
 a

n
d
 E

a
s
t 

L
in

d
s
e

y
 

G
ro

w
in

g
 F

u
tu

re
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 Q

u
e

e
n
s
 P

a
rk

 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
b

u
ild

in
g

 h
o

u
s
in

g
, 
A

c
ti
o
n

 f
o
r 

C
h
ild

re
n

, 
W

2
W

, 
P

e
lic

a
n
 T

ru
s
t 
a
n
d

 
L
in

c
o

ln
 C

o
lle

g
e
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 h

y
d
ro

th
e
ra

p
y
 p

o
o

l 
lin

k
e
d
 i
n
 w

it
h
 S

t 
C

h
ri
s
to

p
h
e

r’
s
 

s
c
h
o
o
l.
 A

 n
e

w
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

o
p
e
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1

3
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

 f
o
r 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 i
n
 

Page 163



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

L
in

c
o

ln
 w

it
h

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 a

n
d
 m

e
d
ic

a
l 

n
e
e
d
s
, 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 S

t.
 F

ra
n
c
is

 s
c
h
o
o

l 
a
n
d
 

G
ra

n
th

a
m

 C
o
lle

g
e
. 

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
s
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
in

 t
h
e
 

S
o
u
th

 a
n
d
 E

a
s
t 
a

n
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 B

E
S

D
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 c

o
lle

g
e

 

A
 D

ir
e
c
to

ry
 o

f 
p
o
s
t 
1
6
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

L
L
D

D
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e

d
 a

n
d
 

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 w

e
b
 

b
a
s
e
d
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r 

N
e

w
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
o
 

fo
llo

w
 b

e
s
p
o
k
e
 s

tu
d

y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 

In
te

rn
s
h

ip
s
. 

A
ll 

th
e
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
 a

re
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 W

2
W

 
(W

e
lf
a
re

 t
o
 W

o
rk

) 
te

a
m

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 i
n
to

 
w

o
rk

. 
S

ta
ff

 h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

S
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
 I
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 
a
n
d
 R

A
R

P
A

(R
e
c
o
g

n
is

in
g
 a

n
d
 

R
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t )

. 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

t 
a

ll 
th

e
 

c
o
lle

g
e
s
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

 d
e
v
e

lo
p
 

w
o
rk

 s
k
ill

s
 

5
 b

id
s
 f

o
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 

A
g
e

n
c
y
 (

E
F

A
 )

 D
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 G
ro

w
th

 

Page 164



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

C
a
p
it
a
l 
F

u
n

d
 (

2
0
1

3
/1

5
) 

to
 e

x
p
a
n
d
 

C
o
lle

g
e
 L

L
D

D
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
: 

G
ra

n
th

a
m

 C
o
lle

g
e
 -

 t
o
 c

re
a

te
 a

 
d
e
d

ic
a
te

d
 s

u
it
e
 o

f 
ro

o
m

s
 f
o
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 w
it
h

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 n

e
e

d
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
c
a
re

 n
e
e

d
s
 a

n
d
 

th
o
s
e
 o

n
 t
h

e
 A

u
ti
s
ti
c
 s

p
e
c
tr

u
m

 a
s
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 a

t 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 

a
n
d
/o

r 
in

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
. 

  S
ta

m
fo

rd
 C

o
lle

g
e
 -

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
lo

c
a
l 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

p
la

c
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

le
a
rn

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 
re

q
u
ir
e

 a
 s

e
c
u
re

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
e
tt
in

g
 

w
it
h
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 h

ig
h
 l
e

v
e

ls
 

o
f 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
c
a
re

; 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
s
p
a
c
e
 

fo
r 

b
o
th

 a
m

b
u
la

n
t 
a
n

d
 n

o
n
-a

m
b
u
la

n
t 

le
a
rn

e
rs

; 
e
a
s
y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
; 
p
a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 
le

a
rn

in
g
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
- 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
e
n
s
o
ry

 i
n
p

u
ts

. 
 

L
in

k
a
g
e
 –

 a
im

e
d
 a

t 
B

E
S

D
 c

o
h
o
rt

, 
th

e
 G

O
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 u
s
e

 t
h
e

 b
u
ilt

 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
 t
ra

in
in

g
 h

u
b
 (

a
n
 

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
y
 h

u
b
) 

to
 c

re
a
te

 d
e
fi
n
e
d

 
p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 e

.g
. 
m

o
to

r 
m

e
c
h
a
n
ic

s
 /
 v

a
le

ti
n
g
, 

h
o
rt

ic
u
lt
u
re

, 
c
a
te

ri
n
g

 a
n

d
 h

o
s
p
it
a
lit

y
, 

p
a

in
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
n
g
, 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
, 
d

ig
it
a

l 
m

e
d
ia

, 
h
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 b

e
a
u
ty

, 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
ta

il 

Page 165



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

L
in

c
o

ln
 C

o
lle

g
e
 –

 (
tw

o
 b

id
s
) 

1
. 
 I
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 o

p
e

n
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

b
e

s
p
o
k
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

h
ig

h
 f

u
n
c
ti
o

n
in

g
 a

u
ti
s
ti
c
 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 

o
ff

e
r 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 v

a
ri

o
u
s
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 e

.g
. 

R
e
ta

il,
 M

V
, 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

a
fé

, 
D

ra
m

a
. 

2
. 
T

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

 t
h
e

 u
s
e
 o

f 
a
n
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

s
m

a
ll 

re
ta

il 
s
h

o
p
 i
n
 C

a
th

e
d
ra

l 
B

u
ild

in
g
 (

L
in

c
o
ln

 c
a
m

p
u
s
) 

to
 a

 
d
is

a
b

le
d

 t
o

ile
t/

w
e
t 

ro
o
m

. 
R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
n
 a

re
a

 o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
lle

g
e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 t
o
 t
u
rn

 i
t 
in

to
 a

 
p
a
in

ti
n
g
 &

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
, 
c
ra

ft
s
 a

n
d
 

fu
rn

it
u
re

 r
e
s
to

ra
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 f

o
r 

L
L
D

D
. 

 
In

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

ic
u

lu
m

 o
ff
e
r 

a
t 

G
a
in

s
b
o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
1

L
in

c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

o
s
t-

1
6

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a

t 
a

ll 
c
a
re

 
le

a
v
e
rs

 i
n
 p

o
s
t-

1
6
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 

th
e
 1

6
-1

9
 b

u
rs

a
ry

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 s

o
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
h

e
ir
 

s
tu

d
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 o
th

e
r 

is
s
u
e
s
 

ra
is

e
d
 b

y
 c

a
re

 l
e

a
v
e
rs

 a
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 

in
 t

h
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n
 p

a
g
e
s
 2

9
-3

0
, 
s
u
c
h
 

Y
e
s
 

L
C

C
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 

B
a
rn

a
rd

o
’s

 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 a

n
 

a
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
. 

T
h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
n
 E

E
T

 p
la

n
 w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 c

a
re

 l
e
a

v
e
rs

 
a
s
 a

 g
ro

u
p

 

B
a
rn

a
rd

o
’s

 a
re

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

V
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

 
g
ro

u
p
. 

N
o
v
 2

0
1

1
 

B
a
rn

a
rd

o
’s

 
In

 2
0

1
3
/1

4
, 

in
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 

1
6
-1

9
 B

u
rs

a
ry

 F
u
n

d
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

 b
u
rs

a
ri

e
s
 o

n
ly

. 
T

h
e
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 s
tu

d
e
n
t 

b
u
rs

a
ri
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 c
e

n
tr

a
lly

 b
y
 

th
e
 L

e
a
rn

e
r 

S
u

p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 

in
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 d

ra
w

 d
o

w
n
 t

h
is

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 o

n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

o
u
t 
th

e
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 c
h
a

n
g

e
 w

ill
 

re
m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 

Page 166



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

a
s
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
, 

a
re

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d
. 

1
4
 –

 1
9
 T

e
a
m

 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

le
a

v
in

g
 c

a
re

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 

1
4
-1

9
 

T
e
a
m

 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

n
o
t 

h
a

v
in

g
 e

n
o
u

g
h

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

to
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
. 

L
C

C
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

 y
o

u
th

 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
p

la
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
s
 

C
a
re

 L
e

a
v
e
rs

 a
s
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 g

ro
u
p
. 

T
h
e
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 L
e
a
rn

e
rs

 G
ro

u
p
, 

in
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 B

a
rn

a
rd

o
's

, 
h
e

ld
 a

 
c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

fo
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 
is

 b
e

in
g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 c
a
re

 
le

a
v
e
rs

 i
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 s

tu
d

y
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
2

S
c
h
o
o

ls
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 a
ll 

le
a
rn

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
a

n
d
 

c
o
lle

g
e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 C

a
re

e
rs

 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
, 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 

A
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 (

C
E

IA
G

) 
to

 h
e

lp
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

th
e
 N

E
E

T
 f

ig
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t.
 

Y
e
s
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e

e
d
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h

e
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
o
 d

o
 

th
is

. 
T

h
a
t 
s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
e
t 

b
y
 a

n
 o

n
lin

e
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
 

o
f 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 p

o
s
t 
1
6

 

S
c
h
o
o

ls
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e
 v

a
lu

e
 t

o
 

th
e
m

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

 n
o
t 

b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 N

E
E

T
. 
T

h
is

 
c
a
n
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
 b

y
 

e
x
p
la

in
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
m

 t
h
e
 

lin
k
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
is

 o
n
 a

n
 O

fs
te

d
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

 

U
C

A
S

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

‘S
e

a
rc

h
’ 
w

o
u

ld
 n

e
e

d
 

to
 b

e
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e

d
. 

 

T
ra

in
in

g
 g

iv
e
n

 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
t 

h
e
a

d
s
 

b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 I

A
G

 
tr

a
in

in
g
 e

v
e
n
ts

 

S
ta

rt
 D

e
c
 

1
1
 f

o
r 

la
u

n
c
h
 a

t 
E

a
s
te

r 
1

2
 

S
ta

rt
 D

e
c
 

2
0
1
1

 a
n

d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

p
la

n
n
e

d
 

fo
r 

M
a
rc

h
 

a
n
d
 J

u
ly

 

J
o
h
n
 

H
e
rb

e
rt

  
K

a
re

n
 

T
h
o
rp

e
 

C
E

IA
G

 
te

a
m

 

O
n
 l
in

e
 P

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
 l
a
u

n
c
h
e

d
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
1
2

. 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 g

iv
e
n

 v
ia

 R
P

A
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

s
c
h
o
o

ls
 a

n
d
 s

e
n

io
r 

le
a

d
e
rs

h
ip

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

 
A

ll 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
/A

c
a
d

e
m

ie
s
 a

n
d

 S
p
e
c
ia

l 
S

c
h
o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
to

o
l 
(S

H
IR

P
A

) 
to

 b
e
 

u
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

e
a
rl

y
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d
 

ta
rg

e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
N

E
E

T
. 
  

Page 167



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

D
u
e
 t

o
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
(N

A
S

) 
a

 g
a

p
 i
n
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 

a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
s
 i
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
a
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
. 

 

T
w

o
 A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
 

C
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 
b
e
e
n

 a
p

p
o
in

te
d
 t
o
 

c
h
a
m

p
io

n
 

A
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 L

in
c
o
ln

s
h
ir
e

 
w

it
h
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e

o
p
le

, 
p
a
re

n
ts

/g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
 

a
n
d
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 

D
e
c
 2

0
1

1
 

L
 S

m
it
h

 
In

it
ia

ti
n
g

/a
tt

e
n
d

in
g

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
n
e
tw

o
rk

in
g
 e

v
e
n
ts

 r
e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n
 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 o

v
e
r 

1
2

0
0
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

. 
E

n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

o
v
e
r 

2
0

0
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 
c
re

a
ti
n
g

 o
v
e
r 

3
0
0
 n

e
w

 
A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

1
0
0
0

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o

u
t 
a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
’s

 d
a

y
s
 a

t 
S

le
a
fo

rd
, 
L

in
c
o
ln

, 
B

o
s
to

n
 a

n
d
 

S
ta

m
fo

rd
. 
 

H
ig

h
 p

ro
fi
le

 ‘
H

a
v
e
-a

-G
o
’ 
e
v
e
n
ts

 
h
a
v
e
 a

tt
ra

c
te

d
 i
n
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
2
5
0
0

 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

m
a
n

y
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
re

a
s
. 

R
e
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

s
 b

u
ilt

 w
it
h
 5

7
 o

f 
th

e
 6

2
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

/A
c
a

d
e
m

ie
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

, 
re

s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 o

v
e
r 

1
0

0
 f

o
rm

a
l 
e
v
e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
. 

 
R

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 w

it
h
 1

0
 

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
S

c
h
o

o
ls

 r
e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 
S

E
N

/L
L
D

D
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
te

d
 w

it
h
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

T
ra

in
in

g
/f

a
m

ili
a
ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 e

v
e

n
ts

 w
it
h
 

L
C

C
/C

fB
T

 C
a
re

e
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
ff

; 
S

c
h
o
o

ls
 c

a
re

e
rs

 a
d

v
is

e
rs

 a
n
d
 

te
a
c
h
e
rs

 a
n

d
 J

o
b

 C
e
n

tr
e
 P

lu
s
 s

ta
ff

 
re

s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 u

p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e
 

Page 168



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

a
n
d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g

 o
f 

th
e
 

V
o
c
a
ti
o
n

a
l/
A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

 r
o
u
te

 t
o
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
. 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
3

S
c
h
o
o

ls
 a

n
d
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 a

ll 
y
e

a
r 

ro
u
n
d
 p

o
s
t-

1
6
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

llo
w

s
 e

n
tr

y
 a

t 
o

th
e
r 

ti
m

e
s
 

d
u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 a

c
a

d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 j
u
s
t 

in
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 

Y
e
s
 

C
o
lle

g
e
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 h

a
v
e
 

s
o
m

e
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

 a
ro

u
n

d
 

s
ta

rt
 d

a
te

s
. 

S
c
h
o
o

ls
 w

o
u
ld

 f
in

d
 t

h
is

v
e
ry

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 u

n
le

s
s
 t
h
e
re

 
w

a
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h
a
n

g
e
 

to
 t
h

e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 

R
a
is

e
 t

h
is

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
s
o
rt

ia
. 

In
c
lu

d
e
 t
h

is
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 D

F
E

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

. 

J
a
n
 2

0
1
2

 

D
e
c
 2

0
1

1
 

L
 S

m
it
h

 

A
ll 

y
e

a
r 

s
ta

rt
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 a
 f

e
a
tu

re
 a

t 
b
o
th

 G
ra

n
th

a
m

 a
n
d
 B

o
s
to

n
 

C
o
lle

g
e
s
 f

o
r 

L
e
v
e
l 
2
 a

n
d
 b

e
lo

w
. 

A
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n
d
e

n
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 ‘
ro

ll-
o
n
 r

o
ll-

o
ff

’ 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 
It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
a

t 
in

 y
e
a
r 

s
ta

rt
s
 f

o
r 

le
v
e

l 
3
 a

re
 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
. 
T

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

s
u
c
h
 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

te
rm

ly
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 w

it
h
 p

ri
n
c
ip

a
ls

. 
T

h
e
 

is
s
u
e
 w

ill
 a

lw
a

y
s
 b

u
tt

 u
p

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
 

v
ia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
fl
e
x
ib

le
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
4

T
h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 e
n
d
o

rs
e
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d

 
a
t 
A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 3

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 a

ro
u

n
d
 t

h
e
 s

k
ill

s
 g

a
p
, 
la

c
k
 o

f 
A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
s
, 

w
o
rk

 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 r

a
is

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

g
e
 

a
re

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d
. 

Y
e
s
 

T
h
e
 E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 N

e
e
d
s
 P

la
n
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e

d
 a

n
d
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
1

/1
2
. 

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 d
e

liv
e
r 

th
e
 p

la
n

 
M

a
r 

2
0

1
2

 
L
 S

m
it
h

 
C

 H
u
g

h
e
s
 

W
o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e
 s

k
ill

s
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

k
ill

s
 B

o
a
rd

 a
n

d
 

L
C

C
 (

E
c
o

n
o
m

y
).

 T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
a
n
a

ly
s
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

k
ill

s
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 

th
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
. 

Page 169



R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
-

d
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c

c
e

p
te

d
?

 
Y

e
s

/N
o

 

In
it

ia
l 

R
e
s

p
o

n
s

e
A

c
ti

o
n

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
h

o
P

ro
g

re
s

s

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
5

A
ll 

e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 

in
fl
u
e

n
c
e
 t
h

e
 m

ix
 o

f 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
, 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
d

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

le
a

rn
e
rs

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 t
h

e
ir
 r

o
le

s
 a

s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

le
a

d
e
rs

; 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

; 
m

e
d
ia

 
a
d
v
o
c
a
te

s
 a

n
d
 a

s
 g

o
v
e
rn

o
rs

 o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n

d
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
 b

y
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

: 

�
T

a
k
in

g
 e

v
e
ry

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t
o

 
a
rt

ic
u
la

te
 t

o
 p

a
re

n
ts

, 
y
o

u
n
g

 
p
e
o
p

le
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 t
h
e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
ty

 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
 t

ra
je

c
to

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 

�
E

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 a

ll 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 t
o
 

c
o
n
v
e
rt

 j
o

b
s
 w

it
h
 l
it
tl
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

to
 A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 

�
E

n
s
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
a
t 

d
e
b

a
te

s
 a

b
o
u

t 
p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
ty

’s
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
 t
h
e

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h

e
 

fu
tu

re
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

s
m

a
lle

r 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
n
e

w
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 b
y
 

a
n
o
th

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

 
 

 
 

E
le

c
te

d
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 
L
C

C
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 E

c
o
n
o

m
ic

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

 w
e

ll-
p
u
b

lic
is

e
d
 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
 a

n
d
 

g
ra

d
u

a
te

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
s
 3

9
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
 

a
n
d
 5

 g
ra

d
u
a
te

s
. 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

e
re

 
a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
t 
th

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

n
 

1
9
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

1
2
 h

o
w

 t
h
e

y
 w

is
h
 t
o

 
c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

is
 a

t 
a
 w

a
rd

 l
e
v
e

l 
to

 
ta

k
e
 t
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 
s
o
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

h
a

re
d
. 
T

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 t
h

is
 i
s
s
u
e
 a

n
d
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 o

f 
d
o
in

g
 

th
is

 i
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
te

rm
s
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 

th
a
t 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o

n
c
e
n
tr

a
te

 o
n
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 t
h

e
ir
 w

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 

p
a
s
s
 o

n
 t

h
is

 k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

 t
o
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

Page 170



Policy and Scrutiny

Open Report on behalf of David O'Connor, Executive Director Performance 
and Governance 

Report to: Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee

Date: 26 July 2013 

Subject: 
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee Work 
Programme 2013/14  

Decision Reference:Key decision? No 

Summary:  

This item enables the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee to 
consider its own work programme for the coming year. 

Actions Required: 

(1) To note the priorities identified for the Committee's future work 
programme, as set out in Appendix A to this report;

(2) To comment and agree on the content of the work programme, as set out 
in Appendix B to this report. 

1. Background 

Future Priorities 

At the last meeting of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee, 
members were asked to list their three top priorities for the Committee to look at 
over the next 12 to 18 months. Members then worked in groups of three to agree 
their top three priorities as a group. These priorities have been analysed and 
compiled under different headings of Education, Social Care, Health, School 
Transport, Partnership Working, and Youth Provision. Appendix A contains the 
priorities and details any proposed actions for future scrutiny activity. The priorities 
listed in italics are the priorities listed by members which were not included in the 
group priorities. 

Current Work Programme 

The current work programme for the Committee is attached at Appendix B to this 
report. This has been amended to reflect the priorities identified by the Committee.  

Forward Plan 

Also attached at Appendix C for the Committee’s consideration is a list of the 
intended key decisions of the Executive or Executive Councillor for Adult Care and 

Agenda Item 10

Page 171



Health Services, Children's Services, which fall within the remit of the Children and 
Young People Scrutiny Committee.      

Scrutiny Activity Definitions 

Set out below are the definitions used to describe the types of scrutiny, relating to 
the items:  

Budget Scrutiny - The Committee is scrutinising the previous year’s budget, the 
current year’s budget or proposals for the future year’s budget.  

Pre-Decision Scrutiny - The Committee is scrutinising a proposal, prior to a 
decision on the proposal by the Executive, the Executive Councillor or a senior 
officer. 

Performance Scrutiny - The Committee is scrutinising periodic performance, issue 
specific performance or external inspection reports.    

Policy Development - The Committee is involved in the development of policy, 
usually at an early stage, where a range of options are being considered.  

Consultation - The Committee is responding to (or making arrangements to 
respond to) a consultation, either formally or informally. This includes pre-
consultation engagement.   

Status Report - The Committee is considering a topic for the first time where a 
specific issue has been raised or members wish to gain a greater understanding.  

Update Report - The Committee is scrutinising an item following earlier 
consideration.   

Scrutiny Review Activity - This includes discussion on possible scrutiny review 
items; finalising the scoping for the review; monitoring or interim reports; approval 
of the final report; and the response to the report.   

2. Conclusion

That consideration is given to the content of this report.

3. Consultation

a)  Policy Proofing Actions Required

No policy proofing is required for this report. 

4. Appendices

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee Priorities 

Appendix B Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee Work 
Programme 

Appendix C Children's Services Forward Plan 

Page 172



5. Background Papers 

No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 

This report was written by Tracy Johnson, who can be contacted on 01522 552164 
or Tracy.Johnson@lincolnshire.gov.uk . 

Page 173



Page 174

This page is intentionally left blank



C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 –

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
  
 

 
  
  
  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 A
 

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 
A

C
T

IO
N

S
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
A

C
T

IO
N

S
 

•
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

is
in

g
 A

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 –

 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
/s

e
le

c
ti
o

n
, 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 o
th

e
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g
h

t 
to

 C
Y

P
S

C
 

o
n

 R
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 A
c
a

d
e
m

ie
s
 

a
t 

it
s
 6

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
. 

•
 

S
E

N
/A

u
ti
s
m

 a
n

d
 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 i
n
to

 
m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 A
s
p

ir
a

ti
o
n
 

re
p

o
rt

 d
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 6

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
. 

 

•
 

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o
r 

m
o

re
 a

b
le

 p
u
p

ils
 i
n

 
S

ta
m

fo
rd

 

T
h

is
 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 4
 y

e
a
rl

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
a

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 C

Y
P

S
C

 
a

t 
it
s
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 o

n
 1

3
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

1
. 

T
h
e

 n
e

x
t 

u
p

d
a

te
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

u
e

 i
n

 
M

a
y
 2

0
1

5
. 

•
 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

S
e

ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 w

ill
 b

e
 

b
ro

u
g
h

t 
to

 t
h
e

 2
6

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1
3

 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
. 

A
d
o

p
ti
o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 
c
o

v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
P

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 t

ra
in

in
g
 o

n
 1

8
 J

u
ly

 
2

0
1
3

. 

•
 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

a
n

d
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 f
o
r 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

A
n

 u
p

d
a
te

 o
n

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

in
g
 t

o
 

C
Y

P
S

C
 a

t 
it
s
 1

8
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
. 

•
 

Im
p
a

c
t 

o
f 

im
m

ig
ra

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
s
 -

 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 
e
ff

e
c
ts

 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 
S

u
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 o

f 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c
e

s
 

re
p

o
rt

 d
u

e
 t
o

 C
Y

P
S

C
 a

t 
it
s
 

1
8

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
. 

•
 

M
a

in
ta

in
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 
s
m

a
ll 

ru
ra

l 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

 

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

C
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

m
a

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

ill
 c

o
m

e
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
Y

P
S

C
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

n
 1

0
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

. 

•
 

A
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

ru
a

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 
fa

m
ily

 s
o

c
ia

l 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 

a
n

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

•
A

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

in
 

p
ro

b
le

m
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
a

tt
e
n

d
a
n

c
e

A
n

 u
p

d
a
te

 o
n

 t
h

e
 t
ro

u
b
le

d
 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 /
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 d

u
e
 t
o

 t
h
e

 
C

Y
P

S
C

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

n
 7

 M
a

rc
h

 
2

0
1
4

. 
 

•
 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

p
o

rt
s
 i
n

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 –

 2
0
1

2
 l
e

g
a

c
y
 

•
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
s
w

im
m

in
g
 

T
h
e

s
e

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 
th

e
 i
n
te

ri
m

 r
e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 S

c
h
o

o
l 
F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 d

u
e

 t
o
 

th
e

 2
5

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
4

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
. 

 
 

•
 

L
o

w
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 i
n

 m
a

th
s
 

a
n

d
 E

n
g
lis

h
 g

ra
m

m
a

r 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

is
 i
n

 
L

in
c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
 s

o
 n

o
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

 
 

Page 175



C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 –

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
  
 

 
  
  
  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 A
 

 
 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

in
g
 b

e
s
t 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

N
o

t 
to

 b
e

 t
a

k
e
n

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 a

t 
th

is
 

ti
m

e
. 

 
 

•
 

P
o

s
t 

1
6

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
L

L
D

D

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 S
u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 A
s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
 

fo
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 S
p
e

c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 –

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

P
la

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
to

 C
Y

P
S

C
 a

t 
it
s
 6

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
. 

 
 

•
D

is
c
ip

lin
e

 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 c
o

v
e

re
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 E
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

in
 L

in
c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 

 
 

•
C

la
s
s
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 

•
S

c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e

s
 –

 y
o

u
n
g
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 t

o
 t
ra

v
e

l 
to

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
p
a

s
s
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 S
u
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 o

f 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c
e

s
 w

ill
 c

o
m

e
 t
o

 t
h
e
 C

Y
P

S
C

 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
 o

n
 1

8
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

. 

 
 

•
T

e
a

c
h

in
g

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
R

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 A
c
a
d

e
m

ie
s
 

re
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h
e

 6
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
. 

 
 

•
B

ri
d

g
in

g
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 
F

re
e

 S
c
h
o

o
l 
M

e
a

ls
 

(F
S

M
) 

a
n

d
 G

C
S

E
 

a
tt

a
in

m
e

n
t 

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 N
a

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 G
a

p
 w

ill
 

c
o

m
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

Y
P

S
C

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

n
 1

8
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
. 
 

 
 

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
re

te
n

ti
o
n

 o
f 

te
a

c
h

in
g

 s
ta

ff
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

e
a

d
te

a
c
h
e

rs

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
ti
m

e
 s

o
 n

o
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
a

k
e

n
. 

 
 

Page 176



C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 –

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
  
 

 
  
  
  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 A
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 W

o
rk

in
g

 
A

C
T

IO
N

S
 

•
 

C
h

ild
h

o
o
d

 o
b

e
s
it
y
 a

n
d
 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
h

e
a

lt
h
 

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 C
h

ild
h

o
o

d
 O

b
e

s
it
y
 w

ill
 

b
e

 b
ro

u
g
h

t 
to

 t
h
e

 C
Y

P
S

C
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 

o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
. 

•
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h
 –

 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
&

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

s
p

o
rt

s
, 

s
o

c
ia

l,
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 a
rt

s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 

A
n

 i
n

te
ri
m

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

b
ro

u
g
h

t 
to

 t
h
e

 C
Y

P
S

C
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

n
 2

5
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

4
. 

•
R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 w

h
y
 c

h
ild

re
n

 
u

n
d
e

r 
4

 y
e
a

rs
 o

f 
a

g
e

 a
re

 
ta

k
e

n
 t

o
 A

&
E

 a
ft
e

r 
a

c
c
id

e
n
ts

 a
t 
h

o
m

e
, 

a
s
 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 a
re

 g
o

in
g
 

u
p

N
o

t 
a

 t
o

p
ic

 f
o

r 
th

is
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
T

h
e

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 f
o

r 
L

in
c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

fo
r 

th
is

 t
o

p
ic

. 

•
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 D

io
c
e

s
a

n
 

c
h

u
rc

h
 s

c
h
o

o
l 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 L
A

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 f
o

r 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

te
rm

ly
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d

 f
a

it
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 
A

n
 u

p
d

a
te

 w
ill

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g
h

t 
to

 
C

Y
P

S
C

 i
n

 2
0

1
4

. 

•
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n
g

 
p

e
o
p

le
 d

ia
g

n
o

s
e

d
 w

it
h

 
c
a

n
c
e

r,
 a

s
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
 

p
a

lli
a

ti
v
e

 c
a

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 c
o

u
n
ty

 o
f 

L
in

c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e

N
o

t 
a

 t
o

p
ic

 f
o

r 
th

is
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
T

h
e

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 f
o

r 
L

in
c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e
 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

fo
r 

th
is

 t
o

p
ic

. 

•
 

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
w

it
h

 Y
o

u
th

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
to

 e
n

c
o
m

p
a

s
s
 

th
e

ir
 v

ie
w

s
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
a

s
 

D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 a
t 

a
 p

re
m

e
e

ti
n

g
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 
e

n
g
a

g
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 

C
a

b
in

e
t.
 

S
c

h
o

o
l 

T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 

A
C

T
IO

N
S

 
Y

o
u

th
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

 
A

C
T

IO
N

S
 

•
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 P

o
s
t 
1

6
 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 t
o

 c
o

lle
g
e

 

•
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
T

ra
v
e

l 
P

la
n

s
 

•
 

C
o

n
g
e

s
ti
o

n
 o

u
ts

id
e

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

T
h

is
 m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

t 
s
o
m

e
 

p
o

in
t 

in
 2

0
1

4
 i
n

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
a
n

y
 

p
o

lic
y
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 i
n

 2
0

1
5
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e

 n
e

x
t 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 S

p
e

n
d

in
g
 

R
e

v
ie

w
. 

•
Y

o
u

th
 C

e
n
tr

e
s

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
to

 C
Y

P
S

C
 a

t 
it
s
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 o

n
 1

8
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

. 

Page 177



Page 178

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Theme: “That every child, in every part of the county should achieve their potential” 

Chairman: Councillor John Hough 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Bob Adams 

26 July 2013

Item Contributor Purpose

Children’s Centres – 
Progress and Successes 

Stuart Carlton 
Assistant Director 

Update Report  

Youth Housing Strategy Phil Taylor 
Lincolnshire Youth 
Housing Coordinator 

Consultation 

Proposal to revoke the 
decision taken in May 
2012 to expand Spalding 
Primary School 

Michelle Andrews  
Interim Head of Property 
and Technology 
Management 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny 
(Executive Councillor 
Decision on 9 August 
2013) 

Proposal for a new 
primary Academy in 
Spalding (submission to 
Secretary of State of 
results and evaluation of 
process to identify an 
operator) 

Michelle Andrews Pre-Decision Scrutiny 
(Executive Councillor 
Decision on 9 August 
2013) 

Related Proposals to 
Amend the Age Range 
and Expand the Capacity 
at Grantham The Isaac 
Newton Primary School 
(Final decision) 

Michelle Andrews Pre-Decision Scrutiny 
(Executive Councillor 
Decision on 9 August 
2013) 

Improving Access to Post-
16 Learning Provision in 
Lincolnshire Action Plan – 
Second Monitoring Update

Maggie Freeman 
Head of Service 
11-19 

Scrutiny Review Activity 

6 September 2013

Item Contributor Purpose

Strategic Priorities for 16 – 
19 (25) education and 
training for 2014/15 

Maggie Freeman Pre-Decision Scrutiny 
(Executive Decision on 1 
October) 

School Funding Reform: 
Findings from the Review 
of 2013/14 & 
Arrangements and 
changes for 2014/15 

Tony Warnock 
Head of Finance – 
Children’s and Specialist 
Services 

Consultation 

Theme Performance: 
Quarter 1 

Debbie Barnes 
Director of Children's 
Services 

Performance Scrutiny 

Page 179



6 September 2013

Item Contributor Purpose

Relationships with 
Academies 

Tim Culpin  
Head of School 
Improvement 

Status Report 

Support and Aspiration for 
Children with Special 
Educational Needs - 
Monitoring Plan 

Gary Nixon  
Head of Service  
Additional Needs 

Sheridan Dodsworth 
Head of Service  
Children with Disabilities 

Status Report 

Lincolnshire Safeguarding 
Boards Scrutiny Sub-
Group Update 

Chairman / Vice-Chairman 
of Scrutiny Sub-Group 

Update Report 

Corporate Parenting Panel 
Update 

Chairman / Vice-Chairman 
of Panel 

Update Report 

18 October 2013

Item Contributor Purpose

School Funding Reform: 
Findings from the Review 
of 2013/14 & 
Arrangements and 
changes for 2014/15 

Tony Warnock 
Head of Finance – 
Children’s and Specialist 
Services 

Pre-Decision Scrutiny 
(Executive Councillor 
Decision on 30 October 
2013) 

“Always Someone Else’s 
Problem” - Office of the 
Children’s Commissioner’s
Report on Illegal 
Exclusions 

Keith Batty  
Assistant Director 
CfBT Education Services 

Status Report 

School Admissions and 
Exclusions in Lincolnshire 
Action Plan – First 
Monitoring Update 

Keith Batty Scrutiny Review Activity 

Narrowing the Attainment 
Gap (including vulnerable 
learners)  

Maggie Freeman 

Tim Culpin 

Status Report 

Sufficiency of School 
Places 

Matt Clayton 
School Organisation 
Planning Manager 

Status Report 

Youth Offer Stuart Carlton Update Report 

29 November 2013

Item Contributor Purpose

Theme Performance: 
Quarter 2 

Debbie Barnes Performance Scrutiny 

Lincolnshire Safeguarding 
Boards Scrutiny Sub-
Group Update 

Chairman / Vice-Chairman 
of Scrutiny Sub-Group 

Update Report 

Page 180



29 November 2013

Item Contributor Purpose

Corporate Parenting Panel 
Update 

Chairman / Vice-Chairman 
of Panel 

Update Report 

10 January 2014

Item Contributor Purpose

Children’s Services 
Budget 2013/2014 and 
2014/15 

Debbie Barnes Budget Scrutiny 

Child Poverty Strategy and 
Action Plan Update  

TBC Update Report 

Early Help Strategy Stuart Carlton Status Report 

Collaborative Partnerships 
for sustaining small and 
medium sized primary 
schools in Lincolnshire - 
Update 

Tim Culpin Update Report 

7 March 2014

Item Contributor Purpose

Families Working 
Together 

Stuart Carlton 

Jo Kavanagh 
Lincolnshire's Troubled 
Families Co-ordinator/ 
Head of Service Youth 
Offending 

Update Report 

Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Services 
(CAMHS) – Tier 2 Update 

Stuart Carlton 

Charlotte Gray 
Commissioning Officer 

Update Report 

Early Education Offer for 2 
Years Old Living in 
Disadvantaged 
Communities 

Steph Douglas 
Head of Service  
Birth to Five 

Status Report 

Theme Performance: 
Quarter 3 

Debbie Barnes Performance Scrutiny 

Lincolnshire Public Health 
Annual Report 2012 – 
Progress against 
recommendations on 
Childhood Obesity 

Dr Tony Hill 
Director of Public Health 

Status Report 

25 April 2014

Item Contributor Purpose

Community Access to 
School Facilities – Interim 
report 

Keith Batty 
Assistant Director CfBT 
Education Services 

Update Report 

Page 181



25 April 2014

Item Contributor Purpose

Opportunities for Young 
People Post 16 

Maggie Freeman Status Report 

13 June 2014 

Item Contributor Purpose

Theme Performance: 
Quarter 4 

Debbie Barnes Performance Scrutiny 

25 July 2014 

Item Contributor Purpose

Strategies for Recruiting 
Qualified and Experienced 
Social Workers 

Janice Spencer 
Assistant Director  

Status Report 

Items to be Scheduled 

• Strengthening partnerships between Diocesan church school providers and LA 
providers for education (2014) 

• Stamford Endowed Schools Scholarship Tapering- Interim (4th Year) Review – 
May 2015 

Theme Outcomes 

The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee is aligned to the five principles set out 
in the Children and Young People’s Plan 2012-2015:   

1. Early Intervention and Prevention 

• Strong universal services, providing early action and intensive support to 
vulnerable children and young people.  

2.  Safeguarding and Best Start in Life 

• Ensuring children are safe in every environment.  

• Encouraging community responsibility for safeguarding.  

3. Aspiration and Well Being 

• Ensuring all those working with children champion the importance of 
aspiration.  

• Develop self-esteem, self-belief and resilience in all children, young people 
and their families.  

4. Learning and Achievement 

• All children being the best that they can be.  

• Closing the gap between vulnerable groups and children living in 
disadvantaged communities.  

Page 182



5. Best Use of Resources 

• Integrating delivery with a focus on outcomes, life chances and opportunities.  

• Effective use of resources to provide better services locally.  

• Empower communities, creating opportunities for them to engage.  

For more information about the work of this Committee please contact Tracy Johnson, 
Scrutiny Officer, on 01522 552164 or by e-mail at tracy.johnson@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

  

Page 183



  

Page 184



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 C

 

L
IN

C
O

L
N

S
H

IR
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 –
 F

O
R

W
A

R
D

 P
L

A
N

 O
F

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 R

E
L

A
T

IN
G

 T
O

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
’S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 F

R
O

M
 3

 J
U

L
Y

 2
0

1
3
 

D
E

C
 

R
E

F
 

M
A

T
T

E
R

S
 

F
O

R
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 

D
A

T
E

 O
F

 
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 

D
E

C
IS

IO
N

 
M

A
K

E
R

 
P

E
O

P
L

E
/G

R
O

U
P

S
 

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
E

D
 P

R
IO

R
  

T
O

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

 

D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

S
 

T
O

 B
E

 
S

U
B

M
IT

T
E

D
 

F
O

R
 

D
E

C
IS

IO
N

 

H
O

W
 T

O
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

 
O

N
 T

H
E

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

  
B

E
F

O
R

E
 I

T
 I

S
 M

A
D

E
  

A
N

D
 T

H
E

 D
A

T
E

 B
Y

  
W

H
IC

H
 C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
  

M
U

S
T

 B
E

 R
E

C
E

IV
E

D
 

R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

L
E

 
P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
 H

O
L

D
E

R
 

A
N

D
 C

H
IE

F
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 

K
E

Y
  

  
  

 
D

E
C

IS
IO

N
Y

E
S

/N
O

 

  
D

IV
IS

IO
N

S
  

A
F

F
E

C
T

E
D

 

I0
0

4
6
9

6
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
to

 
a

m
e

n
d

 t
h
e

 a
g
e

 
ra

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 
e

x
p

a
n

d
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 

a
t 

T
h

e
 I

s
a
a

c
 

N
e

w
to

n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 
S

c
h

o
o
l,
 

G
ra

n
th

a
m

 (
F

in
a

l 
D

e
c
is

io
n

) 

9
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
3
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r:

 
A

d
u

lt
 

C
a

re
 a

n
d
 

H
e

a
lt
h
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

In
te

re
s
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s
 a

s
 D

fE
 

g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
re

n
ts

, 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
s
ta

ff
, 

n
e

ig
h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

, 
C

o
u
n

ty
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

a
n

d
 P

a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

, 
M

P
’s

, 
T

ra
d

e
 U

n
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 D
io

c
e
s
e
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

In
te

ri
m

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 

a
n

d
 T

e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

e
-m

a
il:

 
m

ic
h

e
lle

.a
n

d
re

w
s
@

lin
c
o

l 
n

s
h

ir
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

T
e

l:
 0

1
5

2
2

 5
5
3

2
6

9
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r:

 
A

d
u

lt
 C

a
re

 a
n
d

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

Y
e

s
 

G
ra

n
th

a
m

 
B

a
rr

o
w

b
y
; 

G
ra

n
th

a
m

 E
a

s
t;
 

G
ra

n
th

a
m

 
N

o
rt

h
; 

G
ra

n
th

a
m

 N
o

rt
h
 

W
e
s
t;

 
G

ra
n

th
a
m

 
S

o
u

th
 

I0
0

4
7
3

3
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
fo

r 
a

 
n

e
w

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 

A
c
a

d
e
m

y
 i
n
 

S
p

a
ld

in
g

 
(s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 

to
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 o

f 
re

s
u

lt
s
 

a
n

d
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 t
o

 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n
 

o
p

e
ra

to
r)

 

9
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
3
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r:

 
A

d
u

lt
 

C
a

re
 a

n
d
 

H
e

a
lt
h
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

A
ll 

H
e

a
d
te

a
c
h

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

C
h

a
ir

s
 o

f 
G

o
v
e

rn
o

rs
 o

f 
a

ll 
L

in
c
o

ln
s
h

ir
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d
 

A
c
a

d
e
m

ie
s
; 

R
C

 a
n

d
 C

o
fE

 
D

io
c
e
s
e
s
; 

C
o

u
n

ty
, 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
a

n
d

 T
o

w
n

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

. 
D

e
ta

ils
 

w
e

re
 a

ls
o

 m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

to
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
in

te
re

s
te

d
 

p
a

rt
ie

s
 v

ia
 t
h

e
 D

fE
, 

In
d

e
p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
A

c
a

d
e
m

ie
s
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 N

e
w

 
S

c
h

o
o
ls

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 w
e

b
s
it
e
s
 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 L
C

C
 w

e
b

s
it
e
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 

In
te

ri
m

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 

a
n

d
 T

e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

l:
 0

1
5

2
2

 5
5
3

2
6

9
 

e
-m

a
il:

 
m

ic
h

e
lle

.a
n

d
re

w
s
@

lin
c
o

l 
n

s
h

ir
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r:

 
A

d
u

lt
 C

a
re

 a
n
d

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

Y
e

s
 

S
p

a
ld

in
g

 E
a
s
t 

a
n

d
 

M
o

u
lt
o

n
; 

S
p

a
ld

in
g
 

E
llo

e
; 
S

p
a

ld
in

g
 

S
o

u
th

; 
S

p
a

ld
in

g
 

W
e
s
t 

I0
0

4
7
7

7
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
to

 
re

v
o

k
e
 

th
e

 d
e
c
is

io
n

 t
o
 

e
x
p

a
n

d
 S

p
a

ld
in

g
 

P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l 

9
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
3
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r:

 
A

d
u

lt
 

C
a

re
 a

n
d
 

H
e

a
lt
h
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
In

te
ri
m

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 

a
n

d
 T

e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

l:
 0

1
5

2
2

 5
5
5

5
3

2
6

9
 

e
-m

a
il:

 
m

ic
h

e
lle

.a
n

d
re

w
s
@

lin
c
o

l 
n

s
h

ir
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r:

 
A

d
u

lt
 C

a
re

 a
n
d

 H
e

a
lt
h
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

Y
e

s
 

S
p

a
ld

in
g

 E
a
s
t 

a
n

d
 

M
o

u
lt
o

n
; 

S
p

a
ld

in
g
 

E
llo

e
; 
S

p
a

ld
in

g
 

S
o

u
th

; 
S

p
a

ld
in

g
 

W
e
s
t 

�
In

d
ic

a
te

s
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

to
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 i
te

m
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

Page 185



Page 186

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee held on 14 June 2013
	4 Children's Centres Progress and Successes
	Appendix A

	5 Youth Housing Strategy
	Appendix A

	6 Proposal to revoke the decision taken in May 2012 to expand Spalding Primary School
	Appendix 1

	7 Proposal for a new primary Academy in Spalding (submission to Secretary of State of results and evaluation of process to identify an operator)
	Appendix 1

	8 Related Proposals to Amend the Age Range and Expand the Capacity at Grantham The Isaac Newton Primary School (Final Decision)
	Appendix 1

	9 Improving Access to Post-16 Learning Provision in Lincolnshire Action Plan (Second Monitoring Update)
	Appendix 1

	10 Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2013/14
	Appendix A
	Appendices B & C


